Versus Capital Multi-Manager Real Estate Income Fund LLC (the "Fund")

Supplement dated March 5, 2024 to the Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information, dated July 27, 2023, as amended

Custodial Services

UMB Bank, n.a. has been added as a custodian for certain of the Fund's securities and similar investments, effective immediately, and is expected to become custodian of all the Fund's securities and similar investments on or around May 31, 2024.

Distribution Reinvestment Policy

The Fund's distribution reinvestment policy has been amended to clarify certain operational processes.

Prospectus

In connection with these changes, effective immediately, the Fund's Prospectus is amended as follows.

The first paragraph in the subsection "Other Fees and Expenses" in the "Prospectus Summary" section of the Prospectus is replaced in its entirety with the following:

BNY Mellon Investment Servicing (US) Inc. ("BNY Mellon") performs certain administrative, accounting, transfer agency, and custodial services for the Fund. In consideration for providing such services, the Fund pays BNY Mellon annual fees of approximately 0.04% of the Fund's average annual NAV, assuming anticipated weighted average assets in the Fund of approximately \$2.7 billion over the fiscal year. This includes certain minimum payments for services provided. All such fees shall accrue daily and will be paid periodically. UMB Bank, n.a. ("UMB Bank") performs certain custodial services for the Fund. In consideration for providing such services, the Fund pays UMB Bank annual fees of approximately 0.01% of the Fund's average NAV, assuming anticipated weighted average assets in the Fund of approximately \$2.1 billion over the fiscal year.

The third paragraph in the subsection "Additional Service Providers" in the "Management of the Fund" section of the Prospectus is replaced in its entirety with the following:

Effective March 31, 2024, UMB Bank will serve as the Fund's custodian for its investments in underlying Private Funds. The Bank of New York Mellon ("BNYM" and, together with UMB Bank, the "Custodian") will serve as the Fund's custodian for its investments in underlying Private Funds until March 31, 2024, and serves as the Fund's custodian for the Fund's publicly traded securities and other assets. UMB Bank's principal business address is 1010 Grand Blvd., Kansas City, Missouri 64106. BNYM's principal business address is 240 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10286.

The subsection "Distribution Policy and Dividend Reinvestment Policy" in the "Prospectus Summary" section of the Prospectus is replaced in its entirety with the following:

Distribution Policy and Distribution Reinvestment Policy

To qualify for treatment as a RIC, the Fund is required to distribute at least 90% of its "investment company taxable income" (as that term is defined in the Code without regard to the deduction for dividends paid—generally taxable ordinary income and the excess, if any, of net short-term capital gains over net long-term capital losses) to shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Code each year. The Fund intends to satisfy this requirement through regular quarterly distributions to shareholders. In addition, the Fund may make distributions to shareholders of all or a portion of the Fund's net long term capital gains realized on transactions in its investments. The Fund will establish reasonable cash reserves to meet Fund cash payment obligations prior to making distributions. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Fund's distributions may be treated in the hands of shareholders as, among other things, ordinary income, qualified dividends, capital gains, or returns of capital. The portion of a distribution treated as a return of capital is not taxable, but reduces a shareholder's

tax basis in its shares, thus reducing any loss or increasing any gain on a subsequent taxable disposition by the shareholder of its shares. To the extent the distribution exceeds a shareholder's basis in its Shares, such shareholder will recognize a capital gain. See "Taxes."

All distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder affirmatively elects not to reinvest in Shares pursuant to the Fund's Distribution Reinvestment Policy. Shareholders may elect initially not to reinvest by indicating that choice in writing to the Fund's transfer agent. Thereafter, shareholders are free to change their election by contacting the Fund's transfer agent (or, alternatively, by contacting the selling agent that sold such shareholder its Shares, who will inform the Fund). Shares purchased by reinvestment will be issued at their NAV on the ex-dividend date. There is no "sales load" or other charge for Shares received by reinvestment. The Fund reserves the right to suspend or limit at any time the ability of shareholders to reinvest distributions. The automatic reinvestment of distributions does not relieve participants of any U.S. federal income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions. See "Taxes" and "Description of Shares."

The fourth paragraph in the "Description of Shares" section of the Prospectus is replaced in its entirety with the following:

All distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder affirmatively elects not to reinvest in Shares. Shareholders may elect initially not to reinvest by indicating that choice in writing to the Fund's transfer agent. Thereafter, shareholders are free to change their election by contacting the Fund's transfer agent (or, alternatively, by contacting the selling agent that sold such shareholder its Shares, who will inform the Fund). Shares purchased by reinvestment will be issued at their NAV on the ex-dividend date. There is no sales load or other charge for Shares received by reinvestment. The Fund reserves the right to suspend or limit at any time the ability of shareholders to reinvest distributions. The automatic reinvestment of distributions does not relieve participants of any U.S. federal income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions.

The "Distribution Policy and Dividend Reinvestment Policy" section of the Prospectus is replaced in its entirety with the following:

DISTRIBUTION POLICY AND DISTRIBUTION REINVESTMENT POLICY

In accordance with requirements applicable to regulated investment companies, the Fund intends to distribute to shareholders at least 90% of its investment income and net short-term capital gains realized on investments, each year, through regular quarterly distributions. In addition, the Fund may make periodic distributions to shareholders of all or a portion of the long-term capital gains realized on transactions in its investments, in accordance with the requirements of the Investment Company Act and the Code.

All distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder affirmatively elects not to reinvest in additional Shares pursuant to the Fund's Distribution Reinvestment Policy. Shareholders may elect initially not to reinvest by indicating that choice in writing to the Fund's transfer agent. Thereafter, shareholders are free to change their election. Shareholders may change their election or receive additional information regarding the Fund's Distribution Reinvestment Policy by contacting the Fund's transfer agent, the Fund's Distribution Reinvestment Policy agent (the "Plan Agent"), at (855) 653-7173 or 118 Flanders Road, Westborough, Massachusetts 01581 (or, alternatively, by contacting the selling agent that sold such shareholder its Shares, who will inform the Fund). Whenever the Fund declares a distribution, participating shareholders will receive such distribution entirely in Shares to be issued by the Fund, including fractions. The number of Shares received by a shareholder in respect of the distribution will be based on the current NAV of the Fund on the ex-dividend date, as determined by or on behalf of the Fund. There is no sales load or other charge for Shares received pursuant to the Dividend Distribution Policy. The Fund reserves the right to suspend or limit at any time the ability of shareholders to reinvest distributions. Distributions are taxable as described herein whether shareholders receive them in cash or reinvest them in additional shares. See "Taxes."

Statement of Additional Information

The paragraph in the "Custodian" section of the Statement of Additional Information is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Effective March 31, 2024, UMB Bank, n.a. ("UMB Bank") will serve as the Fund's custodian for its investments in underlying Private Funds. The Bank of New York Mellon ("BNYM") will serve as the Fund's custodian for its investments in underlying Private Funds until March 31, 2024, and serves as the Fund's custodian for the Fund's publicly traded securities and other assets. Each of UMB Bank and BNYM may maintain custody of the Fund's assets with domestic and foreign sub-custodians (which may be banks, trust companies, securities depositories and clearing agencies) approved by the Board. UMB Bank's principal business address is 1010 Grand Blvd., Kansas City, Missouri 64106. BNYM's principal business address is 240 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10286.

The first paragraph in the subsection "Fund Distributions" in the "Tax Aspects" section of the Statement of Additional Information is replaced in its entirety with the following:

The Fund intends to make distributions to shareholders quarterly. All distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder affirmatively elects not to reinvest in additional Shares pursuant to the Fund's Distribution Reinvestment Policy (as described in the Prospectus). Shareholder whose distributions are so reinvested in Shares will be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as having received an amount in distribution equal to the fair market value of the Shares issued to the shareholder, which amount will also be equal to the net asset value of such shares. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, all distributions are generally taxable in the manner described herein, whether a shareholder takes them in cash or they are reinvested pursuant to the Distribution Reinvestment Policy in additional shares of the Fund.

Shareholders should retain this Supplement for future reference.

Versus Capital Multi-Manager Real Estate Income Fund LLC (the "Fund")

Supplement dated February 2, 2024 to the Prospectus dated July 27, 2023

Change in Sub-Adviser Portfolio Managers

Laura Rank has been added as a portfolio manager for the portion of the Fund's portfolio sub-advised by Principal Real Estate Investors, LLC ("PrinREI") and Scott Carson no longer serves as a portfolio manager for such portion. The other existing portfolio managers for the portion of the Fund's portfolio sub-advised by PrinREI will remain as portfolio managers for such portion. In connection with these changes, effective immediately, all references to the portfolio managers for the portion of the Fund's portfolio sub-advised by PrinREI are amended to include Ms. Rank and remove Mr. Carson, as described below.

The second paragraph and accompanying table under the subsection "Sub-Advisers and Sub-Advisory Fees—*Principal Real Estate Securities*" in the section "Management of the Fund" in the Prospectus are deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following:

The key decision makers for the portfolio are the REIT equities portfolio managers Kelly Rush, Anthony Kenkel, and Simon Hedger, senior CMBS portfolio manager Marc Peterson, and Head of Structured Credit and CBMS portfolio manager Laura Rank. The team averages over 20-years tenure with the firm and averages over 30 years of investment experience. The Statement of Additional Information provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by the portfolio managers and the portfolio managers' ownership of securities in the Fund.

Name	Title	Since	Recent Experience
Kelly Rush	Chief Investment Officer	1987	Mr. Rush is the CIO and a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Rush has been with the firm since 1987.
Anthony Kenkel	Portfolio Manager	2001	Mr. Kenkel is a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Kenkel has been with the firm since 2001.
Simon Hedger	Portfolio Manager	2003	Mr. Hedger is a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Hedger has been with the firm since 2003.
Marc Peterson	Portfolio Manager	1992	Mr. Peterson is the CIO-CMBS for PrinREI. Mr. Peterson has been with the firm since 1992.
Laura Rank	Portfolio Manager	2023	Ms. Rank is the Head of Structured Credit and CMBS Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Ms. Rank has been with the firm since 2023. Prior to joining the firm, Ms. Rank was the head of Structured Securities at American Equity Investment Life Insurance Company.

Shareholders should retain this Supplement for future reference.



VERSUS CAPITAL MULTI-MANAGER REAL ESTATE INCOME FUND LLC

Shares of Beneficial Interest: (VCMIX)

Versus Capital Multi-Manager Real Estate Income Fund LLC (the "Fund") is a Delaware limited liability company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act"), as a non-diversified, closed-end investment management company that is operated as an interval fund. Shares of the Fund will be continuously offered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and repurchased by the Fund on a quarterly basis in an amount not less than 5% nor more than 25% of the Fund's outstanding Shares, according to the Fund's repurchase policy established pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the Investment Company Act. See "Prospectus Summary — Quarterly Repurchases of Shares." The Fund has elected to be treated as a regulated investment company under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

Investment Objective. The Fund's primary investment objective is to seek consistent current income, while the Fund's secondary objectives are capital preservation and long-term capital appreciation. The Fund's ability to achieve current income and/or long-term capital appreciation will be tempered by the investment objective of capital preservation.

Investment Strategies. The Fund pursues its investment objectives primarily by investing in (i) investments in third party private funds that themselves invest in real estate and in debt investments secured by real estate (collectively, the "Private Funds"); and (ii) domestic and international publicly traded real estate securities, such as common and preferred stock of publicly listed real estate investment trusts ("REITs") and publicly traded real estate debt securities ("Real Estate Securities" and together with the Private Funds, "Real Estate-Related Investments"). Under normal market conditions, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its net assets, plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes, in Real Estate-Related Investments.

Shares. This Prospectus applies to the offering of a single class of shares of beneficial interest of the Fund (the "Shares"). The Shares are continuously offered at the Fund's net asset value ("NAV") per Share as of the date that the request to purchase Shares is received and accepted by or on behalf of the Fund. The Shares will not be listed on any securities exchange and it is not anticipated that a secondary market for the Shares will develop. Moreover, these securities are subject to substantial restrictions on transferability and may only be transferred or resold in accordance with the Limited Liability Company Agreement of the Fund (as amended and restated from time to time, the "LLC Agreement").

Investing in the Shares involves risks that are described in the "Risk Factors" section of this Prospectus.

- The Fund does not intend to list its Shares on any securities exchange during the offering period, and the Fund does not expect a secondary market in the Shares to develop. Thus, an investment in the Fund may not be suitable for investors who may need the money they invest in a specified timeframe.
- You should not expect to be able to sell your Shares other than through the Fund's repurchase policy, regardless of how the Fund performs. If you are able to sell your Shares, other than through the Fund's repurchase policy, you will likely receive less than your purchase price.
- Even though the Fund will offer to repurchase Shares on a quarterly basis, you should consider Shares of the Fund to be an illiquid investment. There is no guarantee that you will be able to sell your Shares at any given time or in the quantity that you desire.

- The Shares are appropriate only for those investors who can tolerate risk and do not require a liquid investment.
- The Fund and the underlying Private Funds may utilize borrowings and financial leverage and significant risks may be assumed as a result. See "Risk Factors Leverage Risk."
- The amount of distributions that the Fund may pay, if any, is uncertain.
- The Fund may pay distributions in significant part from sources that may not be available in the future and that are unrelated to the Fund's performance, such as from offering proceeds and borrowings.

This Prospectus sets forth the information that you should know about the Fund before investing. You are advised to read this Prospectus carefully and to retain it for future reference. Additional information about the Fund, including the Statement of Additional Information (the "SAI"), dated July 27, 2023, has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). The SAI is incorporated by reference into this Prospectus in its entirety. You can request a copy of the SAI, the Fund's annual and semi-annual reports or other information about the Fund without charge or make other shareholder inquiries by writing to the Fund at 5050 S. Syracuse Street, Suite 1100, Denver, Colorado 80237 or by calling (877) 200-1878. You can also obtain the SAI, the Fund's annual and semi-annual reports, and other information about the Fund on the Adviser's website, located at www.versuscapital.com. The SAI, material incorporated by reference, and other information about the Fund are also available on the SEC's website (http://www.sec.gov).

Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these securities or determined whether this Prospectus is truthful or complete, nor have they made, nor will they make, any determination as to whether anyone should buy these securities. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. Shares are not deposits or obligations of, or guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank or other insured depository institution and are not federally insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Reserve Board or any other government agency.

Prospective investors should not construe the contents of this Prospectus as legal, tax, financial or other advice. Each prospective investor should consult with his, her or its own professional advisers as to the legal, tax, financial or other matters relevant to the suitability of an investment in the Fund.

OFFERING PROCEEDS

	Price to Public(1)	Sales Load(2)	Proceeds to the Fund(1),(3)
Shares	At current NAV	\$0.00	Amount invested at current NAV

- (1) An indefinite number of Shares are offered on a best efforts basis and are offered on a continuous basis at a price equal to the Fund's NAV per Share as of the date that the request to purchase Shares is received and accepted by or on behalf of the Fund. The Shares do not carry a "sales load" so the price to the public will equate to the proceeds to the Fund. The proceeds set forth herein have not been reduced by the other expenses of issuance and distribution set forth in "Part C Other Information Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution."
- (2) The Shares are not subject to a "sales load," as defined in the Investment Company Act. See "Distribution Arrangements."
- (3) Foreside Funds Distributors LLC (the "Distributor") serves as the Fund's "statutory underwriter," within the meaning of the Securities Act, and "principal underwriter," within the meaning of the Investment Company Act, and facilitates the distribution of the Shares. The Fund, the Adviser and/or the Distributor may authorize one or more financial intermediaries (e.g., banks, broker/dealers, investment advisers, trusts, financial industry professionals, etc., collectively referred to as "Intermediaries" and individually as "Intermediary") to receive orders and provide certain related services on behalf of the Fund. Additionally, the Adviser may enter into distribution and/or servicing agreements to compensate certain Intermediaries for distribution-related activities and/or for providing ongoing services in respect of clients to whom they have distributed Shares of the Fund. Such compensation to the Intermediaries is paid by the Adviser out of the Adviser's own resources and is not an expense of the Fund or Fund shareholders. These payments may create a conflict of interest for the Intermediaries by providing an incentive to recommend the Fund's shares over other potential investments that may also be appropriate for the clients of such Intermediaries. These payments may also have the effect of increasing the Fund's assets under management, which would increase management fees payable to the Adviser. There is no limit on the amount of such compensation paid by the Adviser to the Intermediaries, subject to the limitations imposed by FINRA. Such Intermediaries may provide varying investment products, programs, platforms and accounts through which investors may purchase or participate in a repurchase of Shares of the Fund. Platform fees, administration fees, shareholder services fees and sub-transfer agent fees are not paid by the Fund as compensation for any sales or distribution activities.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	1
SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES	15
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS	17
RISK FACTORS	19
USE OF PROCEEDS	37
THE FUND	38
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND INVESTMENT FEATURES	38
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	43
SUITABILITY OF THE INVESTMENT	47
HOW TO PURCHASE SHARES	47
REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS	48
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	48
DISTRIBUTION POLICY AND DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT POLICY	48
QUARTERLY REPURCHASES OF SHARES	49
CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	51
DESCRIPTION OF SHARES	52
TAXES	53
DISTRIBUTION ARRANGEMENTS	56
PRIVACY NOTICE	57

You should rely only on the information contained in this Prospectus. The Fund has not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. The Fund is not making an offer of securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information provided by this Prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this Prospectus.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this Prospectus. It does not contain all of the information that may be important to you and your investment decision. You should carefully read this entire Prospectus, including the matters set forth under "Risk Factors," and the Statement of Additional Information (the "SAI"). In this Prospectus and the SAI, unless the context otherwise requires, references to "the Fund," "we," "us" and "our" refer to Versus Capital Multi-Manager Real Estate Income Fund LLC.

The Fund

Versus Capital Multi-Manager Real Estate Income Fund LLC (the "Fund") is a Delaware limited liability company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act"), as a non-diversified, closed-end investment management company that is operated as an interval fund. Shares of the Fund will be continuously offered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). Shares of the Fund have no history of public trading, nor is it intended that such shares will be listed on a public exchange, and therefore should be treated by investors as an illiquid investment (see "Risk Factors" below in this Prospectus). The Fund has elected to be treated as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

Adviser

The Fund's investment adviser is Versus Capital Advisors LLC (the "Adviser"), a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Advisers Act"). See "Management of the Fund – Adviser and Investment Management Fee." Headquartered in Denver, CO, the Adviser is a boutique asset management firm that specializes in real asset investing with approximately \$5.75 billion in assets under management as of March 31, 2023. The Adviser has entered into sub-advisory agreements with Principal Real Estate Investors, LLC ("PrinREI") and Security Capital Research & Management Incorporated ("Security Capital") (each a "Sub-Adviser" and, collectively, the "Sub-Advisers") in connection with the management of a portion of the Fund's assets. See "Management of the Fund – Sub-Advisers and Sub-Advisory Fees."

Continuous Offering

The Fund is offering shares of beneficial interest of the Fund (collectively, the "Shares") on a continuous basis at the Fund's net asset value ("NAV") per Share. The NAV per Share is computed by dividing the Fund's NAV by the total number of Shares outstanding at the time the determination is made.

Shares of the Fund will be sold to: (i) institutional investors, including registered investment advisers ("RIAs"), banks, trust companies or similar financial institutions investing for their own account or for accounts for which they act as a fiduciary and have authority to make investment decisions (subject to certain limitations) and clients of such institutional investors that have accounts for which such institutional investors are bound by an applicable fiduciary standard, and (ii) the executive officers, directors, general partners, or employees of the Fund or the Adviser. The minimum initial investment per institutional investor of the Fund (including, with respect to clause (i) above, cumulative investments of the clients of any institutional investor of the Fund) is \$10 million and the minimum for those investors referred to in clause (ii) above is \$10,000. The Adviser has the authority to waive the minimum investment requirements or allow investors in the Fund who do not fit the above descriptions under certain circumstances.

Investors should carefully consider the Fund's risks and investment objective, as an investment in the Fund may not be appropriate for all investors and is not designed to be a complete investment program. An investment in the Fund involves a high degree of risk. It is possible that investing in the Fund may result in a loss of some or all of the amount invested. Before making an investment decision, investors should (i) consider the suitability of this investment with respect to an investor's or a client's investment objectives and individual situation and (ii) consider factors such as an investor's or a client's net worth, income, age and risk tolerance. Investment should be avoided where an investor (or an investor's client) has a short-term investing horizon and/or cannot bear the loss of some or all of their investment. Investing in the Shares involves risks that are described in the "Risk Factors" section of this Prospectus.

The Fund may close at any time to new investors and, during such closings, dividend reinvestment and additional or new Share purchases may only be executed by institutions that are existing shareholders and their clients. Following any such closure, the Fund may re-open to new investors and subsequently close again to new investors at any time at the discretion of the Adviser. Any such opening and closing of the Fund will be disclosed to the investors via a supplement to this Prospectus.

Foreside Funds Distributors LLC (the "Distributor") serves as the Fund's principal underwriter and distributor of the Fund's Shares. The Adviser retains the right to approve any proposed investor in the Fund prior to its purchase of Shares through the Distributor. In addition, both the Adviser and the Fund reserve the right to reject any purchase order for any reason.

Interval Fund

Shares are not redeemable. The Fund is operated as an interval fund and, as such, has established a limited repurchase policy pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the Investment Company Act. The Fund's repurchase policy provides that each quarterly period the Fund will offer to repurchase not less than 5% nor more than 25% of the Fund's outstanding Shares. The Fund will not be required to repurchase Shares at a shareholder's option nor will Shares be exchangeable for units, interests or shares of any investment of the Fund. As a result, an investor may not be able to sell or otherwise liquidate his, her or its Shares, whenever such investor would prefer. The Fund is intended for long-term investors and the liquidity risk may be greater for investors expecting to sell their Shares in a relatively short period after purchase. If and to the extent that a public trading market ever develops for the Shares, shares of closed-end investment companies frequently trade at a discount from their NAV per Share and initial offering prices. For those investors that cannot bear risk of loss or relative lack of liquidity, investment in the Fund may not be suitable. The Shares are appropriate only for those investors who can tolerate risk and do not require a liquid investment. There is no assurance that you will be able to tender your Shares when or in the amount that you desire. See "Quarterly Repurchases of Shares", "Risk Factors – Interval Fund Risk" and "– Liquidity Risk."

Use of Proceeds

The Fund will invest the proceeds of the continuous offering of Shares on an ongoing basis in accordance with its investment objectives and policies as stated below. In addition, for cash management purposes, the proceeds of this offering may be invested by the Fund in short-term, high-quality debt securities, money market instruments, money market funds, and/or liquid real estate-focused exchange-traded funds, in addition to, or in lieu of, investments consistent with the Fund's investment objectives and investment policy. See "Risk Factors" for more discussion of the potential limitations on the Fund's ability to invest consistent with its investment objectives and investment policy.

Investment Objectives and Strategies

The Fund's primary investment objective is to seek consistent current income, while the Fund's secondary objectives are capital preservation and long-term capital appreciation. The Fund's ability to achieve current income and/or long-term capital appreciation will be tempered by the investment objective of capital preservation. The Adviser seeks to achieve the Fund's objective by investing primarily in (i) investments in third party private funds that themselves invest in real estate and in debt investments secured by real estate (i.e., private real estate investment trusts ("REITs") and investment funds and other pooled investment vehicles (collectively, "Private Funds"); and (ii) domestic and international publicly traded real estate securities, such as common and preferred stock of publicly listed REITs and other real estate-related companies and publicly traded real estate debt securities ("Real Estate Securities" and together with the Private Funds, "Real Estate-Related Investments"). Under normal market conditions, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its net assets, plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes, in Real Estate-Related Investments.

The Fund is a multi-strategy, multi-manager fund that seeks to achieve its investment objectives primarily through the selection and monitoring of, and the allocation of assets of the Fund to, Private Funds and Sub-Advisers that the Adviser believes will meet the Fund's investment objectives. The Fund's investment strategy seeks to attain portfolio stability and favorable risk-adjusted investment returns with a focus on income and a low correlation to the publicly-traded equities markets. The Fund pursues its investment strategy by seeking to diversify its overall Real Estate-Related Investment portfolio by: (i) geography: asset holdings primarily in the United States but with certain holdings across the rest of North America, Europe, Asia, Australia and other geographic regions; (ii) property type: investments in multi-family, industrial, office, retail, hotel and other property types; (iii) strategy: differing property and securities acquisition, underwriting, leverage and management strategies; and (iv) capital structure: investments that include debt and equity securities, including preferred stock.

Private Funds. The Fund gains exposure to Real Estate-Related Assets in part through investments in Private Funds. Some of these Private Funds themselves invest in real estate through underlying REITs. Other Private Funds invest in debt investments secured by real estate either directly or through entities that do not qualify as REITs. Private

Funds typically accept investments on a continuous basis, have quarterly repurchases, and do not have a defined termination date. The Fund intends to invest no more than 15% of its assets in traditional pooled investment vehicles that would be investment companies but for Sections 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act ("3(c)(1)/3(c) (7) Funds") (excluding for the avoidance of doubt, entities that qualify as REITs, that would otherwise qualify for an exemption pursuant to Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act, or that would not be investment companies for reasons other than the exemptions in Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act (collectively, "Other Private Funds")). Additionally, the Fund will not invest in Private Funds that hold themselves out as "hedge funds." The Fund may invest in Private Funds with a variety of real estate-related strategies and risk/return characteristics. Under normal circumstances, the majority of the Fund's assets are expected to be invested in Private Funds (i.e., private funds that invest in real estate and debt investments secured by real estate), with the balance of the Fund's assets allocated to Real Estate Securities managed by Sub-Advisers and to cash and cash equivalents.

Real Estate-Related Debt. The Private Funds may invest in real estate debt investments, among other things, including commercial real estate loans and other real estate-related securities. The Fund intends to identify Private Funds with Managers that focus on the major property types within commercial real estate (multifamily, industrial, office and retail), but the Fund may also seek debt investments in respect of certain other property types with strong credit characteristics. The Private Funds may make such investments through investment and origination of first mortgage loans as well as subordinated debt (B-notes and mezzanine loans), participating loans, bridge loans, and other secured real estate-related debt.

Core. The Fund may invest in Private Funds with strategies that target high-quality portfolios with real estate assets that provide relatively lower and more stable returns. Investments are typically located in primary markets and in the main property types (offices, retail, industrial and residential). Properties are stable, well-maintained, well-leased and often of the Class A variety. The Fund intends to identify investments within this strategy that anticipate little or no leverage (i.e., approximately 0% to 30%) or additional capital investment, maintain relatively stable and high occupancy levels and typically carry premium rents within a market. As an example, a Class A office property may broadly be defined as 100,000 square feet or larger (five or more floors), concrete and steel construction, recently built and/or very well maintained (excellent condition), with business/support amenities and in a strong identifiable location with good access in a primary metropolitan market.

Core Plus. The Fund may invest in Private Funds with strategies that seek moderate risk portfolios with real estate that provides moderate returns. Investments are predominantly core but with an emphasis on a modest value added approach. Focus is on the main property types, in both primary and secondary markets, in Class A or Class B quality buildings that require some form of enhancement (i.e., repositioning and/or releasing). The Fund intends to identify investments within this strategy that anticipate moderately low leverage (i.e., approximately 30% to 49%) and some additional capital investment. In comparison to the Class A example above, a Class B property may be renovated and/or in good condition, potentially smaller in size, in a good location in a primary or secondary metropolitan market.

Value Added. The Fund may invest in Private Funds with strategies that typically focus on more aggressive active asset management and often employ more leverage. Investment portfolios typically target lower quality buildings, in both primary and secondary markets in the main property types. Properties are considered value added when they exhibit management or operational problems, require physical improvement, and/or suffer from capital constraints. Buildings often require enhancement to upgrade them to Class A buildings (i.e., redevelopment/repositioning/releasing). The Fund intends to identify investments within this strategy that anticipate moderate leverage (i.e., approximately 50% to 65%) and additional capital investment.

Real Estate Securities. The Fund may invest directly in Real Estate Securities, including equity and debt securities issued by real estate-related companies. The Adviser has engaged the Sub-Advisers to invest the Fund's assets in Real Estate Securities.

Global Real Estate Equities. The Fund seeks global real estate equity investments that the Adviser believes will generate competitive total returns and current income. These investments typically include equity securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. real estate companies, including REITs and similar REIT-like entities. REIT-like entities are organized outside of the U.S. and have operations and receive tax treatment similar to that of U.S. REITs. The Fund may also invest in securities of foreign companies in the form of American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"), Global Depositary Receipts ("GDRs") and European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs"). The Sub-Advisers employ a risk-managed investment approach that focuses on companies the Sub-Advisers believe have potential for growth and/or strong income characteristics.

Real Estate Preferred Equities. The Fund seeks real estate preferred equity investments that the Adviser believes will generate high income and capital preservation. These investments typically include preferred stock of REITs and other real estate-related companies. The Sub-Advisers apply differing strategies, including, but not limited to, a value-oriented investment approach focused on credit quality and company fundamentals. The Sub-Advisers will evaluate the fundamental characteristics of the issuers, including creditworthiness and prevailing market factors. This approach will take into account an issuer's corporate and capital structures and placement of the preferred securities within that structure.

Real Estate Debt. The Fund's direct real estate debt investments include commercial real estate loans and other real estate-related securities that the Sub-Advisers believe will generate a stable income stream of attractive and consistent cash distributions. The Fund may make such investments through investment and origination of first mortgage loans as well as subordinated debt (B-notes and mezzanine loans), commercial mortgage backed securities ("CMBS"), participating loans, bridge loans and other secured and unsecured real estate-related debt. There is no limit on the maturity or duration of any individual security and/or other investment in which the Fund may invest.

Other Investments. In certain circumstances or market environments, the Fund may reduce its investment in Real Estate-Related Investments and hold a larger position in short-term, high-quality debt securities, money market instruments, money market funds, exchange-traded funds, and/or cash or cash equivalents. The Fund may also invest excess cash balances in these types of investments, as deemed appropriate by the Adviser. The Fund may use derivative strategies for hedging exposure to foreign currencies and interest rates. In addition, in pursuing its investment objective, the Fund may seek to enhance returns through the use of leverage. The Fund intends to utilize leverage opportunistically and may choose to increase or decrease, or eliminate entirely, its use of leverage over time and from time to time based on the Adviser's assessment of the yield curve environment, interest rate trends, market conditions and other factors.

Selection of Private Funds and Sub-Advisers

The Adviser follows certain general guidelines when reviewing and selecting Private Funds and Sub-Advisers. See "Investment Objectives, Investment Strategies and Investment Features – Selection of Private Funds and Sub-Advisers." Although the Adviser will attempt to apply the guidelines consistently, the guidelines involve the application of subjective and qualitative criteria and the selection of Private Funds and Sub-Advisers is a fundamentally subjective process. The use of the selection guidelines may be modified or eliminated at the discretion of the Adviser. There can be no assurance that the Adviser will be able to access Private Funds or Sub-Advisers that will enable the Fund to meet its objectives.

Borrowing/Leverage

In pursuing its investment objective, the Fund may seek to enhance returns through the use of leverage. The Fund may use leverage to make additional investments, to satisfy repurchase requests from Fund shareholders, to provide the Fund with temporary liquidity, or as a temporary measure for extraordinary or emergency purposes, including for the payment of dividends or the settlement of securities transactions which otherwise might require untimely dispositions of portfolio securities held by the Fund. The Fund may add leverage to its portfolio by utilizing a bank loan secured by the portfolio securities of the Fund, commercial paper, and/or other borrowings available to the Fund. The Fund intends to utilize borrowings and other forms of leverage opportunistically and may choose to increase or decrease its use of leverage over time and from time to time based on the Adviser's assessment of the yield curve environment, interest rate trends, market conditions and other factors. Leveraging is a speculative technique and the use of leverage involves increased costs and risk, including increased variability of the Fund's net income, distributions and net asset value in relation to market changes. There can be no assurance that a leveraging strategy will be used or that it will be successful during any period in which it is employed. The Fund may lose money through the use of leverage. See "Risk Factors -Leverage Risk." The Fund has, and may in the future, borrow money in order to repurchase its Shares. The Fund may also borrow to facilitate investments or to seek to enhance returns. The Fund intends to limit its borrowing and the overall leverage of its portfolio to an amount that does not exceed 33-1/3% of the Fund's gross asset value. Any leverage at the Fund level will be in addition to financial leverage that a Private Fund may use as part of its capital structure.

Board of Directors

The Fund's board of directors (the "Board") has overall responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the Fund's investment program and its management and operations. A majority of the Directors are not "interested persons" of the Fund, the Adviser, the Distributor, the Sub-Advisers, or any affiliates of any of the foregoing, as defined by the Investment Company Act (the "Independent Directors").

Investment Management Fee

The Fund pays the Adviser an investment management fee equal to 0.95% annually of the average daily NAV of the Fund (the "Investment Management Fee"). The Investment Management Fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears. The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser out of the Fund's assets. Because the Investment Management Fee is calculated based on the Fund's average daily NAV and is paid out of the Fund's assets, it reduces the NAV of the Shares.

The Fund pays each Sub-Adviser a sub-advisory fee based on the net assets of the Fund managed by such Sub-Adviser. Pursuant to its sub-advisory agreement, PrinREI is paid a management fee by the Fund based on assets under management that decreases as assets increase. The fees are assessed on a sliding scale and range from 0.60% down to 0.49% based on assets under management.

Pursuant to its sub-advisory agreement, Security Capital is paid a management fee by the Fund based on assets under management that decreases as assets increase. The fees are assessed on a sliding scale and range from 1.0% down to 0.45% based on assets under management.

To the extent that the Fund invests in any Private Funds, the Fund will be subject to the management fees, including asset-based and performance fees, if any, charged by the Private Funds on the portion of the Fund's assets invested in such Private Funds. See "Summary of Fund Expenses" and "Management of the Fund – Adviser and Investment Management Fee" for more information regarding the Investment Management Fee and other Fund expenses.

Other Fees and Expenses

BNY Mellon Investment Servicing (US) Inc. ("BNY Mellon") performs certain administrative, accounting, transfer agency, and custodial services for the Fund. In consideration for providing such services, the Fund pays BNY Mellon annual fees of approximately 0.05% of the Fund's average annual NAV, assuming anticipated weighted average assets in the Fund of approximately \$2.7 billion over the fiscal year. This includes certain minimum payments for services provided. All such fees shall accrue daily and will be paid periodically.

The Fund's shareholders will bear all expenses incurred in the business of the Fund and will indirectly bear all expenses incurred in the business of the Private Funds. The Fund pays the asset- and performance-based fees, if any, charged by the Private Funds.

Suitability of Investment

Investing in the Fund involves a considerable amount of risk. Shareholders may lose some or all of their investment in the Fund. Investing in the Fund is suitable only for investors who can bear the risks associated with the limited liquidity of the Shares and should be viewed as a long-term investment. An investment in the Fund may not be suitable for investors who may need their investment or any return from their investment in the Fund in a specified time frame. Before making your investment decision, you and/or your personal financial advisor should (i) consider the suitability of this investment with respect to your investment objectives and personal situation and (ii) consider factors such as your personal net worth, income, age, risk tolerance and liquidity needs. The Fund should be considered to be an illiquid investment. You will not be able to redeem your Shares on a daily basis because the Fund is a closed-end fund. In addition, the Fund's Shares are not traded on an active market and there is currently no secondary market for the Shares. However, limited liquidity will be available through quarterly repurchases of Shares by the Fund of at least 5% of the outstanding Shares during each quarterly period. See "Risk Factors – Interval Fund Risk" and "– Liquidity Risk."

Distribution Policy and Dividend Reinvestment Policy

To qualify for treatment as a RIC, the Fund is required to distribute at least 90% of its "investment company taxable income" (as that term is defined in the Code without regard to the deduction for dividends paid—generally taxable ordinary income and the excess, if any, of net short-term capital gains over net long-term capital losses) to shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Code each year. The Fund intends to satisfy this requirement through regular quarterly distributions to shareholders. In addition, the Fund may make distributions to shareholders of all or a portion of the Fund's net long term capital gains, which may include gains allocated to the Fund by the Private Funds or that the Fund realizes upon the disposition of an interest in a Private Fund. The Fund will establish reasonable cash reserves to meet Fund cash payment obligations prior to making distributions. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Fund's distributions may be treated in the hands of shareholders as, among other things, ordinary income, qualified dividends, capital gains, or returns of capital. The portion of a distribution treated as a return of

capital is not taxable, but reduces a shareholder's tax basis in its shares, thus reducing any loss or increasing any gain on a subsequent taxable disposition by the shareholder of its shares. To the extent the distribution exceeds a shareholder's basis in its Shares, such shareholder will recognize a capital gain. See "Taxes."

All distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder "opts out" (elects not to reinvest in additional Shares), pursuant to the Fund's Dividend Reinvestment Policy. A shareholder may elect initially not to reinvest by indicating that choice on a shareholder certification. Thereafter, a shareholder is free to change his, her or its election on a quarterly basis by contacting BNY Mellon (or, alternatively, by contacting the financial intermediary that sold such shareholder his, her or its Shares, who will inform the Fund). Shares purchased by reinvestment will be issued at their NAV on the ex-dividend date. A shareholder's initially purchased Shares will not be subject to a "sales load," as defined in the Investment Company Act, nor shall there be other charge for Shares issued upon reinvestment. The Fund reserves the right to suspend or limit at any time the ability of shareholders to reinvest distributions. The automatic reinvestment of dividends and capital gain distributions does not relieve participants of any U.S. federal income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions. See "Taxes" and "Description of Shares."

Quarterly Repurchases of Shares

The Fund provides liquidity through a quarterly repurchase policy pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the Investment Company Act. The Fund's fiscal year ends on the last day of March each year. Once each fiscal quarter, the Fund will offer to repurchase at NAV not less than 5% nor more than 25% of the outstanding Shares, unless such offer is suspended or postponed in accordance with regulatory requirements. The repurchase offer amount will be determined by the Board before each repurchase offer. The offer to purchase Shares is a fundamental policy that may not be changed without the vote of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. Shareholders will be notified in writing of each quarterly repurchase offer (each, a "Repurchase Offer") and the date the Repurchase Offer ends (the "Repurchase Request Deadline"). Shares will be repurchased at the NAV per Share determined as of the close of business typically as of the Repurchase Request Deadline, but no later than the 14th day after the Repurchase Request Deadline (each, a "Repurchase Pricing Date").

Shareholders will be notified in writing about each quarterly Repurchase Offer, how they may request that the Fund repurchase their Shares and the Repurchase Request Deadline. Shares tendered for repurchase by shareholders prior to any Repurchase Request Deadline will be repurchased subject to the aggregate repurchase amounts established for that Repurchase Request Deadline. The time between the notification to shareholders and the Repurchase Request Deadline is expected to be approximately 30 days, but may vary from no more than 42 days to no less than 21 days. Certain authorized institutions, including custodians and clearing platforms, may set times prior to the Repurchase Request Deadline by which they must receive all shareholder repurchase requests and may require certain additional information. In addition, certain clearing houses may require shareholders to submit repurchase requests only on the Repurchase Request Deadline. Payment pursuant to the repurchase will be made by checks to the shareholder's address of record, or credited directly to a predetermined bank account no more than 7 days after the Repurchase Pricing Date (the "Repurchase Payment Date"). The Board may establish other policies for repurchases of Shares that are consistent with the Investment Company Act, regulations thereunder and other applicable laws.

The Shares will not be subject to an early withdrawal charge.

If Share repurchase requests exceed the number of Shares in the Fund's Repurchase Offer, the Fund may, in its sole discretion, (i) repurchase the number of Shares in the Fund's Repurchase Offer, allocating such repurchase among the shareholders on a pro rata basis based on the number of Shares tendered by each of the shareholders; or (ii) increase the number of Shares to be repurchased by up to 2.0% of the Fund's outstanding Shares. If the Fund determines to repurchase additional Shares beyond the Repurchase Offer amount and if shareholders tender an amount of Shares greater than that which the Fund is entitled to repurchase, the Fund will repurchase the tendered Shares on a pro rata basis based on the number of Shares tendered by each of the shareholders. However, the Fund may accept all shares tendered for repurchase by Shareholders who own less than one hundred Shares and who tender all of their Shares, before prorating other amounts tendered. Because of the potential for proration, tendering shareholders may not have all of their tendered Shares repurchased by the Fund in any Repurchase Offer.

Taxation

The Fund has elected to be treated as a RIC under the Code. As a RIC, the Fund will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its taxable income and gains that it timely distributes to shareholders in accordance with the

requirements of the Code. The Fund intends to distribute its income and gains in a way that it will not be subject to a federal excise tax on certain undistributed amounts. Distributions are taxable as described herein whether shareholders receive them in cash or reinvest them in additional shares.

Although the Fund is considered a non-diversified fund within the meaning of the Investment Company Act, the Fund must satisfy certain diversification tests under the Code in order to qualify as a RIC. For the purpose of satisfying those tests as well as the 90% gross income test, the Fund will in certain cases be required to "look through" to the character of the income, concentrations of any issuer's securities and investments held by the Private Funds or managed in the Fund's public securities portfolio. However, unlike registered investment companies, Private Funds are not obligated by regulation to disclose publicly the contents of their portfolios. Any lack of transparency may make it difficult for the Adviser to monitor the sources of the Fund's income and the allocation of its assets, and otherwise comply with the requirements for taxation as a RIC under the Code, and ultimately may limit the universe of Private Funds in which the Fund can invest. In order to ensure compliance with all applicable regulatory requirements, the Fund will seek Private Funds that utilize a private REIT and private taxable corporation investment structure for federal tax purposes under the Code, for the direct and indirect ownership of real assets.

If the Fund were to fail to qualify and be eligible to be treated as a RIC, the Fund would be subject to corporate-level taxation, thereby reducing the return on a shareholder's investment. In addition, the Fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay taxes and make distributions (which could be subject to interest charges) before requalifying for taxation as a RIC. See "Taxes" and, in the SAI, "Tax Aspects."

Risk Factors

An investment in the Fund is subject to a high degree of risk. Risks of investing in the Fund, or in an investment vehicle managed by Managers (as defined below) utilized by the Fund, include, but are not limited to, those outlined below. See "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Prospectus where risks of investment are discussed in more detail. You should consider carefully the risks before investing in the Shares. You may also wish to consult with your legal or tax advisors before deciding whether to invest in the Fund.

• Real Estate-Related Securities Risk. The Fund will not invest in real estate directly, but will invest in real estate-related debt, consisting of mezzanine and first mortgage debt, and directly in real estate through entities that qualify as REITs or investment vehicles treated similarly as private REITs for tax purposes. In general, real estate values can be affected by a variety of factors, including supply and demand for properties, the economic health of the country or of different regions, and the strength of specific industries that rent properties. The capital value of the Fund's investments may be significantly diminished in the event of a downward turn in real estate market prices.

The Fund will also invest in commercial real estate loans, mortgage loans, CMBS, B-Notes, mezzanine loans, and other similar types of investments. Commercial real estate loans are secured by multifamily or commercial property and are subject to risks of delinquency and foreclosure. The ability of a borrower to repay a loan secured by an income-producing property typically is dependent primarily upon the successful operation of such property rather than upon the existence of independent income or assets of the borrower. If the net operating income of the property is reduced, the borrower's ability to repay the loan may be impaired. If the Fund makes or invests in mortgage loans and there are defaults under those mortgage loans, the Fund may not be able to repossess and sell the underlying properties in a timely manner. The resulting time delay could reduce the value of the investment in the defaulted mortgage loans.

The Fund will also invest in commercial real estate mortgage-backed securities. A mortgage-backed security is an obligation of the issuer backed by a mortgage or pool of mortgages or a direct interest in an underlying pool of mortgages. Some mortgage-backed securities make payments of both principal and interest at a variety of intervals; others make semi-annual interest payments at a predetermined rate and repay principal at maturity (like a typical bond). Investing in mortgage-back securities involves certain risks, including the failure of a counterparty to meet its commitments, adverse interest rate changes and the effects of prepayments on mortgage cash flows. The yield characteristics of mortgage-backed securities differ from those of traditional fixed income securities. The major differences typically include more frequent interest and principal payments (usually monthly), the adjustability of interest rates of the underlying instrument, and the possibility that prepayments of principal may be made substantially earlier than their final distribution dates. Market factors adversely affecting mortgage loan repayments may include a general economic turndown,

high unemployment, a general slowdown in the real estate market, a drop in the market prices of real estate, or an increase in interest rates resulting in higher mortgage payments by holders of adjustable rate mortgages.

• Liquidity Risk. The Fund will invest a substantial portion of its assets in restricted securities and other investments that are illiquid. Restricted securities are securities that may not be sold to the public without an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, or, if they are unregistered, may be sold only in a privately negotiated transaction or pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act. The Fund may be unable to sell restricted and other illiquid securities at the most opportune times or at prices approximating the value at which it purchased such securities. The Fund's portfolio may include a number of investments for which no market exists and which have substantial restrictions on transferability.

In addition, the Fund's interests in the Private Funds are subject to substantial restrictions on transfer. The Fund may liquidate an interest and withdraw from a Private Fund pursuant to limited withdrawal rights. Some Private Funds may subject the Fund to a lockup period or otherwise suspend the repurchase rights of their shareholders, including the Fund, from time to time. Further, Private Fund managers may impose transfer restrictions on the Fund's interests. There may be no secondary market for the Fund's interests in the Private Funds. The illiquidity of these interests may adversely affect the Fund were it to have to sell interests at an inopportune time.

- Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer, guarantor or liquidity provider of a fixed-income security held by the Fund may be unable or unwilling, or may be perceived (whether by market participants, ratings agencies, pricing services or otherwise) as unable or unwilling, to make timely principal and/or interest payments, or to otherwise honor its obligations. It includes the risk that the security will be downgraded by a credit rating agency; generally, lower credit quality issuers present higher credit risks.
- Active Management Risk. Identifying the appropriate investment strategies, Sub-Advisers and Private Funds is difficult and involves a high degree of uncertainty. The performance of the Fund depends in large part upon the ability of the Adviser to choose successful Sub-Advisers and managers of the Private Funds (collectively, the Sub-Advisers and managers of Private Funds are referred to herein as "Managers") and upon the ability of the Adviser and the Managers to develop and implement investment strategies that achieve the Fund's investment objective. Although the Adviser monitors the Managers, it is possible that one or more Managers may take substantial positions in the same instruments or markets at the same time, thereby interfering with the Fund's investment goal. Managers are subject to various risks, including risks relating to operations and back office functions, property management, accounting, administration, risk management, valuation services and reporting, and may also face competition from other industry participants that may be more established, have larger asset bases and have larger numbers of qualified management and technical personnel.

While the Fund and the Adviser will evaluate regularly each Private Fund and its Manager and each Sub-Adviser to determine whether their respective investment programs are consistent with the Fund's investment objectives and whether the investment performance is satisfactory, the Adviser will not have any control over the investments made by a Private Fund and limited control over the investments made the Sub-Advisers. A Sub-Adviser's judgments about the attractiveness, relative value, or potential appreciation of a particular sector, security, or investment strategy may prove to be incorrect, and may cause the Fund to incur losses. Even though Private Funds are subject to certain constraints, the Managers may change aspects of their investment strategies without prior notice to the Fund.

Conflicts of interest may arise from the fact that the Adviser, the Managers and their affiliates may be carrying on substantial investment activities for other clients in which the Fund has no interest. In addition, the Adviser, the Managers and their respective affiliates, and any of their respective officers, directors, partners, members or employees, may invest for their own accounts in various investment opportunities, including in private investment funds, private investment companies or other investment vehicles in which the Fund will have no interest. Furthermore, the Adviser, the Managers and their respective affiliates manage the assets of and/or provide advice to registered investment companies, private investment funds and individual accounts other than the Fund, which could compete for the same investment opportunities as the Fund.

• Interest Rate Risk. A wide variety of factors can cause interest rates or yields of U.S. Treasury securities or other types of bonds to rise (e.g., central bank monetary policies, inflation rates, general economic conditions, reduced market demand for low yielding investments, etc.). The U.S. Federal Reserve has been raising interest rates in light of recent inflationary pressures and interest rates may continue to increase rapidly. Thus, the Fund currently faces a heightened level of risk associated with rising interest rates and/or bond yields. Interest rate

increases may result in a decline in the value of the fixed income or other investments held by the Fund that move inversely to interest rates. A decline in the value of such investments would result in a decline in the Fund's NAV. Additionally, further changes in interest rates could result in additional volatility and could cause Fund shareholders to tender their Shares for repurchase at its regularly scheduled repurchase intervals. The Fund may need to liquidate portfolio investments at disadvantageous prices in order to meet such repurchases. Further increases in interest rates could also cause dealers in fixed income securities to reduce their market making activity, thereby reducing liquidity in these markets. To the extent the Fund holds fixed income securities or other securities that behave similarly to fixed income securities, the longer the maturity dates are for such securities will result in a higher likelihood of a decrease in value during periods of rising interest rates.

- Leverage Risk. There are significant risks associated with borrowings and leverage. Leverage is a speculative technique that may expose the Fund to greater risk and increased costs. There is no assurance that a leveraging strategy would be successful. Leverage involves risks and special considerations for shareholders including:
 - the likelihood of greater volatility of NAV of the Shares, and of the investment return to shareholders, than a comparable portfolio without leverage;
 - the risk that fluctuations in interest rates on borrowings and short-term debt that the Fund must pay will reduce the return to the shareholders;
 - the effect of leverage in a declining market or a rising interest rate environment, which would likely cause a greater decline in the NAV of the Shares than if the Fund were not leveraged;
 - the potential for an increase in operating costs, which may reduce the Fund's total return; and
 - the possibility either that dividends will fall if the interest and other costs of leverage rise, or that dividends paid on Shares will fluctuate because such costs vary over time.

In addition to any borrowing utilized by the Fund, the Private Funds in which the Fund invests may utilize leverage. While leverage presents opportunities for increasing a Private Fund's total return, it has the effect of potentially increasing losses as well. If income and appreciation on investments made with borrowed funds are less than the required interest payments on the borrowings, the value of the Private Fund will decrease. Additionally, any event which affects adversely the value of an investment by a Private Fund would be magnified to the extent such Private Fund is leveraged. Furthermore, because the Private Funds may themselves incur higher level of leverage than that which the Fund is permitted, the Fund could be effectively leveraged in an amount far greater than the limit imposed by the Investment Company Act.

- Equity Securities Risk. The prices of equity and preferred securities fluctuate based on changes in a company's financial condition and overall market and economic conditions. Preferred securities may be subject to additional risks, such as risks of deferred distributions, liquidity risks, and differences in shareholder rights associated with such securities.
- Foreign Investing Risk. Foreign investments by the Fund and Private Funds may be subject to economic, political, regulatory and social risks, which may affect the liquidity of such investments. Foreign ownership of Real Estate Securities may be restricted, requiring the Private Funds in which the Fund invests to share the applicable investment with local third party shareholders or investors, and there may be significant local land use and permit restrictions, local taxes and other transaction costs that adversely affect the returns sought by the Fund.
- Interval Fund Risk. The Fund is a closed-end investment company that provides limited liquidity through a quarterly repurchase policy under Rule 23c-3 under the Investment Company Act and is designed for long-term investors. Unlike many closed-end investment companies, the Fund's Shares are not listed on any securities exchange and are not publicly-traded. There is currently no secondary market for the Shares and the Fund expects that no secondary market will develop. Shares are subject to substantial restrictions on transferability and may only be transferred or resold in accordance with the LLC Agreement and the Fund's repurchase policy. Shareholders should not expect to be able to sell their Shares in a secondary market transaction regardless of how the Fund performs. Even though the Fund will offer to repurchase Shares on a quarterly basis, there is no guarantee that shareholders will be able to sell Shares at any given time or in the quantity desired. An investment in the Fund is considered an illiquid investment and the Shares are appropriate only for those investors who can tolerate risk and do not require a liquid investment. See "Quarterly Repurchases of Shares."

- Valuation Risk. The value of the Fund's investments will be difficult to ascertain and the valuations provided in respect of the Fund's Private Funds and other private securities will likely vary from the amounts the Fund would receive upon withdrawal of its investments. While the valuation of the Fund's publicly-traded securities are more readily ascertainable, the Fund's ownership interest in the Private Funds are not publicly traded and the Fund will depend on appraisers, service providers, and the Manager to a Private Fund to provide a valuation, or assistance with a valuation, of the Fund's investment. Any such valuation is a subjective analysis of the fair market value of an asset and requires the use of techniques that are costly and time-consuming and ultimately provide no more than an estimate of value. Moreover, the valuation of the Fund's investment in a Private Fund, as provided by a Manager as of a specific date, may vary from the fair value of the investment that may be obtained if such investment were sold to a third party. For information about the value of the Fund's investment in Private Funds, the Adviser will be dependent on information provided by the Private Funds, including quarterly unaudited financial statements that, if inaccurate, could adversely affect the Adviser's ability to value accurately the Fund's Shares.
- Private Funds Risk. The Private Funds will not be subject to the Investment Company Act, nor will they be
 publicly traded. As a result, the Fund's investments in the Private Funds will not be subject to the protections
 afforded to shareholders under the Investment Company Act. These protections include, among others, certain
 corporate governance standards, such as the requirement of having a certain percentage of the directors
 serving on a board as independent directors, statutory protections against self-dealing by the Managers, and
 leverage limitations.

Further, the Private Funds are not subject to the same investment limitations as the Fund and may have different and contrary investment limitations and other policies. Unlike registered investment companies, the Private Funds currently are not obligated by regulations or law to disclose publicly the contents of their portfolios. As such, the Fund has limited visibility into the underlying investments of the Private Funds, and is dependent on information provided by the Managers. This lack of transparency may make it difficult for the Adviser to monitor the sources of the Fund's income and the allocation of its assets, and otherwise comply with regulations applicable to the Fund, may result in style drift, and ultimately may limit the universe of Private Funds in which the Fund can invest.

Investment in Private Funds carries the risk of loss due to Private Funds' fraud, intentional or inadvertent deviations from a predefined investment strategy (including excessive concentration, directional investing outside of predefined ranges, excessive leverage or new capital markets), or poor judgment. During the lifetime of the Fund, there could be material changes in one or more Private Funds, including changes in control and mergers. The effect of such changes on a Private Fund cannot be predicted but could be material and adverse. Given the limited liquidity of the Private Funds, the Fund may not be able to alter its portfolio allocation in sufficient time to respond to any such changes, resulting in substantial losses from risks of Private Funds.

In order to meet its obligation to provide capital for unfunded commitments, the Fund may be required to hold some, or in certain cases a substantial amount, of its assets temporarily in money market securities, cash or cash equivalents, possibly for several months; liquidate portfolio securities at an inopportune time; or borrow under a line of credit. This could make it difficult or impossible to take or liquidate a position in a particular security at a price consistent with the Adviser's strategy.

By investing in the Private Funds indirectly through the Fund, a shareholder bears two layers of asset-based fees and expenses – at the Fund level and the Private Fund level – in addition to indirectly bearing any performance fees charged by the Private Fund. In the aggregate, these fees might exceed the fees that would typically be incurred by a direct investment with a single Private Fund.

The Fund's investments in Private Funds are priced according to their fair value, as determined in good faith by the Adviser. These valuations are based on estimates, which may prove to be inaccurate; these valuations are used to calculate fees payable to the Adviser and the net asset value of the Fund's shares. Investors who purchase or redeem Fund shares on days when the Fund is holding fair-valued investments may receive fewer or more shares or lower or higher redemption proceeds than they would have received if readily available market values were available for all of the Fund's investments.

Market Disruption, Health Crises, Terrorism and Geopolitical Risks. The Fund's investments may be
negatively affected by the broad investment environment in the real estate market, the debt market and/or
the equity securities market. The investment environment is influenced by, among other things, interest rates,

inflation, politics, fiscal policy, current events, competition, productivity and technological and regulatory change. In addition, the Fund may be adversely affected by uncertainties such as war, terrorism, international political developments, sanctions or embargos, tariffs and trade wars, changes in government policies, global health crises or similar pandemics, and other related geopolitical events may lead to increased short-term market volatility and have adverse long-term effects on world economies and markets generally, as well as adverse effects on issuers of securities and the value of investments.

- Currency and Exchange Rate Risks. The Fund may engage in practices and strategies that will result in exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, including through investments in the Private Funds and Real Estate Securities, in which case the Fund will be subject to foreign currency risk. The Fund's Shares are priced in U.S. dollars and the capital contributions to, and distributions from, the Fund are paid in U.S. dollars. However, because a portion of the Fund's assets may be denominated directly in foreign (non-U.S.) currencies or in securities that trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U.S.) currencies, the Fund will be subject to the risk that those currencies will decline in value relative to the U.S. dollar, or, in the case of hedging positions, that the U.S. dollar will decline in value relative to the currency being hedged. Currency rates in foreign (non-U.S.) countries may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons. These fluctuations may have a significant adverse impact on the value of the Fund's portfolio and/or the level of Fund distributions.
- Environmental and Undisclosed Liabilities Risk. The Fund could face substantial risk of loss from claims based on environmental problems associated with the real estate underlying the Fund's investments, including claims in connection with adverse effects from global climate change. For example, persistent wildfires, a rise in sea levels, an increase in powerful windstorms and/or a storm-driven increase in flooding could cause properties to lose value or become unmarketable altogether. Furthermore, changes in environmental laws or in the environmental condition of an asset may create liabilities that did not exist at the time of the acquisition of such investment by the Fund and that could not have been foreseen. Such laws often impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of such environmental condition. Divestment trends tied to concerns about climate change could also adversely affect the value of certain assets. In addition, the Fund could be affected by undisclosed matters, including, but not limited to, legal easements, breaches of planning legislation, building regulations and statutory regimes, and duties payable to municipalities and counties. It is therefore possible that the Fund could acquire an investment affected by such matters, which may have a material adverse effect on the value of such investments.
- Business and Regulatory Risks. Legal, tax and regulatory changes (including laws relating to taxation of the Fund's investments, trade barriers and currency exchange controls), as well as general economic and market conditions (such as interest rates, availability of credit, credit defaults, inflation rates and general economic uncertainty) and national and international political circumstances, may adversely affect the Fund.
- Fees and Expenses Risk. By investing in the Private Funds indirectly through the Fund, a shareholder bears two layers of fees and expenses at the Fund level and the Private Fund level in addition to indirectly bearing any performance fees charged by a Private Fund. In the aggregate, these fees and expenses could be substantial and adversely affect the value of any investment in the Fund.
- Concentration Risk. The Fund may, from time to time, invest a substantial portion of its assets in a particular
 asset type, industry, geographic location or securities instrument. As a result, the Fund's portfolio may
 be subject to greater risk and volatility than if investments had been made in a broader diversification of
 investments in terms of asset type, geographic location or securities instrument. To the extent that the Fund's
 portfolio is concentrated in a property type, geographic location or securities instrument, the risk of any
 investment decision is increased.
- **REITs Risk.** The Fund will invest in real estate indirectly through entities that are intended to qualify as REITs. The risks of investing in REITs include certain risks associated with the real estate industry in general. See "Real Estate-Related Securities Risk" in this section. Investments in REITs also involve unique risks. REITs may have limited financial resources, may trade less frequently and in limited volume, and may be more volatile than other securities. In addition, to the extent the Fund holds interests in REITs, investors in the Fund bear two layers of asset-based management fees and expenses (directly at the Fund level and indirectly at the REIT level), in addition to indirectly bearing any performance fees charged by a Private Fund. In addition, REITs may fail to qualify for the favorable tax treatment available to REITs or may fail to maintain their exemptions from investment company registration. Qualification as a REIT under the Code

in any particular year is a complex analysis that depends on a number of factors. There can be no guarantee that any entity in or through which the Fund invests will qualify as a REIT. An entity that fails to qualify as a REIT would be subject to a corporate level tax, would not be entitled to a deduction for dividends paid to its shareholders and would not pass through to its shareholders the character of income earned by the entity. If the Fund were to invest in an entity that failed to qualify as a REIT, such failure could significantly reduce the Fund's yield on that investment and could adversely affect the Fund's NAV.

- Issuer Risk. Issuer risk is the risk that the value of a security may decline for a reason directly related to the
 issuer, such as management performance, financial leverage and reduced demand for the issuer's goods or
 service.
- High Yield Securities Risk. High yield securities (commonly referred to as "junk bonds") are below investment grade debt securities or comparable unrated securities and are considered predominantly speculative. Lower rated and comparable unrated debt securities tend to offer higher yields than higher rated securities with the same maturities because the historical financial condition of the issuers of such securities may not have been as strong as that of other issuers. However, lower rated securities generally involve greater risks of loss of income and principal than higher rated securities. Changes in economic conditions are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity for the issuers of these securities to make principal payments and interest payments. An economic recession could disrupt the market for high yield securities and may have an adverse impact on the value of such securities. An economic downturn also could adversely affect the ability of leveraged issuers to service their debt obligations or to repay their obligations upon maturity. Factors having an adverse impact on the market value of lower quality securities will have an adverse effect on the Fund's NAV to the extent that it invests in such securities. In addition, the Fund may incur additional expenses to the extent it is required to seek recovery upon a default in payment of principal or interest on its portfolio holdings or to take other steps to protect its investment in an issuer.
- Diversification Risk. The Fund is a "non-diversified" management investment company under the Investment
 Company Act. This means that the Fund may invest a greater portion of its assets in a limited number of
 issuers than would be the case if the Fund were classified as a "diversified" management investment company.
 Accordingly, the Fund may be subject to greater risk with respect to its portfolio securities than a "diversified"
 fund because changes in the financial condition or market assessment of a single issuer may cause greater
 fluctuation in the value of its interests.
- Reliance on Key Persons Risk. The Fund relies on the services of certain executive officers who have relevant knowledge of Real Estate Securities and familiarity with the Fund's investment objective, strategies and investment features. The loss of the services of any of these key personnel could have a material adverse impact on the Fund.
- Privately Placed Securities Risk. The Fund may invest in non-exchange traded securities, including privately placed securities, which are subject to liquidity and valuation risks. These risks may make it difficult for those securities to be traded or valued, especially in the event of adverse economic and liquidity conditions or adverse changes in the issuer's financial condition. The market for certain non-exchange traded securities may be limited to institutional investors, subjecting such investments to further liquidity risk if a market were to limit institutional trading. There may also be less information available regarding such non-exchange traded securities than for publicly traded securities, which may make it more difficult for the Adviser to fully evaluate the risks of investing in such securities and as a result place a Fund's assets at greater risk of loss than if the Adviser had more complete information. In addition, the issuers of non-exchange traded securities may be distressed, insolvent, or delinquent in filing information needed to be listed on an exchange. Disposing of non-exchange traded securities, including privately placed securities, may involve time-consuming negotiation and legal expenses, and selling them promptly at an acceptable price may be difficult or impossible.
- Tax Risks. Special tax risks are associated with an investment in the Fund. Because the Fund intends to qualify and has elected to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code, it must satisfy, among other requirements, diversification and 90% gross income requirements, and a requirement that it distribute at least 90% of its ordinary income and net short-term gains in the form of deductible dividends. These requirements for qualification for the favorable tax treatment available to RICs require that the Adviser obtain information from or about the Private Funds in which the Fund is invested. However, Private Funds generally are not obligated to disclose the contents of their portfolios. This lack of transparency may make it difficult for the Adviser to monitor the sources of the Fund's income and the diversification of its assets, and otherwise to

comply with Subchapter M of the Code. Ultimately, this may limit the universe of Private Funds in which the Fund can invest and may adversely bear on the Fund's ability to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code.

- Hedging Transactions Risk. Hedging transactions may limit the opportunity for gain if the value of the portfolio position should increase. There can be no assurance that the Fund or a Private Fund will engage in hedging transactions at any given time, even under volatile market conditions, or that any hedging transactions the Fund or a Private Fund engages in will be successful. Moreover, it may not be possible for the Fund or a Private Fund to enter into a hedging transaction at a price sufficient to protect its assets. The Fund or a Private Fund may not anticipate a particular risk so as to hedge against it.
- Market Capitalization Risk. The Sub-Advisers may invest in equity securities without restriction as to market capitalization, such as those issued by medium-sized and smaller capitalization companies, including micro-cap companies, which may involve higher risks in some respects than do investments in securities of larger companies. Those securities, particularly smaller-capitalization stocks, involve higher risks in some respects than do investments in securities of larger companies. Small-cap and micro-cap stocks typically involve greater risks of loss and price fluctuations because their earnings and revenues tend to be less predictable, their share prices tend to be more volatile, and their markets less liquid than stocks of companies with larger market capitalizations.
- Emerging Markets Risk. Investing in securities of companies based in emerging countries or issued by the governments of such countries involves certain considerations not usually associated with investing in securities of developed countries or of companies located in developed countries, including political and economic considerations. In addition, accounting and financial reporting standards that prevail in certain of such countries generally are not equivalent to standards in more developed countries and, consequently, less information is available to investors in companies located in more developed countries. There also is less regulation, generally, of the securities markets in emerging countries than there is in more developed countries.
- LIBOR Risk. Certain instruments in which the Fund invests have historically relied upon the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"), the average offered interest rate for various maturities of short-term loans between certain major international banks. Regulators have determined to phase out LIBOR and have announced that, with limited exceptions, no new LIBOR-based contracts should be entered into after 2021. As of June 30, 2023, the administrator of LIBOR ceased publication of U.S. dollar LIBOR settings. Alternative reference rates have been established in most major currencies and various financial industry groups are assisting, or have already assisted, with the transition to new rates. Any potential effects of the transition away from LIBOR on the Fund or on certain instruments in which the Fund invests can be difficult to ascertain, and they may vary depending on factors that include, but are not limited to: (i) existing fallback or termination provisions in individual contracts; (ii) whether, how, and when industry participants develop and adopt new reference rates and fallbacks for both legacy and new products and instruments; and (iii) the development of liquid markets for newly-issued instruments that use an alternative reference rate. For example, certain of the Fund's investments may involve individual contracts that have no existing fallback provision or language that contemplates the discontinuation of LIBOR, and those investments could experience increased volatility or illiquidity as a result of the transition process. In addition, interest rate provisions included in relevant contracts or other arrangements entered into by the Fund, may need to be renegotiated. The LIBOR transition may result in a reduction in the value of certain instruments held by the Fund, a change in the cost of borrowing or the dividend rate for any preferred shares that may be issued by the Fund, or a reduction in the effectiveness of related Fund transactions such as hedges. Any such effects of the transition, as well as other unforeseen effects, could result in losses to the Fund.
- Cybersecurity Risk. The Fund is susceptible to operational and information security risks relating to technologies such as the Internet. Cyber incidents affecting the Fund or its service providers have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses, impediments to trading, the inability of the Fund to transact business, violations of applicable privacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, or additional compliance costs. Similar adverse consequences could result from cyber incidents affecting the Fund investments, counterparties with which the Fund engages in transactions, governmental and other regulatory authorities, banks, brokers, dealers, insurance companies and other financial institutions. In addition, substantial costs may be incurred in order to prevent cyber incidents in the future.

• Inflation/Deflation Risk. Inflation risk is the risk that the value of assets or income from investments will be less in the future as inflation decreases the value of money. Inflation, and investors' expectation of future inflation, can impact the current value of portfolio investments, resulting in lower asset values and losses to Fund investors. Inflation rates may change frequently and drastically as a result of various factors, including unexpected shifts in the domestic or global economy, and the Fund's investments may not keep pace with inflation, which may result in losses to Fund shareholders or adversely affect the real value of investments in the Fund. This risk may be elevated compared to historical market conditions because of the historically high prevailing inflation rates, recent current events, monetary policy measures, regulatory changes, and the current interest rate environment. Deflation risk is the risk that the prices throughout the economy decline over time—the opposite of inflation. Deflation may have an adverse effect on the creditworthiness of issuers and may make issuer default more likely, which may result in a decline in the value of the Fund's portfolio.
You should invest in the Fund only if you can sustain a complete loss of your investment. An investment in the Fund should be viewed only as part of an overall investment program. No assurance can be given that the Fund's investment program will be successful.

SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES

The following table summarizes the expenses of the Fund and is intended to assist shareholders and potential investors in understanding the various costs and expenses that they will bear, directly or indirectly, by investing in the Fund. Each figure below relates to a percentage of the Fund's daily NAV over the course of a year. The following table has been prepared under the assumption that the weighted average net assets over a fiscal year will be approximately \$2.7 billion, which is the Fund's net assets as of March 31, 2023. The total expenses associated with the Fund are higher than those of other types of funds that do not invest primarily in other investment vehicles. This is because the shareholders of the Fund pay the Investment Management Fee to the Adviser and also pay the fees and expenses charged by the Private Funds (indirectly) and Sub-Advisers acting as sub-advisers, to the extent the assets of the Fund are invested in Private Funds or have been allocated to Sub-Advisers acting as sub-advisers.

	Shares
Shareholder Transaction Expenses	
Maximum Sales Load (percentage of offering price)(1)	None
Dividend Reinvestment Fees	None
Maximum Early Withdrawal Charge	None
Annual Fund Operating Expenses (as a percentage of net assets attributable to Shares) ⁽²⁾	
Management Fees ⁽³⁾ .	1.04%
Other Expenses ⁽⁴⁾	0.14%
Interest Payments on Borrowed Funds ⁽⁵⁾	0.17%
Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses ⁽⁶⁾	0.00%
Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses ⁽⁷⁾ .	1.35%

- (1) The Shares are not subject to a Sales Load.
- (2) Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses represent the Fund's expenses estimated based on the Fund's net assets as of March 31, 2023. The Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses do not include the indirect costs of the underlying Other Private Funds, as discussed further in footnote 6 below.
- (3) Management Fees include the Investment Management Fee paid to the Adviser at an annual rate of 0.95% of NAV, which accrues daily and is payable quarterly in arrears. Management Fees also include fees and expenses of the Sub-Advisers in their capacity as sub-advisers. That portion of the management fees, 0.09%, has been restated to reflect current fees based on the amount of assets managed by the Sub-Advisers at the Fund's fiscal year ended March 31, 2023. The fees such Sub-Advisers charge the Fund are based on the Sub-Adviser's sub-advisory agreement. The Management Fees paid to a Sub-Adviser in its capacity as a sub-adviser are assessed on a sliding scale and ranging from 1.0% down to 0.45% based on assets under management and is payable in arrears on a monthly or quarterly basis. Based upon the assumptions above, this translates to a weighted average fee of approximately 0.58% of the allocable portion of the Fund's assets managed by such Sub-Advisers.
- (4) "Other Expenses" are estimated based on the Fund's net assets as of March 31, 2023. Such estimated expenses of the Fund, including, among other things, fees and other expenses that the Fund will bear directly, the Fund's ongoing offering costs, and fees and expenses of certain service providers, will vary. The Fund's annual expense ratio will increase if the Fund's asset level decreases. Given the variability in the Fund's Other Expenses, the Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses may increase as a percentage of the Fund's average net assets if the Fund's assets decrease. Actual fees and expenses may be greater or less than those shown. See "Management of the Fund Other Expenses of the Fund."
- (5) Assumes interest expense accrued at the estimated rate of 6.0% on the estimated average borrowed funds used to employ leverage for the current fiscal year. The actual amount of borrowing costs borne by the Fund will vary over time based on the Fund's use of borrowings and variations in market interest rates. The Fund's interest expense, and therefore its borrowing costs, will increase in a rising interest rate environment.
- (6) Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses ("AFFE") include certain of the fees and expenses incurred indirectly by the Fund as a result of investment in shares of investment companies (including short-term cash sweep vehicles) and certain Private Funds. Although the Private Funds are not investment companies registered pursuant to the Investment Company Act, some of the fund structures may be 3(c)(1)/3(c)(7) Funds (which, for the avoidance of doubt, but for Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) would meet the definition of investment company under the Investment Company Act and not qualify for any other exemption) while many others are Other Private Funds that would not be investment companies for reasons other than the exemptions in Sections 3(c)(1) and 3(c)(7). AFFE includes certain of the fees and expenses, such as management fees (including performance fees, where applicable), audit, and legal expenses ("Operating Costs"), incurred indirectly by the Fund through its investments in 3(c)(1)/3(c)(7) Funds (based on information provided by the managers of such 3(c)(1)/3(c)(7) Funds), but excludes the Operating Costs incurred by the Fund through its investments in Other Private Funds. The calculation of AFFE is based on the Fund's net assets of \$2.7 billion at March 31, 2023 and assumes investments in 3(c)(1)/3(c)(7) Funds of 0% of the Fund's net assets, which is the Fund's actual March 31, 2023 allocation. These allocations may change substantially over time and such changes may significantly affect AFFE. As of March 31, 2023, approximately 85% of the Fund's net assets were invested in Other Private Funds. If the estimated Operating Costs of such Other Private Funds (which equal approximately 0.76% of the Fund's net assets) were included in AFFE, the Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses would equal 2.11%.
- (7) The Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses provides a summary of all the direct fees and expenses of the Fund, but exclude the operating costs of the Other Private Funds. See footnote 6.

Example

The following example illustrates the hypothetical Annual Fund Operating Expenses that you would pay on a \$1,000 investment in the Fund assuming a 5% return and that annual expenses attributable to Shares remain unchanged. The example assumes that you invest \$1,000 in the Fund for the time periods indicated and then redeem all of your Shares at the end of those periods. The example does not present actual expenses and should not be considered a representation of future expenses. Actual Fund expenses may be greater or less than those shown.

1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
\$14	\$43	\$75	\$163

The purpose of the tables above is to assist you in understanding the various costs and expenses you would bear directly or indirectly as a shareholder of the Fund. For a more complete description of the various costs and expenses of the Fund. See "Management of the Fund."

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The information in the table below for the Fund's Common Shares (formerly "I-Shares") for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023, 2022, 2021, 2020, and 2019 is derived from the Fund's financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 audited by Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, whose report on such financial statements is contained in the Fund's March 31, 2023 Annual Report and is incorporated by reference into the Statement of Additional Information.

	Year Ended March 31, 2023	Year Ended March 31, 2022	Year Ended March 31, 2021	Year Ended March 31, 2020	Year Ended March 31, 2019
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Year	\$ 31.42	\$ 27.57	\$ 26.95	\$ 28.22	\$ 27.70
Net investment income ^(a)	0.55	0.56	0.56	0.67	0.77
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)	(2.58)	5.20	1.12	(0.74)	0.99
Total from investment operations	(2.03)	5.76	1.68	(0.07)	1.76
Less Distributions to Shareholders from:					
Distribution from Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gains	(0.62)	(1.82) ^(b)	(0.86)	(0.73)	(0.79)
Return of Capital	(0.54)	(0.09)	(0.20)	(0.47)	(0.45)
Total Distributions	(1.16)	(1.91)	(1.06)	(1.20)	(1.24)
Net Asset Value, End of Year	\$ 28.23	\$ 31.42	\$ 27.57	\$ 26.95	\$ 28.22
Total Return Based on Net Asset Value	(5.92)%	21.04%	6.00%	(0.27%)	6.70%
Net Assets at end of period (000's)	\$2,723,823	\$3,213,495	\$ 2,496,261	\$2,965,212	\$2,797,314
Ratios of gross expenses to average net assets	1.25%	1.24%	1.20%		1.17%
Ratios of net expenses to average net assets	1.25%	1.24%	1.20%	1.19%	1.17%
Ratios of net investment income to average					
net assets	1.81%	1.90%	2.09%		2.77%
Portfolio turnover rate	24.11%	33.66%	26.19%	15.77%	13.48%

⁽a) Per Share amounts are calculated based on average outstanding shares.

⁽b) Includes one-time distribution of net realized gains of \$0.74 per share paid on December 29, 2021.

The information in the table below for the Fund's Common Shares (formerly "I-Shares") for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014, is derived from the Fund's financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018.

	Year Ended March 31, 2018	Year Ended March 31, 2017	Year Ended March 31, 2016	Year Ended March 31, 2015	Year Ended March 31, 2014
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Year	\$ 27.52	\$ 27.30	\$ 26.47	\$ 25.47	\$ 25.83
Income from Investment Operations:					
Net investment income ^(a)	0.65	0.67	0.65	0.64	0.67
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)	0.79	0.85	1.46	1.62	0.22
Total from investment operations	1.44	1.52	2.11	2.26	0.89
Less Distributions to Shareholders from:					
Distribution from Net Investment Income	(0.61)	(0.75)	(0.39)	(0.95)	(0.73)
Return of Capital	(0.65)	(0.55)	(0.89)	(0.31)	(0.52)
Total Distributions	(1.26)	(1.30)	(1.28)	(1.26)	(1.25)
Net Asset Value, End of Year	\$ 27.70	\$ 27.52	\$ 27.30	\$ 26.47	\$ 25.47
Total return based on net asset value	5.32%	5.79%	8.58%	8.74%	3.56%
Ratios and Supplemental Data					
Net Assets at end of period (000's)	\$2,184,488	\$ 1,390,152	\$ 688,906	\$ 156,577	\$ 47,512
Ratios of gross expenses to average net assets	1.24%	1.27%	1.35%	1.89%	3.30%
Ratios of net expenses to average net assets	1.24%	1.27%	1.34%	1.46%	1.30%
Ratios of net investment income to average					
net assets	2.37%	2.45%	2.44%	2.50%	2.68%
Portfolio turnover rate	13.03%	24.97%	20.93%	39.83%	62.38%

⁽a) Per Share amounts are calculated based on average outstanding shares.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Fund is subject to a high degree of risk. Risks of investing in the Fund are described below. For purposes of this section, references to "the Adviser" and "the Fund" should be read to include the Sub-Advisers and the Private Funds, respectively, as applicable. You should consider carefully the risks before investing in the Shares. You may also wish to consult with your legal and tax advisors before deciding whether to invest in the Fund.

Real Estate-Related Securities Risk

The Fund will not invest in real estate directly, but will invest in real estate-related debt, consisting of mezzanine and first mortgage debt, and directly in real estate through entities that qualify as REITs or investment vehicles treated similarly as private REITs for tax purposes. In general, real estate values can be affected by a variety of factors, including supply and demand for properties, the economic health of the country or of different regions, and the strength of specific industries that rent properties. REIT share prices may decline because of adverse developments affecting the real estate industry and real property values.

The following risks may affect real estate markets generally or specific assets and include, without limitation, general economic and social climate, regional and local real estate conditions, the supply of and demand for properties, the financial resources of tenants, competition for tenants from other available properties, the ability of the Private Funds to manage the real properties, changes in building, environmental, tax or other applicable laws, changes in real property tax rates, changes in interest rates, negative developments in the economy that depress travel activity, uninsured casualties, acts of God and other factors which are beyond the control of the Fund and the Adviser. Furthermore, changes in interest rates or the availability of debt may render the investment in real estate assets difficult or unattractive. The possibility of partial or total loss of capital will exist and investors should not subscribe unless they can readily bear the consequences of such loss. Many of these factors could cause fluctuations in occupancy rates, rent schedules or operating expenses, resulting in a negative effect on the value of real estate assets. Valuation of real estate assets may fluctuate. The capital value of the Fund's investments may be significantly diminished in the event of a downward turn in real estate market prices.

Moreover, certain expenditures associated with real estate, such as taxes, debt service, maintenance costs and insurance, tend to increase over time and, in most cases, are not decreased by events adversely affecting rental revenues such as an unforeseen downturn in the real estate market, a lack of investor confidence in the market or a softening of demand. Thus, the cost of operating a property may exceed the rental income thereof. Insurance to cover losses and general liability in respect of properties may not be available or may be available only at prohibitive costs to cover losses from ongoing operations and other risks such as terrorism, earthquake, flood or environmental contamination. Even with comprehensive insurance to permit replacement in the event of total loss, certain types of losses are uninsurable or are not economically insurable, and the Fund will have no control over whether such insurance is maintained by the issuers in which it invests.

The Fund will invest in commercial real estate loans, mortgage loans, CMBS, B-Notes, mezzanine loans, and other similar types of investments. Certain factors may affect materially and adversely the market price and yield of such debt securities, including investor demand, changes in the financial condition of the borrower, government fiscal policy and domestic or worldwide economic conditions. Commercial real estate loans are secured by multifamily or commercial property and are subject to risks of delinquency and foreclosure. The ability of a borrower to repay a loan secured by an income-producing property typically is dependent primarily upon the successful operation of such property rather than upon the existence of independent income or assets of the borrower. If the net operating income of the property is reduced, the borrower's ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Net operating income of an income-producing property can be affected by, among other things: tenant mix, success of tenant businesses, property management decisions, property location and condition, competition from comparable types of properties, changes in laws that increase operating expenses or limit rents that may be charged, any need to address environmental contamination at the property, the occurrence of any uninsured casualty at the property, changes in national, regional or local economic conditions and/or specific industry segments, declines in regional or local real estate values, declines in regional or local rental or occupancy rates, increases in interest rates, real estate tax rates and other operating expenses, and changes in governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies, including environmental legislation, natural disasters, terrorism, social unrest and civil disturbances.

In the event of any default under a mortgage loan held by the Fund, the Fund will bear a risk of loss of principal to the extent of any deficiency between the value of the collateral and the principal and accrued interest of the mortgage loan, which could have a material adverse effect on the Fund's cash flow from operations. In the event of a default by a borrower on a non-recourse loan, the only recourse for the holder of that investment will be to the underlying asset (including any escrowed funds and reserves) collateralizing the loan. If a borrower defaults on a commercial real estate loan and the underlying asset collateralizing the commercial real estate loan is insufficient to satisfy the outstanding balance of the commercial real estate loan, this may cause a loss of principal or interest for the Fund. In addition, even if with recourse to a borrower's assets, there may not be full recourse to such assets in the event of a borrower bankruptcy.

Foreclosure of a mortgage loan can be an expensive and lengthy process that could have a substantial negative effect on anticipated returns on the foreclosed mortgage loan. In the event of the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrower will be deemed to be secured only to the extent of the value of the underlying collateral at the time of bankruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy court), and the lien securing the mortgage loan will be subject to the avoidance powers of the bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-possession to the extent the lien is unenforceable under state law.

If the Fund makes or invests in mortgage loans and there are defaults under those mortgage loans, the Fund may not be able to repossess and sell the underlying properties in a timely manner. The resulting time delay could reduce the value of the investment in the defaulted mortgage loans. An action to foreclose on a property securing a mortgage loan is regulated by state statutes and regulations and is subject to many of the delays and expenses of other lawsuits if the defendant raises defenses or counterclaims. In the event of default by a mortgagor, these restrictions, among other things, may impede the Fund's ability to foreclose on or sell the mortgaged property or to obtain proceeds sufficient to repay all amounts due to the Fund on the mortgage loan.

B-Notes. The Fund may invest in B-Notes. A B-Note is a mortgage loan typically (i) secured by a first mortgage on a single large commercial property or group of related properties and (ii) subordinated to an A-Note secured by the same first mortgage on the same collateral. As a result, if a borrower defaults, there may not be sufficient funds remaining for B-Note holders after payment to the A-Note holders. Since each transaction is privately negotiated, B-Notes can vary in their structural characteristics and risks. For example, the rights of holders of B-Notes to control the process following a borrower default may be limited in certain investments. The Fund cannot predict the terms of each B-Note investment and does not have control over the terms of the investments held by a Private Fund. Further, B-Notes typically are secured by a single property, and so reflect the increased risks associated with a single property compared to a pool of properties.

Mezzanine Loans. The Fund may invest in mezzanine loans that take the form of subordinated loans secured by a pledge of the ownership interests of either the entity owning the real property or an entity that owns (directly or indirectly) the interest in the entity owning the real property. These types of investments may involve a higher degree of risk than long-term senior mortgage lending secured by income-producing real property because the investment may become unsecured as a result of foreclosure by the senior lender. In the event of a bankruptcy of the entity providing the pledge of its ownership interests as security, the Fund may not have full recourse to the assets of such entity, or the assets of the entity may not be sufficient to satisfy the Fund's mezzanine loan. If a borrower defaults on the Fund's mezzanine loan or debt senior to the Fund's loan, or in the event of a borrower bankruptcy, the Fund's mezzanine loan will be satisfied only after the senior debt. As a result, the Fund may not recover some or all of the Fund's investment. In addition, mezzanine loans may have higher loan-to-value ratios than conventional mortgage loans, resulting in less equity in the real property and increasing the risk of loss of principal.

The Fund may acquire interests in subordinated loans and invest in subordinated mortgage-backed securities. In the event a borrower defaults on a subordinated loan and lacks sufficient assets to satisfy the Fund's loan, there may be a loss of principal or interest. In the event a borrower declares bankruptcy, the holder of the investment may not have full recourse to the assets of the borrower, or the assets of the borrower may not be sufficient to satisfy the loan.

In general, losses on a mortgage loan included in a securitization will be borne first by the equity holder of the property, then by a cash reserve fund or letter of credit, if any, and then by the "first loss" subordinated security holder. In the event of default and the exhaustion of any equity support, reserve fund, letter of credit and any classes of securities junior to those in which held by the Fund, the Fund may not be able to recover all of the Fund's investment in the securities purchased. In addition, if the underlying mortgage portfolio has been overvalued by the originator, or if the values subsequently decline and, as a result, less collateral is available to satisfy interest and principal payments due on the related mortgage-backed securities, the securities in which the Fund may effectively become the "first loss" position behind the more senior securities, which may result in significant losses to the Fund.

Investments in commercial real estate loans are subject to changes in credit spreads. When credit spreads widen, the economic value of such investments decrease. Even though a loan may be performing in accordance with its loan

agreement and the underlying collateral has not changed, the economic value of the loan may be negatively impacted by the incremental interest foregone from the widened credit spread.

Investment in long-term fixed rate debt securities will decline in value if long-term interest rates increase. Additionally, investments in floating-rate debt will be impacted by decreases in interest rates that may have a negative effect on value and interest income. Declines in market value may ultimately reduce earnings or result in losses to the Fund, which may negatively affect cash available for distribution to shareholders.

The decline in the broader credit markets related to the sub-prime mortgage dislocation has caused the global financial markets to become more volatile and the United States homebuilding market has been dramatically impacted as a result. The confluence of the dislocation in the real estate credit markets with the broad based stress in the United States real estate industry could create a difficult operating environment for owners of real estate in the near term and investors should be aware that the general risks of the Fund investing in real estate may be magnified.

Mortgage-Backed Securities. The Fund will invest in mortgage-backed securities on commercial real estate. A mortgage-backed security is an obligation of the issuer backed by a mortgage or pool of mortgages or a direct interest in an underlying pool of mortgages. Some mortgage-backed securities make payments of both principal and interest at a variety of intervals; others make semi-annual interest payments at a predetermined rate and repay principal at maturity (like a typical bond). Mortgage-backed securities often have stated maturities of up to thirty years when they are issued, depending upon the length of the mortgages underlying the securities. Investing in mortgage-backed securities involves certain risks, including the failure of a counterparty to meet its commitments, adverse interest rate changes and the effects of prepayments on mortgage cash flows. The yield characteristics of mortgage-backed securities differ from those of traditional fixed income securities. The major differences typically include more frequent interest and principal payments (usually monthly), the adjustability of interest rates of the underlying instrument, and the possibility that prepayments of principal may be made substantially earlier than their final distribution dates. The Fund may also hold mortgage-related securities without insurance or guarantees if the Adviser determines that the securities meet the Fund's quality standards. Mortgage-related securities issued by certain private organizations may not be readily marketable. Mortgage-backed securities may have less potential for capital appreciation than comparable fixed income securities, due to the likelihood of increased prepayments of mortgages as interest rates decline. If the Fund buys mortgage-backed securities at a premium, mortgage foreclosures and prepayments of principal by mortgagors (which may be made at any time without penalty) may result in some loss of the Fund's principal investment to the extent of the premium paid.

Prepayment rates are influenced by changes in current interest rates and a variety of economic, geographic, social and other factors and cannot be predicted with certainty. Both adjustable rate mortgage loans and fixed rate mortgage loans may be subject to a greater rate of principal prepayments in a declining interest rate environment and to a lesser rate of principal prepayments in an increasing interest rate environment. Under certain interest rate and prepayment rate scenarios, the Fund may fail to recoup fully its investment in mortgage-backed securities notwithstanding any direct or indirect governmental, agency or other guarantee. When the Fund reinvests amounts representing payments and unscheduled prepayments of principal, it may obtain a rate of interest that is lower than the rate on existing adjustable rate mortgage pass-through securities. Thus, mortgage-backed securities may be less effective than other types of U.S. government securities as a means of "locking in" interest rates.

The value of mortgage-backed securities may also change due to shifts in the market's perception of issuers and regulatory or tax changes adversely affecting the mortgage securities market as a whole. Mortgage-backed securities are also subject to several risks created through the securitization process. Subordinate mortgage-backed securities are paid interest only to the extent that there are funds available to make payments. To the extent the collateral pool includes delinquent loans, there is a risk that the interest payment on subordinate mortgage-backed securities will not be fully paid. Subordinate mortgage-backed securities are also subject to greater credit risk than those mortgage-backed securities that are more highly rated. In addition, regulatory or tax changes may adversely affect the mortgage securities markets as a whole. Non-governmental mortgage-backed securities may offer higher yields than those issued by government entities, but also may be subject to greater price changes than governmental issues.

Through its investments in mortgage-backed securities, including those that are issued by private issuers, the Fund may have exposure to subprime loans as well as to the mortgage and credit markets generally. Private issuers include commercial banks, savings associations, mortgage companies, investment banking firms, finance companies and special purpose finance entities and other entities that acquire and package mortgage loans for resale as mortgage-backed securities. Unlike mortgage-backed securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or one of its sponsored entities, mortgage-backed securities issued by private issuers do not have a government or government-

sponsored entity guarantee, but may have credit enhancement provided by external entities such as banks or financial institutions or achieved through the structuring of the transaction itself.

In addition, mortgage-backed securities that are issued by private issuers are not subject to the underwriting requirements for the underlying mortgages that are applicable to those mortgage-backed securities that have a government or government-sponsored entity guarantee. As a result, the mortgage loans underlying private mortgage-backed securities may, and frequently do, have less favorable collateral, credit risk or other underwriting characteristics than government or government-sponsored mortgage-backed securities and have wider variances in a number of terms including interest rate, term, size, purpose and borrower characteristics. Privately issued pools more frequently include second mortgages, high loan-to-value mortgages and manufactured housing loans. The coupon rates and maturities of the underlying mortgage loans in a private mortgage-backed securities pool may vary to a greater extent than those included in a government guaranteed pool, and the pool may include subprime mortgage loans. Subprime loans refer to loans made to borrowers with weakened credit histories or with a lower capacity to make timely payments on their loans. For these reasons, the loans underlying these securities have had in many cases higher default rates than those loans that meet government underwriting requirements.

The risk of non-payment is greater for mortgage-backed securities that are backed by mortgage pools that contain subprime loans, but a level of risk exists for all loans. Market factors adversely affecting mortgage loan repayments may include a general economic turndown, high unemployment, a general slowdown in the real estate market, a drop in the market prices of real estate, or an increase in interest rates resulting in higher mortgage payments by holders of adjustable rate mortgages.

Liquidity Risk

The Fund will invest a substantial portion of its assets in restricted securities and other investments that are illiquid. Restricted securities are securities that may not be sold to the public without an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, or, if they are unregistered, may be sold only in a privately negotiated transaction or pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Where registration is required to sell a security, the Fund may be obligated to pay all or part of the registration expenses, and a considerable period may elapse between the decision to sell and the time the Fund may be permitted to sell a security under an effective registration statement. If during such a period adverse market conditions were to develop, the Fund might obtain a less favorable price than the prevailing price when it decided to sell. The Fund may be unable to sell restricted and other illiquid securities at the most opportune times or at attractive prices or at prices approximating the value at which it purchased such securities. The Fund's portfolio may include a number of investments for which no market exists and which have substantial restrictions on transferability.

Additionally, the Fund's repurchase process could involve substantial complications and delays, as the ability of the Fund to honor repurchase requests is dependent in part upon the Fund's ability to make withdrawals from Private Funds which may be delayed, suspended altogether or not possible because, among other reasons, (i) many Private Funds permit withdrawals only on an infrequent basis, which timing is not likely to coincide with the repurchase dates of the Fund, (ii) some Private Funds may impose limits (known as "gates") on the aggregate amount that a shareholder or all shareholders in the Private Fund may withdraw on any single withdrawal date, and (iii) the Private Funds' portfolios may include investments that are difficult to value and that may only be able to be disposed of at substantial discounts or losses.

In addition, the Fund's interests in the Private Funds are subject to substantial restrictions on transfer. The Fund may liquidate an interest and withdraw from a Private Fund pursuant to limited withdrawal rights. Some Private Funds may subject the Fund to a lockup period or otherwise suspend the repurchase rights of their shareholders, including the Fund, from time to time. Further, Private Fund managers may impose transfer restrictions on the Fund's interests. There may be no secondary market for the Fund's interests in the Private Funds. The illiquidity of these interests may adversely affect the Fund were it to have to sell interests at an inopportune time. Overall, the types of restrictions on investments by the Private Funds affect the Fund's ability to invest in, hold, vote the shares of, or sell the Private Funds. Furthermore, the Fund, upon its withdrawal of all or a portion of its interest in a Private Fund, may receive an in-kind distribution of securities that are illiquid or difficult to value and difficult to dispose of.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer, guarantor or liquidity provider of a fixed-income security held by the Fund may be unable or unwilling, or may be perceived (whether by market participants, ratings agencies, pricing services or otherwise) as unable or unwilling, to make timely principal and/or interest payments, or to otherwise honor its obligations. It includes the risk that the security will be downgraded by a credit rating agency; generally, lower credit quality issuers present higher credit risks. An actual or perceived decline in creditworthiness of an issuer of a fixed-income security held by the Fund may result in a decrease in the value of the security. It is possible that the ability of an issuer to meet its obligations will decline substantially during the period when the Fund owns securities of the issuer or that the issuer will default on its obligations or that the obligations of the issuer will be limited or restructured.

The credit rating assigned to any particular investment does not necessarily reflect the issuer's current financial condition and does not reflect an assessment of an investment's volatility or liquidity. Securities rated in the lowest category of investment-grade are considered to have speculative characteristics. If a security held by the Fund loses its rating or its rating is downgraded, the Fund may nonetheless continue to hold the security in the discretion of the Adviser.

Active Management Risk

Identifying the appropriate investment strategies, Sub-Advisers, and Private Funds is difficult and involves a high degree of uncertainty. The performance of the Fund depends in large part upon the ability of the Adviser to choose successful Managers and upon the ability of the Adviser and the Managers to develop and implement investment strategies that achieve the Fund's investment objective. Although the Adviser monitors the Managers, it is possible that one or more Managers may take substantial positions in the same instruments or markets at the same time, thereby interfering with the Fund's investment goals. In addition, Managers may make investment decisions that conflict with each other; for example, at any particular time, one Manager may be purchasing shares of an issuer whose shares are being sold by another Manager. Consequently, the Fund indirectly could incur transaction costs without accomplishing any net investment result.

Furthermore, the Managers have varying levels of experience – some may be newly organized and have no, or limited, operating histories. Although the Adviser receives detailed information from each Manager regarding its historical performance and investment strategy, there may be some information that the Adviser cannot independently verify. In addition, a particular Manager's past successful performance is not necessarily an indication of such Manager's future performance. There can be no assurance that the Adviser's assessments of Managers will prove accurate or that the Fund will achieve its investment objective.

In addition, Managers, like other Fund service providers, are subject to various risks, including risks relating to operations and back office functions, property management, accounting, administration, risk management, valuation services and reporting. Managers may also face competition from other industry participants that may be more established, have larger asset bases and have larger numbers of qualified management and technical personnel. Additionally, the investment strategies pursued by certain Managers may evolve over time, which may limit the Adviser's ability to assess a Manager's ability to achieve its long-term investment objective.

While the Fund and the Adviser will evaluate regularly each Private Fund and its Manager and each Sub-Adviser to determine whether their respective investment programs are consistent with the Fund's investment objectives and whether the investment performance is satisfactory, the Adviser will not have any control over the investments made by a Private Fund and limited control over the investments made the Sub-Advisers. A Sub-Adviser's judgments about the attractiveness, relative value, or potential appreciation of a particular sector, security, or investment strategy may prove to be incorrect, and may cause the Fund to incur losses.

Even though Private Funds are subject to certain constraints, the Managers may change aspects of their investment strategies without prior notice to the Fund. The Managers may do so at any time (for example, such change may occur immediately after providing the Adviser with the quarterly unaudited financial information for the Private Fund). The Adviser may reallocate the Fund's investments among the Private Funds, but the Adviser's ability to do so may be constrained by the withdrawal limitations imposed by the Private Funds. The Fund's investments in certain Private Funds may be subject to lock-up periods, during which the Fund may not withdraw its investment. These withdrawal limitations may prevent the Fund from reacting rapidly to market changes should a Private Fund fail to effect portfolio changes consistent with such market changes and the demands of the Adviser. Such withdrawal limitations may also restrict the Adviser's ability to terminate investments in Private Funds that are poorly performing or have otherwise

had adverse changes. The Adviser will engage in due diligence in an effort to ensure that the Fund's assets are invested in Private Funds that provide reports that will enable them to monitor the Fund's investments as to their overall performance, sources of income, asset valuations, and liabilities; however, there is no assurance that such efforts will necessarily detect fraud, malfeasance, inadequate back office systems, or other flaws or problems with respect to the Private Fund's operations and activities. The Adviser will be dependent on information provided by the Private Fund, including quarterly unaudited financial statements, which if inaccurate could adversely affect the Adviser's ability to manage the Fund's investment portfolio in accordance with its investment objectives.

Conflicts of interest may arise from the fact that the Adviser, the Managers and their affiliates may be carrying on substantial investment activities for other clients in which the Fund has no interest. The Adviser, the Managers, and their respective affiliates manage the assets of and/or provide advice to registered investment companies, private investment funds and individual accounts (collectively, "Adviser Clients") other than the Fund, which could compete for the same investment opportunities as the Fund. In addition, the Adviser, the Managers and their respective affiliates, and any of their respective officers, directors, partners, members or employees, may invest for their own accounts in various investment opportunities, including in private investment funds, private investment companies or other investment vehicles in which the Fund will have no interest. The Adviser, the Managers and their respective affiliates may determine that an investment opportunity in a particular investment vehicle is appropriate for a particular Adviser Client or for themselves or their officers, directors, partners, members or employees, but not for the Fund. Situations may arise in which the Adviser, the Managers and/or their respective affiliates or Adviser Clients have made investments that would have been suitable for investment by the Fund but, for various reasons, were not pursued by, or available to, the Fund. The investment activities of the Adviser, the Managers and their respective affiliates and any of their respective officers, directors, partners, members or employees may disadvantage the Fund in certain situations, if, among other reasons, the investment activities limit the Fund's ability to invest.

Furthermore, the officers or employees of the Adviser will be engaged in substantial activities other than on behalf of the Fund and may have conflicts of interest in allocating their time and activity among the Fund and Adviser Clients. The Adviser and its respective officers and employees will devote so much of their time to the affairs of the Fund as in their judgment is necessary and appropriate.

Personnel of the Adviser may also periodically discuss investment research and due diligence with portfolio managers and other senior personnel of the Managers and/or their respective affiliates. Investment decisions for the Fund are made independently from those of Adviser Clients. If, however, the Fund desires to invest in, or withdraw from, the same Private Fund as an Adviser Client, the opportunity will be allocated equitably. Decisions in this regard are necessarily subjective and there is no requirement that the Fund participate, or participate to the same extent as the Adviser Clients, in all available investments. In some cases, investments for Adviser Clients may be on terms different from, and sometimes more favorable than, an investment made on behalf of the Fund. In addition, the Adviser, the Managers and/or their respective affiliates or Adviser Clients may also have an interest in an account or investment vehicle managed by, or enter into relationships with, a Sub-Adviser or its affiliates on terms different, and potentially more favorable, than an interest in the Fund, which may adversely affect the amount the Fund will be able to invest in a Private Fund. In other cases, the Fund may invest in a manner opposite to that of Adviser Clients (i.e., the Fund buying an investment when Adviser Clients are selling, and vice-versa). Additionally, because any selling agents or their affiliates may provide brokerage, placement, investment banking and other financial or advisory services from time to time to one or more accounts or entities managed by the Managers or their affiliates, including the Private Funds, and receive compensation for providing these services, these relationships could preclude the Fund from engaging in certain transactions and could constrain the Fund's investment flexibility. In addition, the Fund is subject to certain limitations relating to joint transactions with affiliates, which in certain circumstances will limit the Fund's ability to make investments or enter into other transactions alongside other Adviser Clients. There can be no assurance that such regulatory restrictions will not adversely affect the Fund's ability to capitalize on attractive investment opportunities. Managers may also receive research products and services in connection with the brokerage services that the Adviser, the Managers managing Private Funds, the Sub-Advisers acting as sub-advisers, and their respective affiliates may provide from time to time to one or more Manager accounts or to the Fund.

In addition, there may be a conflict of interest as a result of the fact that the Adviser receives the Investment Management Fee irrespective of the allocation of the Fund's assets. This conflict of interest arises because the amount of overall time, expense, and other resources expended to select and monitor Sub-Advisers may be less than what is expended to select and monitor underlying Private Funds. If the overall time, expense, and other resources expended by the Adviser to select and monitor Sub-Advisers of the Fund is less than what the Adviser expends to select and monitor Private Funds, the Adviser will have an incentive to allocate more of the Fund's assets to Sub-Advisers. The

Board monitors this potential conflict of interest and any effect it may have on the Fund and its shareholders. Under normal circumstances, the Adviser does not believe that its overall cost and expense will differ materially between selecting and monitoring Private Funds on the one hand, or in compensating Sub-Advisers, on the other.

Interest Rate Risk

A wide variety of factors can cause interest rates or yields of U.S. Treasury securities or other types of bonds to rise (e.g., central bank monetary policies, inflation rates, general economic conditions, reduced market demand for low yielding investments, etc.). The U.S. Federal Reserve has been raising interest rates in light of recent inflationary pressures and interest rates may continue to increase rapidly. Thus, the Fund currently faces a heightened level of risk associated with rising interest rates and/or bond yields. Interest rate increases may result in a decline in the value of the fixed income or other investments held by the Fund that move inversely to interest rates. A decline in the value of such investments would result in a decline in the Fund's NAV. Additionally, further changes in interest rates could result in additional volatility and could cause Fund shareholders to tender their Shares for repurchase at its regularly scheduled repurchase intervals. The Fund may need to liquidate portfolio investments at disadvantageous prices in order to meet such repurchases. Further increases in interest rates could also cause dealers in fixed income securities to reduce their market making activity, thereby reducing liquidity in these markets. To the extent the Fund holds fixed income securities or other securities that behave similarly to fixed income securities, the longer the maturity dates are for such securities will result in a higher likelihood of a decrease in value during periods of rising interest rates.

Leverage Risk

There are significant risks associated with borrowings and leverage. Leverage is a speculative technique that may expose the Fund to greater risk and increased costs. Investors in the Fund should consider the various risks of leverage, including, without limitation, the risks described below. There is no assurance that a leveraging strategy would be successful.

Leverage involves risks and special considerations for shareholders including:

- the likelihood of greater volatility of NAV of the Shares, and of the investment return to shareholders, than a comparable portfolio without leverage;
- the risk that fluctuations in interest rates on borrowings and short-term debt that the Fund must pay will reduce the return to the shareholders;
- the effect of leverage in a declining market or a rising interest rate environment, which would likely cause a greater decline in the NAV of the Shares than if the Fund were not leveraged;
- the potential for an increase in operating costs, which may reduce the Fund's total return; and
- the possibility either that dividends will fall if the interest and other costs of leverage rise, or that dividends paid on Shares will fluctuate because such costs vary over time.

In the event that the Fund would be required to sell assets at a loss, including in order to redeem or pay off any borrowing, such a sale would reduce the Fund's NAV and may make it difficult for the NAV to recover. The Fund nevertheless may continue to use leverage if the Adviser expects that the benefits to the shareholders of maintaining the leveraged position likely would outweigh a resulting reduction in the current return.

Certain types of borrowings by the Fund would result in the Fund being subject to covenants in credit agreements relating to asset coverage and Fund composition requirements that are more stringent than those currently imposed on the Fund by the Investment Company Act. In addition, borrowings by the Fund may be made on a secured basis. The Fund's Custodian will then either segregate the assets securing the Fund's borrowings for the benefit of the Fund's lenders or arrangements will be made with a suitable sub-custodian. If the assets used to secure a borrowing decrease in value, the Fund may be required to pledge additional collateral to the lender in the form of cash or securities to avoid liquidation of those assets. In the event of a default, the lenders will have the right, through the Fund's Custodian, to liquidate the Fund's assets, which may include redemption of the Fund's investments in underlying Private Funds, without consideration of whether doing so would be in the best interests of the Fund's shareholders. The rights of any lenders to the Fund to receive payments of interest on and repayments of principal of borrowings will be senior to the rights of the Fund's shareholders, and the terms of the Fund's borrowings may contain provisions that limit certain activities of the Fund and could result in precluding the purchase of instruments that the Fund would otherwise purchase.

The use of leverage involves financial risk and would increase the exposure of the Fund's investment returns to adverse economic factors such as rising interest rates, downturns in the economy or deterioration in the condition of the investments. There would be a risk that operating cash flow available to the Fund would be insufficient to meet required payments and a risk that it would not be possible to refinance existing indebtedness or that the terms of such refinancing would not be as favorable as the terms of existing indebtedness. Borrowings by the Fund may be secured by any or all of the assets of the Fund, with the consequences that the Fund may lose more than its equity stake in any one investment, and may lose all of its capital.

Interest or other expenses payable by the Fund with respect to its borrowings generally will be based on shorter-term interest rates that would be periodically reset. So long as the Fund's portfolio investments provide a higher rate of return (net of applicable Fund expenses) than the interest rates and other costs to the Fund of such leverage, the investment of the proceeds thereof will generate more income than will be needed to pay the costs of the leverage. If so, and all other things being equal, the excess may be used to pay higher dividends to shareholders than if the Fund were not so leveraged. If, however, shorter-term interest rates rise relative to the rate of return on the Fund's portfolio, the interest and other costs of leverage to the Fund (including interest expenses on borrowings) could exceed the rate of return on the investments held by the Fund, thereby reducing return to shareholders. In addition, fees and expenses of any form of leverage used by the Fund will be borne entirely by the shareholders and will reduce the investment return of the Shares. Therefore, there can be no assurance that the Fund's use of leverage will result in a higher yield on the Shares, and it may result in losses.

In addition to any borrowing utilized by the Fund, Private Funds in which the Fund invests may utilize leverage. The Private Funds may be able to borrow, subject to the limitations of their charters and operative documents. While leverage presents opportunities for increasing a Private Fund's total return, it has the effect of potentially increasing losses as well. If income and appreciation on investments made with borrowed funds are less than the required interest payments on the borrowings, the value of the Private Fund will decrease. Additionally, any event which adversely affects the value of an investment by a Private Fund would be magnified to the extent such Private Fund is leveraged. Furthermore, because the Private Funds may themselves incur higher level of leverage than that which the Fund is permitted, the Fund could be effectively leveraged in an amount far greater than the limit imposed by the Investment Company Act.

The cumulative effect of the use of leverage by a Private Fund in a market that moves adversely to such Private Fund's investments could result in a substantial loss which would be greater than if the Private Fund were not leveraged. The Adviser typically will target Private Funds with leverage limitations in the range of 30% to 65% of their gross asset value at the time incurred, as specified in their charters and operative documents or disclosure documents, as of when the Adviser selects the Private Funds. Furthermore, the Private Funds will hold their investments in entities organized as REITs, corporations or other entities that provide that the Fund's risk of loss will be limited to the amount of the investment by the Fund. Nevertheless, while leverage presents opportunities for increasing a Private Fund's, and consequently the Fund's, total return, it has the effect of potentially increasing losses as well.

Equity Securities Risk

Common and preferred stocks represent equity ownership in a company. The prices of equity securities will fluctuate and can decline and reduce the value of a portfolio investing in equities. Stock markets are volatile and the value of equity securities purchased by the Fund could decline if the financial condition of the companies the Fund invests in decline or if overall market and economic conditions deteriorate. They may also decline due to factors that affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or an increase in production costs and competitive conditions within an industry. In addition, they may decline due to general market conditions that are not specifically related to a company or industry, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the general outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or generally adverse investor sentiment.

Investments in preferred stocks may also be subject to additional risks. For example, preferred stocks sometimes include provisions that permit the issuer to defer distributions for a period of time. When distributions are deferred, the Fund may be required to recognize income for tax purposes in excess of distributions received by the Fund. In addition, shareholder rights in preferred stocks often differ from shareholder rights in common stocks. There may be limited or no voting rights for preferred shareholders, and the issuer may have the right to redeem preferred stock without consent of preferred stock shareholders. Preferred securities may also be substantially less liquid than other equity securities and, therefore, may be subject to greater liquidity risk.

Foreign Investing Risk

Foreign investments by the Fund and Private Funds may be subject to economic, political, regulatory and social risks, which may affect the liquidity of such investments. Foreign ownership of Real Estate Securities may be restricted, requiring the Private Funds in which the Fund invests to share the applicable investment with local third party shareholders or investors, and there may be significant local land use and permit restrictions, local taxes and other transaction costs that adversely affect the returns sought by the Fund. These investments may be subject to additional risks relating to adverse political developments (including nationalization, confiscation without fair compensation, civil disturbances, unrest or war) and regulatory risks, which may affect the liquidity of such investments. Further, foreign governments may impose restrictions to prevent capital flight, which may, for example, involve punitive taxation (including high withholding taxes) on certain securities, transfers or asset sales or the imposition of exchange controls, making it difficult or impossible to exchange or repatriate the applicable currencies. Foreign investments also are subject to additional risks such as:

- unfavorable changes in currency rates and exchange control regulations;
- · reduced availability of information regarding foreign companies;
- different accounting, auditing and financial standards and possibly less stringent reporting standards and requirements;
- reduced liquidity and greater volatility;
- difficulty in obtaining or enforcing a judgment;
- · increased brokerage commissions and custody fees; and
- increased potential for corrupt business practices in certain foreign countries.

As a result of potential hurdles facing foreign parties in enforcing legal rights in certain jurisdictions, there can be no certainty that rights to investments in non-U.S. jurisdictions will be successfully upheld in the courts of such jurisdiction. Certain Private Funds that invest in foreign jurisdictions may have difficulty in successfully pursuing claims in the courts of such jurisdictions to enforce the Fund's rights as an investor therein, as compared to the courts of the United States. To the extent that a judgment is obtained, but enforcement thereof must be sought in the courts of another jurisdiction, there can be no assurance that such courts will enforce such judgment. Further, due to unpredictable political climates in certain jurisdictions and shifting relationships between the U.S. and various jurisdictions, the ability of certain Private Funds to liquidate collateral held in non-U.S. jurisdictions may become difficult.

The Fund does not intend to obtain political risk insurance. Accordingly, actions of foreign governments could have a significant effect on economic actions in their respective countries, which could affect private sector real asset and real asset-related companies and the prices and yields of investments. Exchange control regulations, expropriation, confiscatory taxation, sanctions against a particular country or countries, organizations, entities and/or individuals, embargos, nationalization, political, economic or social instability or other economic or political developments in such countries could adversely affect the assets of the Fund.

Political changes or a deterioration of a foreign nation's domestic economy or balance of trade may indirectly affect the Fund's investment in a particular real estate or real estate-related securities in that nation. Moreover, the investments could be adversely affected by changes in the general economic climate or the economic factors affecting Real Estate Securities, changes in tax law or specific developments within such industries or interest rate movements. While the Adviser intends to manage foreign investments in a manner that it believes will minimize the Fund's exposure to such risks, there can be no assurance that adverse political or economic changes will not cause the Fund to suffer losses.

In addition to the risks associated with investments in foreign Real Estate-Related Investments generally, such investments in particular regions or countries with emerging markets may face those risks to a greater degree and may face additional risks. See "Risk Factors – Emerging Markets Risk."

Interval Fund Risk

The Fund is a closed-end investment company that provides limited liquidity through a quarterly repurchase policy under Rule 23c-3 under the Investment Company Act and is designed for long-term investors. Unlike many closed-end investment companies, the Fund's Shares are not listed on any securities exchange and are not publicly-traded. There

is currently no secondary market for the Shares and the Fund expects that no secondary market will develop. Shares are subject to substantial restrictions on transferability and may only be transferred or resold in accordance with the LLC Agreement and the Fund's repurchase policy. Shareholders should not expect to be able to sell their Shares in a secondary market transaction regardless of how the Fund performs. Even though the Fund will offer to repurchase Shares on a quarterly basis, there is no guarantee that shareholders will be able to sell Shares at any given time or in the quantity desired. An investment in the Fund is considered an illiquid investment and the Shares are appropriate only for those investors who can tolerate risk and do not require a liquid investment.

Limited liquidity is provided to shareholders only through the Fund's quarterly Repurchase Offers for not less than 5% nor more than 25% of the Shares outstanding on the Repurchase Request Deadline. The Repurchase Offer amount will be determined by the Board before each Repurchase Offer. There is no guarantee that shareholders will be able to sell all of the Shares they desire in a quarterly Repurchase Offer. The Fund's Repurchase Offers may be, and in the past have been, oversubscribed. In the event of oversubscription, the Fund may repurchase, and in the past has repurchased, shares on a pro rata basis. In the event of oversubscription, the Fund may repurchase, and in the past has repurchased, shares on a pro rata basis. Because of the potential for proration, some shareholders might tender more shares than they wish to have repurchased in order to ensure the repurchase of specific number of Shares. Additionally, in certain instances such Repurchase Offers may be suspended or postponed by a vote of a majority of the Board, including a vote by a majority of the Independent Directors, as permitted by the Investment Company Act and other laws. See "Quarterly Repurchases of Shares".

Valuation Risk

The value of the Fund's investments will be difficult to ascertain and the valuations provided in respect of the Fund's Private Funds and other private securities, will likely vary from the amounts the Fund would receive upon withdrawal of its investments. While the valuation of the Fund's publicly-traded securities are more readily ascertainable, the Fund's ownership interest in the Private Funds and other private securities are not publicly traded and the Fund will depend on the Managers to Private Funds to provide a valuation, or assistance with a valuation, of the Fund's investment. Any such valuation is a subjective analysis of the fair market value of an asset and requires the use of techniques that are costly and time-consuming and ultimately provide no more than an estimate of value. Moreover, the valuation of the Fund's investment in a Private Fund, as provided by a Manager as of a specific date, may vary from the fair value of the investment that may be obtained if such investment were sold to a third party.

For information about the value of the Fund's investment in Private Funds, the Adviser will be dependent on information provided by the Private Funds, including quarterly unaudited financial statements which, if inaccurate, could adversely affect the Adviser's ability to value accurately the Fund's Shares. Shareholders should be aware that the situations involving uncertainties as to the valuation of the investments of the Fund could have an adverse effect on the NAV of the Fund if the judgments of the Adviser regarding appropriate valuations should prove incorrect. The Adviser faces conflicts of interest in assisting with the valuation of the Fund's investments, as the value of the Fund's investments will affect the Adviser's compensation.

Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the stated NAV of the Fund, as calculated based on such valuations, will be accurate on any given date, nor can there be any assurance that the sale of any property would be at a price equivalent to the last estimated value of such property. If at any time the stated NAV of the Fund is lower than its true value, those investors who have their Shares repurchased at such time will be underpaid and investors who retain their Shares would be adversely affected if more Shares were to be issued at the low price than are repurchased at that price. Conversely, if the Fund's stated NAV is higher than its true value, those investors who purchase Shares at such time will overpay, and if repurchases of Shares based on a high stated NAV were to exceed purchases of Shares at that value, investors who do not have their Shares repurchased will be adversely affected. In addition, investors would be adversely affected by higher fees payable to the Adviser if the gross asset value of the Fund is overstated.

As a result, the NAV of the Fund, as determined based on the fair value of its investments in Private Funds, may vary from the amount the Fund would realize on the withdrawal of its investments from the Private Funds. This could adversely affect shareholders whose Shares are repurchased as well as new shareholders and remaining shareholders. For example, in certain cases, the Fund might receive less than the fair value of its investment in connection with its withdrawal of its investment from a Private Fund, resulting in a dilution of the value of the Shares of shareholders who do not tender their Shares in any coincident tender offer and a windfall to tendering shareholders; in other cases, the Fund might receive more than the fair value of its investment, resulting in a windfall to shareholders remaining in the Fund, but a shortfall to tendering shareholders. The Adviser will attempt to resolve any conflicts between valuations

assigned by Manager and fair value as determined by the Adviser by seeking information from the Manager and reviewing all relevant available information. Such review may result in a determination to change the fair value of the Fund's investment. Shareholders in the Fund have no individual right to receive information about the Private Funds or the Managers, will not be shareholders in the Private Funds, and will have no rights with respect to or standing or recourse against the Private Funds, Managers or any of their respective affiliates.

Private Funds Risk

The Private Funds will not be subject to the Investment Company Act, nor will they be publicly traded. As a result, the Fund's investments in the Private Funds will not be subject to the protections afforded to shareholders under the Investment Company Act. These protections include, among others, certain corporate governance standards, such as the requirement of having a certain percentage of the directors serving on a board as independent directors, statutory protections against self-dealing by the Managers, and leverage limitations, and investment restrictions. Further, the Fund's investments in Private Funds may be subject to heightened valuation, safekeeping, liquidity, and regulatory risks.

The Private Funds are not subject to the same investment limitations as the Fund and may have different and contrary investment limitations and other policies. Unlike registered investment companies, the Private Funds currently are not obligated by regulations or law to disclose publicly the contents of their portfolios. As such, the Fund has limited visibility into the underlying investments of the Private Funds, and is dependent on information provided by the Managers. This lack of transparency may make it difficult for the Adviser to monitor the sources of the Fund's income and the allocation of its assets, and otherwise comply with regulations applicable to the Fund, may result in style drift, and ultimately may limit the universe of Private Funds in which the Fund can invest.

The Manager of a Private Fund may draw down on the Fund's capital commitment all at once or in a series of capital calls. The portion of the Fund's commitment to a Private Fund that has not been called is referred to as an "unfunded commitment." The Fund may have a contractual obligation to provide capital to meet its unfunded commitment when the Manager draws upon the commitment. Pursuant to recent regulations governing unfunded commitments, at the time the Fund enters into an unfunded commitment, it must have a reasonable belief that it will have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its obligations with respect to all of its unfunded commitment agreements, in each case as they come due. While the impact of these regulatory changes on the Fund is still uncertain, they could reduce the Fund's flexibility to make investments in Private Funds and require the Fund to modify its investment strategies. In order to meet its obligations, and these new regulatory requirements, the Fund may be required to hold a substantial amount of its assets in money market securities, cash or cash equivalents, possibly for prolong periods of time; liquidate portfolio securities at an inopportune time; or borrow under a line of credit. This could make it difficult or impossible to take or liquidate a position in a particular security at a price consistent with the Adviser's strategy.

The Fund may also be required to indemnify certain of the Private Funds from any liability, damage, cost or expense arising out of breaches of representations and warranties included in the Private Fund's subscription documents and certain acts or omissions relating to the offer or sale of the Fund's Shares. In addition, Private Funds may have indemnification obligations to the respective service providers they employ, which may result in increases to the fees and expenses for such Private Funds.

Prohibitions contained in the Investment Company Act on certain transactions between a registered investment company and affiliated persons of it, or affiliated persons of those affiliated persons, restrict the Fund from investing in Private Funds sponsored or managed by the Adviser or its affiliates. In general, the Fund seeks to limit its investment in any one Private Fund to less than 25% of the Fund's assets. The Fund may invest substantially all of its assets in nonvoting securities of Private Funds. To the extent the Fund holds non-voting securities of, or contractually foregoes the right to vote in respect of, a Private Fund (which it intends to do in order to avoid being considered an affiliated person of a Private Fund within the meaning of the Investment Company Act), it will not be able to vote to the full extent of its economic interest on matters that require the approval of the investors of the Private Fund, including a matter that could adversely affect the Fund's investment, such as changes to the Private Fund's investment objective or policies or the termination of the Private Fund. Notwithstanding these waivers and limitations, the Fund may nevertheless be considered, under certain circumstances, to be an affiliate of a Private Fund. As such, the Fund might be subject to limitations imposed by the Investment Company Act on purchasing more interests in, or redeeming its interests from, such Private Fund, even if the additional investment or redemption would be beneficial to the Fund.

By investing in the Private Funds indirectly through the Fund, a shareholder bears two layers of asset-based fees and expenses – at the Fund level and the Private Fund level – in addition to indirectly bearing any performance

fees charged by a Private Fund. Performance fees may create an incentive for the Private Fund's manager to make investments that are riskier or more speculative than those it might have made in the absence of a performance fee, which may result in losses. In the aggregate, these fees might exceed the fees that would typically be incurred by a direct investment with a single Private Fund.

The Fund's investments in Private Funds are priced according to their fair value, as determined in good faith by the Adviser. These valuations are based on estimates, which may prove to be inaccurate; these valuations are used to calculate fees payable to the Adviser and the net asset value of the Fund's shares. Investors who purchase or redeem Fund shares on days when the Fund is holding fair-valued investments may receive fewer or more shares or lower or higher redemption proceeds than they would have received if readily available market values were available for all of the Fund's investments.

Investment in Private Funds carries the risk of loss due to Private Funds' fraud, intentional or inadvertent deviations from a predefined investment strategy (including excessive concentration, directional investing outside of predefined ranges, excessive leverage or new capital markets), or poor judgment. During the lifetime of the Fund, there could be material changes in one or more Private Funds, including changes in control and mergers. The effect of such changes on a Private Fund cannot be predicted but could be material and adverse. Given the limited liquidity of the Private Funds, the Fund may not be able to alter its portfolio allocation in sufficient time to respond to any such changes, resulting in substantial losses from risks of Private Funds.

Market Disruption, Health Crises, Terrorism and Geopolitical Risks

The Fund's investments may be negatively affected by the broad investment environment in the real estate market, the debt market and/or the equity securities market. The investment environment is influenced by, among other things, interest rates, inflation, politics, fiscal policy, current events, competition, productivity and technological and regulatory change. Real Estate-Related Investments values may experience greater volatility during periods of challenging market conditions, which periods may be similar to or worse than the conditions experienced from late 2007 through 2009. In addition, there can be severe limitations on an investor's ability to sell certain Real Estate-Related Investments, including those that are of higher credit quality, during a period of reduced credit market liquidity. Therefore, the Fund's NAV will fluctuate. Shareholders may experience a significant decline in the value of their investment and could lose money. The Fund should be considered a speculative investment, and investors should invest in the Fund only if they can sustain a complete loss of their investment.

The Fund may be adversely affected by uncertainties such as war, terrorism, international political developments, sanctions or embargos, tariffs and trade wars, changes in government policies, global health crises or similar pandemics, and other related geopolitical events may lead to increased short-term market volatility and have adverse long-term effects on world economies and markets generally, as well as adverse effects on issuers of securities and the value of investments. For example, the U.S. has imposed economic sanctions, which consist of asset freezes, restrictions on dealings in debt and equity, and certain industry-specific restrictions. Most recently, the U.S. has imposed broadranging economic sanctions against Russia due to the ongoing conflict occurring in Ukraine. Sanctions impair the ability of the Fund to buy, sell, receive or deliver those securities and/or assets that are subject to the sanctions. In addition, trade disputes may affect investor and consumer confidence and adversely affect financial markets and the broader economy, perhaps suddenly and to a significant degree. These events, as well as other changes in world economic, political and health conditions and their impact on the Fund are difficult to predict and could adversely affect individual issuers or related groups of issuers, issuers located in a particular geographic region, securities markets, interest rates, credit ratings, inflation, investor sentiment and other factors affecting the value of investments. At such times, exposure to a number of other risks described elsewhere in this section can increase.

The outbreak of COVID-19 and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in, among other things, travel restrictions and disruptions, closed borders, enhanced health screenings at ports of entry and elsewhere, disruption of and delays in healthcare service preparation and delivery, quarantines, event cancellations and restrictions, service cancellations or reductions, disruptions to business operations, supply chains and customer activity, lower consumer demand for goods and services, as well as general concern and uncertainty that has negatively affected the economic environment. The impact of this outbreak, and the effects of other infectious illness outbreaks, epidemics, or pandemics, may be short term or may continue for an extended period of time. For example, a global pandemic or other widespread health crisis could cause significant market volatility and declines in global financial markets and may affect adversely the global economy, the economies of the United States and other individual countries, the financial performance of individual issuers, borrowers and sectors, and the health of capital markets and other markets generally in potentially significant and unforeseen ways.

Health crises caused by outbreaks of disease, such as the coronavirus outbreak, may also exacerbate other pre-existing political, social, and economic risks in certain countries or globally. A global pandemic or other widespread health crisis could lead to a significant economic downturn or recession, increased market volatility, a greater number of market closures, higher default rates, and adverse effects on the values and liquidity of securities or other assets. In addition, the increasing interconnectedness of markets around the world may result in many markets being affected by events or conditions in a single country or region or events affecting a single or small number of issuers. The foregoing could impair the Fund's ability to maintain operational standards (such as with respect to satisfying repurchase requests, see "Risk Factors – Interval Fund Risk"), disrupt the operations of the Fund and its service providers, adversely affect the value and liquidity of the Fund's investments, and negatively impact the Fund's performance and your investment in the Fund. Other epidemics or pandemics that arise in the future may have similar impacts.

In March 2023, the shut-down of certain financial institutions raised economic concerns over disruption in the U.S. banking system. There can be no certainty that the actions taken by the U.S. government to strengthen public confidence in the U.S. banking system will be effective in mitigating the effects of financial institution failures on the economy and restoring public confidence in the U.S. banking system.

Currency and Exchange Rate Risks

The Fund may engage in practices and strategies that will result in exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, including through investments in the Private Funds and Real Estate Securities, in which case the Fund will be subject to foreign currency risk. The Fund's Shares are priced in U.S. dollars and the capital contributions to, and distributions from, the Fund are paid in U.S. dollars. However, because a portion of the Fund's assets may be denominated directly in foreign (non-U.S.) currencies or in securities that trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U.S.) currencies, the Fund will be subject to the risk that those currencies will decline in value relative to the U.S. dollar, or, in the case of hedging positions, that the U.S. dollar will decline in value relative to the currency being hedged. Currency risk may be particularly high to the extent that the Fund invests in foreign (non-U.S.) currencies or engages in foreign currency transactions that are economically tied to emerging market countries.

Currency rates in foreign (non-U.S.) countries may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates, rates of inflation, balance of payments and governmental surpluses or deficits, intervention (or the failure to intervene) by U.S. or foreign (non-U.S.) governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments in the United States or abroad. These fluctuations may have a significant adverse impact on the value of the Fund's portfolio and/or the level of Fund distributions.

Furthermore, the Fund may (but is not required to) attempt to hedge its exposure to foreign currencies, to reduce the risk of loss due to fluctuations in currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar. There is no assurance, however, that currency hedging strategies will be used by the Fund or, if used, that they will be successful. As a result, the Fund's investments in foreign currency-denominated securities may reduce the returns of the Fund. See "Risk Factors – Hedging Transactions Risk."

Environmental and Undisclosed Liabilities Risk

The Fund could face substantial risk of loss from claims based on environmental problems associated with the real estate underlying the Fund's investments, including claims in connection with adverse effects from global climate change. For example, persistent wildfires, a rise in sea levels, an increase in powerful windstorms and/or a storm-driven increase in flooding could cause properties to lose value or become unmarketable altogether. Furthermore, changes in environmental laws or in the environmental condition of an asset may create liabilities that did not exist at the time of the acquisition of such investment by the Fund and that could not have been foreseen. Such laws often impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of such environmental condition. In addition, divestment trends tied to concerns about climate change could also adversely affect the value of certain assets.

In addition to the risk of environmental liability attaching to an investment, it is possible that investments acquired by the Fund could be affected by undisclosed matters. In respect of acquired land, the Fund's investment in a Private Fund that owns such land could be affected by undisclosed matters such as legal easements, leases and all charges on property that have been registered and all charges that the acquiring entity is or should have been aware of at the time of the acquisition. Liability could also arise from the breaches of planning legislation and building regulations. Undisclosed breaches of other statutory regimes such as health and safety, fire and public health legislation, could also give rise to liability. The property owner could also be liable for undisclosed duties payable to municipalities

and counties as well as public claims deriving from supply to the property of water, electricity and other utilities and services. It is therefore possible that the Fund could acquire an investment affected by such matters, which may have a material adverse effect on the value of such investments.

Business and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes (including laws and regulations relating to registered funds, the securities and derivatives markets, taxation of the Fund's investments, trade barriers, and currency exchange controls), as well as general economic and market conditions (such as interest rates, availability of credit, credit defaults, inflation rates and general economic uncertainty) and national and international political circumstances, may adversely affect the Fund. These factors may affect, among other things, the level of volatility of the prices of securities and real estate assets, the liquidity of the Fund's investments and the availability of certain securities and investments. Volatility or illiquidity could impair the Fund's returns or result in significant losses. Additionally, the securities markets are subject to comprehensive statutes and regulations and the regulatory environment for Private Funds is evolving. Changes in the regulation of registered funds, securities markets, or Private Funds may adversely affect the value of investments held by the Fund and the ability of the Fund to pursue successfully its investment strategy. The effect of any future regulatory change on the Fund could be substantial and adverse.

Fees and Expenses Risk

By investing in the Private Funds indirectly through the Fund, a shareholder bears two layers of fees and expenses – at the Fund level and the Private Fund level – in addition to indirectly bearing any performance fees charged by a Private Fund. In the aggregate, these fees might exceed the fees that would typically be incurred by a direct investment with a single Private Fund. In the aggregate, these fees and expenses could be substantial and adversely affect the value of any investment in the Fund.

Concentration Risk

The Fund may, from time to time, invest a substantial portion of its assets in a particular asset type, industry, geographic location or securities instrument. In particular, the Fund expects to concentrate its investments in U.S. investments in the real estate and infrastructure industries. As a result, the Fund's portfolio may be subject to greater risk and volatility than if investments had been made in a broader diversification of investments in terms of asset type, geographic location or securities instrument. To the extent that the Fund's portfolio is concentrated in a property type, geographic location or securities instrument, the risk of any investment decision is increased.

REITs Risk

The Fund will invest in real estate indirectly through entities that are intended to qualify as REITs. The risks of investing in REITs include certain risks associated with the real estate industry in general. See "Real Estate-Related Securities Risk" in this section. Investments in REITs also involve unique risks. REITs may have limited financial resources, may trade less frequently and in limited volume, and may be more volatile than other securities. Rising interest rates may cause REIT investors to demand a higher annual yield, which may, in turn, cause a decline in the market price of the equity securities issued by a REIT. Some REITs may utilize leverage, which increases investment risk and may potentially increase the Fund's losses. In addition, to the extent the Fund holds interests in REITs, investors in the Fund bear two layers of asset-based management fees and expenses (directly at the Fund level and indirectly at the REIT level), in addition to indirectly bearing any performance fees charged by a Private Fund. REITs may also fail to qualify for the favorable tax treatment available to REITs or may fail to maintain their exemptions from investment company registration. Qualification as a REIT under the Code in any particular year is a complex analysis that depends on a number of factors. There can be no guarantee that any entity in or through which the Fund invests will qualify as a REIT. An entity that fails to qualify as a REIT would be subject to a corporate level tax, would not be entitled to a deduction for dividends paid to its shareholders and would not pass through to its shareholders the character of income earned by the entity. If the Fund were to invest in an entity that failed to qualify as a REIT, such failure could significantly reduce the Fund's yield on that investment and could adversely affect the Fund's NAV.

Dividends paid by REITs do not qualify for the reduced U.S. federal income tax rates applicable to qualified dividends under the Code. See "Tax Aspects" in the SAI. The Fund's investments in REITs may include an additional risk to shareholders. Some or all of a REIT's annual distributions to its investors may constitute a return of capital. Any such return of capital is not taxable, but will reduce the Fund's basis in the REIT investment, but not below zero.

To the extent the distributions from a particular REIT exceed the Fund's basis in its shares of such REIT, the Fund will recognize gain, which may increase the likelihood that Fund distributions to shareholders may also include a return of capital. Shareholders that receive such a distribution will also reduce their tax basis in their Shares of the Fund, but not below zero. To the extent the distribution exceeds a shareholder's basis in the Fund's Shares, such shareholder will recognize a capital gain. The Fund does not have any investment restrictions with respect to investments in REITs.

Issuer Risk

Issuer risk is the risk that the value of a security may decline for a reason directly related to the issuer, such as management performance, financial leverage and reduced demand for the issuer's goods or service.

High Yield Securities Risk

High yield securities (commonly referred to as "junk bonds") are below investment grade debt securities or comparable unrated securities and are considered predominantly speculative. Lower rated and comparable unrated debt securities tend to offer higher yields than higher rated securities with the same maturities because the historical financial condition of the issuers of such securities may not have been as strong as that of other issuers. However, lower rated securities generally involve greater risks of loss of income and principal than higher rated securities. The issuers of high yield securities may be more adversely affected than issuers of higher rated securities by specific corporate or governmental developments or the issuers' inability to meet specific projected business forecasts. Changes in economic conditions are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity for the issuers of these securities to make principal payments and interest payments. The amount of high yield securities outstanding has proliferated as an increasing number of issuers have used high yield securities for corporate financing. An economic recession could disrupt the market for high yield securities and may have an adverse impact on the value of such securities. An economic downturn also could adversely affect the ability of leveraged issuers to service their debt obligations or to repay their obligations upon maturity. Factors having an adverse impact on the market value of lower quality securities will have an adverse effect on the Fund's NAV to the extent that it invests in such securities. In addition, the Fund may incur additional expenses to the extent it is required to seek recovery upon a default in payment of principal or interest on its portfolio holdings or to take other steps to protect its investment in an issuer.

The secondary market for high yield securities is not usually as liquid as the secondary market for more highly rated securities, a factor that may have an adverse effect on the Fund's ability to dispose of a particular security when necessary to meet its liquidity needs. Under adverse market or economic conditions, such as those recently prevailing, the secondary market for high yield securities could contract further, independent of any specific adverse changes in the condition of a particular issuer. As a result, the Fund could find it more difficult to sell these securities or may be able to sell the securities only at prices lower than if such securities were widely traded. Prices realized upon the sale of such lower rated or unrated securities, under these and other circumstances, may be less than the prices used in calculating the Fund's NAV.

Since investors generally perceive that there are greater risks associated with lower quality debt securities, the yields and prices of such securities tend to fluctuate more than those for higher rated securities. In the lower quality segments of the debt securities market, changes in perceptions of issuers' creditworthiness tend to occur more frequently and in a more pronounced manner than do changes in higher quality segments of the debt securities market, resulting in greater yield and price volatility.

Diversification Risk

The Fund is a "non-diversified" management investment company under the Investment Company Act. This means that the Fund may invest a greater portion of its assets in a limited number of issuers than would be the case if the Fund were classified as a "diversified" management investment company. Accordingly, the Fund may be subject to greater risk with respect to its portfolio securities than a "diversified" fund because changes in the financial condition or market assessment of a single issuer may cause greater fluctuation in the value of its interests.

Reliance on Key Persons Risk

The Fund relies on the services of certain executive officers who have relevant knowledge of Real Estate-Related Investments and familiarity with the Fund's investment objective, strategies and investment features. The loss of the services of any of these key personnel could have a material adverse impact on the Fund.

Privately Placed Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in non-exchange traded securities, including privately placed securities, which are subject to liquidity and valuation risks. These risks may make it difficult for those securities to be traded or valued, especially in the event of adverse economic and liquidity conditions or adverse changes in the issuer's financial condition. The market for certain non-exchange traded securities may be limited to institutional investors, subjecting such investments to further liquidity risk if a market were to limit institutional trading. There may also be less information available regarding such non-exchange traded securities than for publicly traded securities, which may make it more difficult for the Adviser to fully evaluate the risks of investing in such securities and as a result place a Fund's assets at greater risk of loss than if the Adviser had more complete information. In addition, the issuers of non-exchange traded securities may be distressed, insolvent, or delinquent in filing information needed to be listed on an exchange. Disposing of non-exchange traded securities, including privately placed securities, may involve time-consuming negotiation and legal expenses, and selling them promptly at an acceptable price may be difficult or impossible. Securities purchased in private placements may be subject to legal or contractual restrictions on resale. The Fund may have to bear the expense of registering restricted securities for resale and the risk of substantial delay in effecting registration.

Tax Risks

Special tax risks are associated with an investment in the Fund. The Fund intends to qualify and has elected to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. As such, the Fund must satisfy, among other requirements, diversification and 90% gross income requirements, and a requirement that it distribute at least 90% of its ordinary income and net short-term gains in the form of deductible dividends.

Each of the aforementioned ongoing requirements for qualification for the favorable tax treatment available to RICs requires that the Fund obtain information from or about the Private Funds in which the Fund is invested. However, Private Funds generally are not obligated to disclose the contents of their portfolios. This lack of transparency may make it difficult for the Adviser to monitor the sources of the Fund's income and the diversification of its assets, and otherwise to comply with Subchapter M of the Code. Ultimately this may limit the universe of Private Funds in which the Fund can invest and may adversely bear on the Fund's ability to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. The Fund expects to receive information from each Private Fund regarding its investment performance on a regular basis.

Private Funds and other entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes may generate income allocable to the Fund that is not qualifying income for purposes of the 90% gross income test. In order to meet the 90% gross income test, the Fund may structure its investments in a manner that potentially increases the taxes imposed thereon or in respect thereof. Because the Fund may not have timely or complete information concerning the amount or sources of such a Private Fund's income until such income has been earned by the Private Fund or until a substantial amount of time thereafter, it may be difficult for the Fund to satisfy the 90% gross income test.

In the event that the Fund believes that it is possible that it will fail the asset diversification requirement at the end of any quarter of a taxable year, it may seek to take certain actions to avert such failure, including by acquiring additional investments to come into compliance with the asset diversification tests or by disposing of non-diversified assets. Although the Code affords the Fund the opportunity, in certain circumstances, to cure a failure to meet the asset diversification test, including by disposing of non-diversified assets within six months, there may be constraints on the Fund's ability to dispose of its interest in a Private Fund that limit utilization of this cure period.

If the Fund were to fail to satisfy the asset diversification or other RIC requirements, absent a cure, it would lose its status as a RIC under the Code. Such loss of RIC status could affect the amount, timing and character of the Fund's distributions and would cause all of the Fund's taxable income to be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates without any deduction for distributions to shareholders. In addition, all distributions (including distributions of net capital gain) would be taxed to their recipients as dividend income to the extent of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits. Accordingly, disqualification as a RIC would have a significant adverse effect on the value of the Shares.

The Fund must distribute at least 90% of its investment company taxable income, in a manner qualifying for the dividends-paid deduction, to qualify as a RIC, and must distribute substantially all its income in order to avoid a fund-level tax. In addition, if the Fund were to fail to distribute in a calendar year a sufficient amount of its income for such year, it would be subject to an excise tax. The determination of the amount of distributions sufficient to qualify as a RIC and avoid a fund-level income or excise tax will depend on income and gain information that must be obtained from the underlying Private Funds. The Fund's investment in Private Funds may make it difficult to estimate the Fund's

income and gains in a timely fashion, which may increase the likelihood that the Fund will be liable for the excise tax with respect to certain undistributed amounts. See "Taxes" and, in the SAI, "Tax Aspects".

Investors will be required each year to pay applicable federal and state income taxes on their respective shares of any distributions from the Fund. Shareholders who reinvest their distributions will nonetheless be obligated to pay these taxes from sources other than Fund distributions.

The Fund invests in Private Funds located outside the United States. Such Private Funds may be subject to withholding tax on their investments in such jurisdictions. Any such withholding tax would reduce the return on the Fund's investment in such Private Funds. See "Taxes" and, in the SAI, "Tax Aspects."

Hedging Transactions Risk

The Fund and the Private Funds may invest in securities and utilize financial instruments, such as forward contracts, in an effort to protect against possible changes in the market value of portfolio positions resulting from fluctuations in the securities or other markets and changes in interest rates and hedge the interest rate or currency exchange rate on any liabilities or assets.

Hedging against a decline in the value of a portfolio position does not eliminate fluctuations in the values of portfolio positions or prevent losses if the values of such positions decline, but establishes other positions designed to gain from those same developments, thus moderating the decline in the portfolio positions' value. Such hedging transactions also limit the opportunity for gain if the value of the portfolio position should increase. Moreover, it may not be possible for the Fund or a Private Fund to hedge against an exchange rate, interest rate or price fluctuation that is so generally anticipated that the Fund or a Private Fund is not able to enter into a hedging transaction at a price sufficient to protect its assets from the decline in value of the portfolio positions anticipated as a result of such fluctuations.

The Fund and the Private Funds are not required to attempt to hedge portfolio positions and, for various reasons, may determine not to do so. Furthermore, the Fund and the Private Funds may not anticipate a particular risk so as to hedge against it. To the extent that hedging transactions are effected, their success is dependent on the Fund or a Private Fund's ability to predict correctly movements in the direction of currency, interest rates or other factors. Therefore, while the Fund or a Private Fund may attempt to hedge against undesirable exposure, unanticipated changes in the markets and investments or debt being hedged, or the nonoccurrence of events being hedged against, this may result in poorer overall performance than if the Fund or a Private Fund had not engaged in any such hedge. In addition, the degree of correlation between the performance of the instruments used in a hedging strategy and the performance of the portfolio positions being hedged is unpredictable. Moreover, for a variety of reasons, the Fund or the Private Funds may not seek to establish a perfect correlation between such hedging instruments and the portfolio considerations being hedged. Such imperfect correlation may prevent the Fund or the Private Funds from achieving the intended hedge or expose the Fund to additional risk of loss. The Fund will not sell securities short and may not write uncovered options. All public securities strategies may only use long-only investment strategies, and will be restricted from selling securities short and writing uncovered options.

Market Capitalization Risk

The Fund may invest in equity securities without restriction as to market capitalization, such as those issued by medium-sized and smaller capitalization companies, including micro-cap companies. Those securities, particularly smaller-capitalization stocks, involve higher risks in some respects than do investments in securities of larger companies. The prices of the securities of some of these smaller companies are often more volatile and may be subject to more abrupt or erratic market movements than larger, more established companies, because they typically are more subject to changes in earnings and prospects, among other things. In addition, the risk of bankruptcy or insolvency of many smaller companies (with the attendant losses to shareholders) is higher than for larger, "blue-chip" companies, and, due to thin trading in some small-capitalization stocks, an investment in those securities may be highly illiquid. Some small companies have limited product lines, distribution channels and financial and managerial resources. Some of the companies in which the Fund invests may have product lines that have, in whole or in part, only recently been introduced to market or that may still be in the research or development stage. Such companies may also be dependent on key personnel with limited experience.

Micro-cap stocks typically involve greater risks of loss and price fluctuations because their earnings and revenues tend to be less predictable, their share prices tend to be more volatile, and their markets less liquid than stocks of companies with larger market capitalizations. The shares of micro-cap companies tend to trade less frequently than those of larger, more established companies, and it can be difficult or impossible for the Fund to trade these securities at the desired time. Furthermore, publicly available information, including financial information, about micro-cap companies tends to be limited and some micro-cap companies trade over-the-counter or on a regional exchange with limited regulation. The relative lack of information, liquidity, and regulation results in an increased risk of corruption and fraud, including price manipulation, and the possibility of losses to the Fund.

Emerging Markets Risk

The non-U.S. securities in which the Fund or a Private Fund invests may include securities of companies based in emerging countries or issued by the governments of such countries. Investing in securities of certain of such countries and companies involves certain considerations not usually associated with investing in securities of developed countries or of companies located in developed countries, including political and economic considerations, such as greater risks of expropriation, confiscatory taxation, imposition of withholding or other taxes on dividends, interest, capital gains, other income or gross sale or disposition proceeds, limitations on the removal of funds, nationalization and general social, political and economic instability; the small size of the securities markets in such countries and the low volume of trading, resulting in potential lack of liquidity and in price volatility; fluctuations in the rate of exchange between currencies and costs associated with currency conversion; certain government policies that may restrict the Fund's or a Private Fund's investment opportunities; problems that may arise in connection with the clearance and settlement of trades; inflation and rapid fluctuations in inflation rates in the economies of certain emerging market countries; overdependence on exports, particularly with respect to primary commodities, which makes such economies vulnerable to volatile fluctuations in commodity prices; and overburdened infrastructure, such as delays in local postal, transport, banking or communications systems that could cause the Fund to lose rights, opportunities or entitlements and expose it to currency fluctuations. In addition, accounting and financial reporting standards that prevail in certain of such countries generally are not equivalent to standards in more developed countries and, consequently, less information is available to investors in companies located in these countries than is available to investors in companies located in more developed countries. There is also less regulation, generally, of the securities markets in emerging countries than there is in more developed countries. Placing securities with a custodian in an emerging country may also present considerable risks.

LIBOR Risk

Certain instruments in which the Fund invests have historically relied upon LIBOR, the average offered interest rate for various maturities of short-term loans between certain major international banks. Regulators have determined to phase out LIBOR and have announced that, with limited exceptions, no new LIBOR-based contracts should be entered into after 2021. As of June 30, 2023, the administrator of LIBOR ceased publication of U.S. dollar LIBOR settings. Alternative reference rates have been established in most major currencies and various financial industry groups are assisting, or have already assisted, with the transition to new rates. Any potential effects of the transition away from LIBOR on the Fund or on certain instruments in which the Fund invests can be difficult to ascertain, and they may vary depending on factors that include, but are not limited to: (i) existing fallback or termination provisions in individual contracts; (ii) whether, how, and when industry participants develop and adopt new reference rates and fallbacks for both legacy and new products and instruments; and (iii) the development of liquid markets for newly-issued instruments that use an alternative reference rate. For example, certain of the Fund's investments may involve individual contracts that have no existing fallback provision or language that contemplates the discontinuation of LIBOR, and those investments could experience increased volatility or illiquidity as a result of the transition process. The U.S. federal government enacted legislation to establish a process for replacing LIBOR in certain existing contracts that do not already provide for the use of a clearly defined or practicable fallback replacement benchmark rate as described in the legislation. Pursuant to this legislation, the Federal Reserve Board effectively automatically replaced the U.S. dollar LIBOR benchmark rate in such contracts, as of June 30, 2023, with the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"), a replacement rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, including certain spread adjustments and benchmark replacement conforming changes. In connection with these changes, interest rate provisions included in relevant contracts or other arrangements entered into by the Fund may need to be renegotiated. The LIBOR transition may result in a reduction in the value of certain instruments held by the Fund, a change in the cost of borrowing or the dividend rate for any preferred shares that may be issued by the Fund, or a reduction in the effectiveness of related Fund transactions such as hedges. Any such effects of the transition, as well as other unforeseen effects, could result in losses to the Fund. The LIBOR transition process might lead to increased volatility and illiquidity in markets that relied on LIBOR to determine interest rates. It could also lead to a reduction in the value of some LIBOR-related investments, reduce the effectiveness of new hedges placed against existing LIBOR-related instruments, increase costs for certain LIBOR-related instruments or financing transactions, and cause prolonged adverse market conditions for the Fund if uncertainty regarding the effectiveness of an alternative rate-setting methodology persists.

Cybersecurity Risk

The Fund is susceptible to operational and information security risks relating to technologies such as the Internet. In general, cyber incidents can result from deliberate attacks or unintentional events. Cyber attacks include, but are not limited to, gaining unauthorized access to digital systems (e.g., through "hacking" or malicious software coding) for purposes of misappropriating assets or sensitive information, corrupting data, or causing operational disruption. Cyber attacks may also be carried out in a manner that does not require gaining unauthorized access, such as causing denial-of-service attacks on websites (i.e., efforts to make network services unavailable to intended users). Cyber incidents affecting the Fund or its service providers have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses, impediments to trading, the inability of the Fund to transact business, violations of applicable privacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, or additional compliance costs. The widespread use of work-from-home arrangements and the increasing use of virtual meeting and other technologies in workplaces following the COVID-19 pandemic may increase cybersecurity risk.

Similar adverse consequences could result from cyber incidents affecting the Fund investments, counterparties with which the Fund engages in transactions, governmental and other regulatory authorities, banks, brokers, dealers, insurance companies and other financial institutions. In addition, substantial costs may be incurred in order to prevent cyber incidents in the future. While the Fund's service providers, including the Adviser, may have established business continuity plans in the event of, and risk management policies and procedures and systems to prevent, such cyber incidents, there are inherent limitations in such plans, procedures and systems including the possibility that certain risks have not been identified. Furthermore, the Fund and the Adviser cannot control the cyber security plans and systems put in place by its service providers or any other third parties whose operations may affect the Fund and its shareholders. The Fund could be negatively impacted as a result.

Inflation/Deflation Risk

Inflation risk is the risk that the value of assets or income from investments will be less in the future as inflation decreases the value of money. Inflation, and investors' expectation of future inflation, can impact the current value of portfolio investments, resulting in lower asset values and losses to Fund investors. Inflation rates may change frequently and drastically as a result of various factors, including unexpected shifts in the domestic or global economy, and the Fund's investments may not keep pace with inflation, which may result in losses to Fund shareholders or adversely affect the real value of investments in the Funds. This risk may be elevated compared to historical market conditions because of historically high prevailing inflation rates, recent current events, monetary policy measures, regulatory changes, the current interest rate environment. Deflation risk is the risk that the prices throughout the economy decline over time—the opposite of inflation. Deflation may have an adverse effect on the creditworthiness of issuers and may make issuer default more likely, which may result in a decline in the value of the Fund's portfolio.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Fund will invest the proceeds of the continuous offering of Shares on an ongoing basis in accordance with its investment objectives and policies as stated below. In addition, for cash management purposes or while the Fund seeks investment opportunities, the proceeds of the offering may be invested by the Fund in short-term, high-quality debt securities, money market instruments, money market funds and/or liquid real estate-focused exchange-traded funds, in addition to, or in lieu of, investments consistent with the Fund's investment objectives and policies. It is currently anticipated that the Fund will be able to invest all or substantially all of the net proceeds according to its investment objectives and policies within approximately three months after receipt of the proceeds, depending on the amount and timing of proceeds available to the Fund as well as the availability of investments consistent with the Fund's investment objectives and policies, and except to the extent proceeds are held in cash to pay dividends or expenses, satisfy repurchase offers or pending capital calls, or for temporary defensive purposes. If the Fund is delayed in investing the proceeds of the offering, the Fund's distributions could consist, in whole or in part, of a return of capital. A return of capital represents a return of a portion of your investment. A return of capital is not taxable, but it reduces

a shareholder's tax basis in the Shares, thus reducing any loss or increasing any gain on a subsequent disposition of the Shares. In addition, the Fund may maintain a portion of the proceeds in cash to meet operational needs, as well as pay for offering costs associated with the sale of the Fund's Shares. Thus, there is no guarantee that the Fund will be able to assemble and achieve its desired investment portfolio with the proceeds of the offering; and as a result, the Fund may be prevented from achieving its objectives during any time in which the Fund's assets are not substantially invested in accordance with its principal investment strategies.

THE FUND

The Fund was organized as a Delaware limited liability company established on March 10, 2011 and is registered under the Investment Company Act as a closed-end investment management company. The Fund is a "non-diversified company" under the Investment Company Act, meaning that it does not have at least 75% of the value of its total assets represented by cash and cash items (including receivables), government securities, securities of other investment companies, and other securities limited in respect of any one issuer to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of its total assets and to not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer.

The Fund currently offers a single class of Shares designated as "common shares." Shares of the Fund are continuously offered under the Securities Act. Shares are not listed, and the Fund does not intend to list Shares for trading, on any national securities exchange. The Fund is an interval fund that provides limited liquidity through a quarterly Repurchase Offer of Shares at NAV pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the Investment Company Act.

The Fund's address is 5050 S. Syracuse Street, Suite 1100, Denver, Colorado 80237 and its telephone number is (877) 200-1878.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND INVESTMENT FEATURES

Investment Objectives

The Fund's primary investment objective is to seek consistent current income, while the Fund's secondary objectives are capital preservation and long-term capital appreciation. The Fund's ability to achieve current income and/or long-term capital appreciation will be tempered by the investment objective of capital preservation. The Adviser seeks to achieve the Fund's objective by investing primarily in (i) investments in third party private funds that themselves invest in real estate and in debt investments secured by real estate (i.e., private real estate investment trusts ("REITs") and investment funds and other pooled investment vehicles (collectively, "Private Funds")); and (ii) domestic and international publicly traded real estate securities, such as common and preferred stock of publicly listed REITs and publicly traded real estate debt securities ("Real Estate Securities" and together with the Private Funds, "Real Estate-Related Investments"). Under normal market conditions, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its net assets, plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes, in Real Estate-Related Investments. This 80% policy is not a fundamental policy of the Fund and may be changed by the Board without shareholder approval upon 60 days' prior notice to shareholders.

The Fund is a multi-strategy, multi-manager fund that seeks to achieve its investment objectives primarily through the selection and monitoring of, and the allocation of assets of the Fund to, Private Funds and Sub-Advisers that the Adviser believes will meet the Fund's investment objectives. While maintaining a balance of strategies, markets, risks and institutional asset managers within the real estate industry, it is the intent that over time the Fund's portfolio reflect the broad trends of the real estate market. The Fund's investment strategy seeks to attain portfolio stability and favorable risk-adjusted investment returns with a focus on income and a low correlation to the publicly-traded equities markets. The Fund pursues its investment strategy by seeking to diversify its overall Real Estate-Related Investment portfolio by: (i) geography: asset holdings primarily in the United States but with certain holdings across the rest of North America, Europe, Asia, Australia and other geographic regions; (ii) property type: investments in multi-family, industrial, office, retail, hotel and other property types; (iii) strategy: differing property and securities acquisition, underwriting and management strategies; and (iv) capital structure: investments that include debt and equity securities, including preferred stock.

Subject to the repurchase policies of the Private Funds, the Adviser expects to reallocate the Fund's assets in response to changes in market values and the performance of the Managers. The Adviser aims to maintain a portfolio of investments that includes a variety of strategies, markets and types of Managers.

The Fund has been designed to afford the Adviser flexibility to deploy assets in real estate investment strategies it deems appropriate under prevailing economic and market conditions. Accordingly, at any given time, the Fund may not invest in all of the enumerated real estate investment strategies described in this Prospectus, and the Fund's investment allocation is not fixed and will likely not be equally weighted. The Adviser may add different investment strategies at its discretion within the real estate sector, consistent with the Fund's investment objectives.

Additional information about the types of investments that are expected to be made by the Fund is provided below and in the SAI. The Fund's investment objectives are a fundamental policy and may not be changed without the approval of shareholders. Except as otherwise indicated, the Fund's investment policies and restrictions are not fundamental and may be changed without a vote of the shareholders. See "Additional Investment Policies – Fundamental Policies" in the SAI.

No assurance can be given that the Fund will achieve its investment objectives.

Investing in Real Estate-Related Investments

The Fund may invest directly in, and gain exposure to, investment strategies, which involve various types of properties, in different geographic locations, with various risk/reward profiles and differing pieces of the capital structure including equity, debt or preferred securities. The Fund has been designed to afford the Adviser flexibility to deploy assets in real estate investment strategies it deems appropriate under prevailing economic and market conditions. Allocations to a Private Fund may vary over time upon the ongoing monitoring of the Adviser and continuous analysis of alternative real estate managers and real estate securities managers. As noted above, the Fund will limit its investment in any one Private Fund to less than 25% of the Fund's assets. Under normal circumstances, the majority of the Fund's assets are expected to be invested in Private Funds (i.e., private funds that invest in real estate and debt investments secured by real estate), with the balance of the Fund's assets allocated to Sub-Advisers and to cash and cash equivalents. The Fund is not limited in the types of Private Funds and Sub-Advisers that it may select or the types of investment activities in which they may engage, within the real estate sector and consistent with its investment objectives. Likewise, Sub-Advisers that are selected to sub-advise a specified portion of the Fund's assets for investment in Real Estate Securities may only use long-only investment strategies, and will be restricted from selling securities short and writing uncovered options. The following is a brief description of the strategies implemented by the Fund, which strategies are employed on a collective basis to achieve the Fund's objectives.

Private Funds. The Fund gains exposure to Real Estate-Related Assets in part through investments in Private Funds. Private Funds are pooled investment vehicles, which are typically exempt from registration, that have investors other than the Fund. The Fund will be an investor in the Private Funds as any typical investor would be. Some of these Private Funds themselves invest in real estate. Other Private Funds invest in debt investments secured by real estate either directly or through separate entities. Private Funds typically accept investments on a continuous basis, have quarterly repurchases, and do not have a defined termination date. Although the Private Funds are not investment companies registered pursuant to the Investment Company Act, some of the fund structures may be 3(c)(1)/3(c)(7) Funds (which, for the avoidance of doubt, but for Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) would meet the definition of investment company under the Investment Company Act and not qualify for any other exemption) while many others are Other Private Funds that would not be investment companies for reasons other than the exemptions in Sections 3(c)(1) and 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act. The Fund intends to invest no more than 15% of its assets in 3(c)(1)/3(c)(7) Funds (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any Private Fund that would qualify as an Other Private Fund). Additionally, the Fund will not invest in Private Funds that hold themselves out as "hedge funds." While the Adviser will only select Private Funds that invest in real estate and/or real estate-related debt, these Private Funds will operate in a variety of global markets with a variety of real estate-related strategies and risk/return characteristics.

Real Estate-Related Debt. The Private Funds may invest in real estate debt investments, among other things, including commercial real estate loans and other real estate-related securities. The Fund intends to identify Private Funds with Managers that focus on the major property types within commercial real estate (multifamily, industrial, office and retail), but the Fund may also seek debt investments in respect of certain other property types with strong credit characteristics. The Private Funds may make such investments through investment and origination of first mortgage loans as well as subordinated debt (B-notes and mezzanine loans), participating loans, bridge loans, and other secured real estate-related debt.

Core. The Fund may invest in Private Funds with strategies that target high-quality portfolios with real estate assets that provide relatively lower and more stable returns. Investments are typically located in primary markets and in the main property types (offices, retail, industrial and multi-family). Properties are stable, well-maintained, well-leased

and often of the Class A variety. For example, office properties tend to be Class A buildings with investment grade tenants. Multi-family properties are usually in major metropolitan cities with higher rental rates. Retail would typically be more traditional neighborhood and community strip-mall centers, as well as regional and super regional malls. The Adviser believes that warehouse and research and development properties in strong distribution centers typically offer better chances for predictable cash flow within the industrial sector. The Fund intends to identify investments within this strategy that anticipate limited or no leverage (i.e., approximately 0% to 30%) or additional capital investment, maintain relatively stable and high occupancy levels and typically carry premium rents within a market. As an example, a Class A office property may broadly be defined as 100,000 square feet or larger (five or more floors), concrete and steel construction, recently built and/or very well maintained (excellent condition), with business/support amenities and in a strong identifiable location with good access to a primary metropolitan market.

Core Plus. The Fund may invest in Private Funds with strategies that seek moderate risk portfolios with real estate that provides moderate returns. Investments are predominantly core but with an emphasis on a modest value add management approach. A core-plus portfolio requires slightly more complex financial structuring and management intensive focus than core portfolio of investments. Focus is on the main property types, in both primary and secondary markets, in Class A or lower quality buildings that require some form of enhancement (i.e., repositioning, redevelopment and/or releasing). The Fund intends to identify investments within this strategy that anticipate moderately low leverage (i.e., approximately 30% to 49%) and some additional capital investment. In comparison to the Class A example above, a Class B property may be renovated and/or in good condition, potentially smaller in size, in a good location in a primary or secondary metropolitan market.

Value Added. The Fund may invest in Private Funds with strategies that typically focus on more aggressive active asset management and often employs more leverage. Investment portfolios typically target lower quality buildings, in both primary and secondary markets in the main property types. Properties are considered value added when they exhibit management or operational problems, require physical improvement, and/or suffer from capital constraints. Buildings often require enhancement to upgrade them to Class A buildings (i.e., redevelopment/repositioning/releasing). The Fund intends to identify investments within this strategy that anticipate moderate leverage (i.e., approximately 50% to 65%) and additional capital investment.

The Private Funds will not be registered as investment companies under the Investment Company Act. See "Risk Factors – Private Funds Risk." In order to ensure compliance with the Code and other applicable regulatory requirements, the Fund generally will seek to invest in Private Funds that utilize private REIT investment vehicles (as defined for federal tax purposes under the Code) as the Adviser expects that income from such REIT entities would comply with the RIC 90% investment income requirement under the Code. See "Taxes."

Real Estate Securities. The Fund may invest directly in Real Estate Securities, including equity and debt securities issued by real estate-related companies. The Adviser has engaged the Sub-Advisers to invest the Fund's assets in Real Estate Securities.

Global Real Estate Equities. The Fund seeks global real estate equity investments that the Adviser believes will generate competitive total returns and current income. These investments typically include equity securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. real estate companies, including REITs and similar REIT-like entities. REIT-like entities are organized outside of the U.S. and have operations and receive tax treatment similar to that of U.S. REITs. The Fund may also invest in securities of foreign companies in the form of ADRs, GDRs and EDRs. The Sub-Advisers employ a risk-managed investment approach that focuses on companies the Sub-Advisers believe have potential for growth and/or strong income characteristics.

Real Estate Preferred Equities. The Fund seeks real estate preferred equity investments that the Adviser believes will generate high income and capital preservation. These investments typically include preferred stock of REITs and other real estate-related companies. The Sub-Advisers apply differing strategies, including, but not limited to, a value-oriented investment approach focused on credit quality and company fundamentals. The Sub-Advisers will evaluate the fundamental characteristics of the issuers, including creditworthiness and prevailing market factors. This approach will take into account an issuer's corporate and capital structures and placement of the preferred securities within that structure.

Real Estate Debt. The Fund's direct real estate debt investments include commercial real estate loans and other real estate-related securities that the Sub-Advisers believe will generate a stable income stream of attractive and consistent cash distributions. The Fund may make such investments through investment and origination of first mortgage loans as well as subordinated debt (B-notes and mezzanine loans), commercial mortgage backed securities ("CMBS"), participating loans, bridge loans and other secured and unsecured real estate-related debt. There is no limit on the maturity or duration of any individual security and/or other investment in which the Fund may invest.

The Adviser will delegate to Sub-Advisers the management of a designated portion of the Fund's assets for investment in Real Estate Securities. Underlying equity securities chosen by the Sub-Advisers may be listed or unlisted and underlying debt securities may be rated or unrated.

Other Investments. In certain circumstances or market environments the Fund may reduce its investment in Real Estate-Related Investments and hold a larger position in short-term, high-quality debt securities, money market instruments, money market funds, exchange-traded funds, and/or cash or cash equivalents. The Fund may also invest excess cash balances in these types of investments, as deemed appropriate by the Adviser. The Fund may use derivative strategies for hedging exposure to foreign currencies and interest rates. In addition, in pursuing its investment objective, the Fund may seek to enhance returns through the use of leverage. The Fund intends to utilize leverage opportunistically and may choose to increase or decrease, or eliminate entirely, its use of leverage over time and from time to time based on the Adviser's assessment of the yield curve environment, interest rate trends, market conditions and other factors.

Selection of Private Funds and Sub-Advisers

The Adviser follows certain general guidelines when reviewing and selecting Private Funds and Sub-Advisers. The Adviser takes into consideration the following criteria, as applicable, when selecting the approved Managers: assets under management; length of time in the business; stability and depth of corporate management; stability and depth of investment management team; investment strategies, target returns and leverage limitations; investment process and research capacity; existing portfolio composition and valuation; structure of any Private Funds and tax considerations; historical performance and reputation; fees and expenses; conflicts policies; reporting and valuation policies/process; and investor rights and controls.

Although the Adviser will attempt to apply the guidelines consistently, the guidelines involve the application of subjective and qualitative criteria and, the selection of Private Funds and Sub-Advisers is a fundamentally subjective process. The use of the selection guidelines may be modified or eliminated at the discretion of the Adviser. In addition, some Private Funds may be newly organized and have no, or only limited, operating histories. However, the Adviser typically will select Managers whose principals have substantial experience investing assets in real estate and/or Real Estate Securities. There can be no assurance that the Adviser will be able to access Private Funds or Sub-Advisers that will enable the Fund to meet its objectives.

Other than regulatory limitations applicable to a RIC, the Adviser is not bound by any fixed criteria in allocating assets to Private Funds. Private Funds have some flexibility to make investments in accordance with the market environment and employ leverage, as permitted within the operative documents for their investment vehicle and limitations set forth in the Code for operation of a REIT or corporate entity. See "Risk Factors – Concentration Risk" and "– Leverage Risk." While the approved Private Funds and Sub-Advisers have been reviewed and approved by the Adviser, there is no guarantee that any one Private Fund or Sub-Adviser will receive an allocation of the Fund's assets for investment. When a Private Fund or Sub-Adviser is selected, the allocation of assets may vary substantially for each. Additionally, there can be no assurance that a Private Fund or Sub-Adviser will have the capacity to accept additional assets for management and there may be a delay in the acceptance of such an investment that may change the Fund's ability to utilize such approved Private Fund or Sub-Adviser.

The current investment guidelines developed by the Adviser include a review of the Private Funds and Sub-Advisers. In conducting this review, the Adviser will rely on its analysis and due diligence process for the selection of the appropriate Private Funds and Sub-Advisers. The Adviser may engage research and consulting services to assist in the aggregation and review of due diligence materials for each of the Private Funds and Sub-Advisers that it considers. In addition, the Adviser seeks to conduct a multi-step process to review and evaluate each potential Private Fund and each potential Sub-Advisers that includes: meetings, questionnaires, interviews, and reference calls. The goal of the due diligence process is to evaluate: (i) the background of the Manager's firm and its respective team; (ii) the infrastructure of the Manager's research, evaluation and investment procedures; (iii) the Manager's strategies and method of execution; (iv) the Manager's risk control and portfolio management processes; and (v) the differentiating factors that the Adviser believe give a Private Fund or Sub-Adviser an advantage over other potential investment funds and Managers.

Once a Private Fund is selected, the Fund and the Adviser continue to review the investment process and performance of the Private Fund. The Adviser and the Board engage in the necessary due diligence to ensure that the Fund's assets are invested in Private Funds that provide reports that will enable them to monitor the Fund's investments as to their overall performance, sources of income, asset valuations and liabilities. The Adviser, subject

to the repurchase policies of the Private Funds, may reallocate the Fund's assets among the Private Funds, redeem its investment in Private Funds, and/or select additional Private Funds.

In addition, once a Sub-Adviser is selected by the Adviser and approved by the Board and a majority of the existing shareholders (at such time), as necessary, to sub-advise a specified portion of the Fund's assets for investment in Real Estate Securities, the Fund and the Adviser continue to review the investment process and performance of the Sub-Adviser. The Adviser and the Board engage in the necessary due diligence to ensure that the Fund's assets are invested in Real Estate Securities that are consistent with the Fund's investment objective and RIC requirements and that the investment performance in such securities is satisfactory.

Borrowing/Leverage

In pursuing its investment objective, the Fund may seek to enhance returns through the use of leverage. The Fund may use leverage to make additional investments, to satisfy repurchase requests from Fund shareholders, to provide the Fund with temporary liquidity, or as a temporary measure for extraordinary or emergency purposes, including for the payment of dividends or the settlement of securities transactions which otherwise might require untimely dispositions of portfolio securities held by the Fund. The Fund may add leverage to its portfolio by utilizing a bank loan secured by the portfolio securities of the Fund, commercial paper, and/or other borrowings available to the Fund. The Fund intends to utilize borrowings and other forms of leverage opportunistically and may choose to increase or decrease its use of leverage over time and from time to time based on the Adviser's assessment of the yield curve environment, interest rate trends, market conditions and other factors. Leveraging is a speculative technique and the use of leverage involves increased costs and risk, including increased variability of the Fund's net income, distributions and net asset value in relation to market changes. There can be no assurance that a leveraging strategy will be used or that it will be successful during any period in which it is employed. The Fund may lose money through the use of leverage. See "Risk Factors – Leverage Risk." The Fund has, and may in the future, borrow money in order to repurchase its Shares. The Fund may also borrow to facilitate investments or to seek to enhance returns. The Fund intends to limit its borrowing and the overall leverage of its portfolio to an amount that does not exceed 33-1/3% of the Fund's gross asset value. Any leverage at the Fund level will be in addition to financial leverage that a Private Fund may use as part of its capital structure.

Effects of Leverage

Assuming the Fund obtains bank borrowings with a repayment obligation equal to approximately 3% of the Fund's managed assets and an annual interest rate of 6% of such repayment obligation or principal balance (which rate is approximately the current rate which the Adviser expects the Fund to pay, based on market rates as of June 30, 2023, income generated by the Fund's portfolio (net of estimated expenses) would need to exceed 0.17% in order to cover such interest payments on the borrowings. Actual interest rates may vary and may be significantly higher or lower than the rate estimated above.

The following table illustrates the hypothetical effect on the return to a holder of the Fund's common Shares of the leverage obtained through bank borrowings equal to approximately 3% of the Fund's managed assets and interest paid on borrowings at an annual rate of 6%. It is designed to illustrate the effect of leverage on the total return of common Shares, assuming investment portfolio total returns (comprised of income and changes in the value of securities held in the Fund's portfolio) of -10%, -5%, 0%, 5% and 10%. These assumed investment portfolio returns are hypothetical figures and are not necessarily indicative of the investment portfolio returns experienced or expected to be experienced by the Fund. See "Risk Factors – Leverage Risk."

Assumed Portfolio Total Return

(Net of Expenses)	(10)%	(5)%	0%	5%	10%
Common Share Total Return	(10.44)%	(5.30)%	(0.17)%	4.97%	10.11%

Total Return is composed of two elements: the dividends on common Shares paid by the Fund (the amount of which is largely determined by the net investment income of the Fund after paying interest on its leverage) and gains or losses on the value of the securities the Fund owns.

The Fund currently uses leverage (whether through the use of senior securities or otherwise) to achieve its investment objective, as a liquidity source to Fund repurchases or for temporary and extraordinary purposes and may consider other potential uses in the future. The Fund's willingness to use leverage, and the extent to which leverage is used at any time, will depend on many factors, including the Adviser's assessment of the yield curve environment, interest rate trends, market conditions, and other factors.

The Fund's investment program is speculative and entails substantial risks. There can be no assurance that the Fund's or the Private Funds' investment objectives will be achieved or that their investment programs will be successful. In particular, a Private Fund's use of leverage, its sector or geographic focus, its limited diversification and the limited liquidity of some of its investments, in certain circumstances, can result in or contribute to significant losses to the Fund. Shareholders should consider the Fund as a supplement to an overall investment program and should invest only if they are willing to undertake the risks involved. Shareholders could lose some or all of their investment. The current investment themes and the research and investment process presented in this material represent the views of the Adviser at the time this material was completed and are subject to change without notice.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

Directors and Officers

The Board has overall responsibility to manage and control the business affairs of the Fund, including the complete and exclusive authority to oversee and to establish policies regarding the management, conduct and operation of the Fund's business. The Board exercises the same powers, authority and responsibilities on behalf of the Fund as are customarily exercised by the board of directors of a registered investment company. There are currently six directors of the Fund, one of whom is treated by the Fund as an "interested person" (as defined in the Investment Company Act). The names and business addresses of the directors and officers of the Fund and their principal occupations and other affiliations during the past five years are set forth under "Management of the Fund" in the SAI.

Control Persons

A control person is one who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, more than 25% of the voting securities of a company or acknowledges the existence of control. As of July 1, 2023, the Fund did not know of any person that controlled the Fund.

Adviser and Investment Management Fee

Under the ultimate supervision of and subject to any policies established by the Board, the Adviser provides investment advice to and manages the day-to-day business and affairs of the Fund pursuant to an investment management agreement between the Fund and the Adviser (the "Investment Management Agreement"). In addition to managing a portion of the Fund's assets directly, the Adviser has responsibility, subject to the review and approval of the Board, for selecting and the Fund's strategies and for selecting and hiring the Sub-Advisers to the Fund. The Adviser allocates the Fund's assets and monitors the Sub-Advisers' investment programs for consistency with the Fund's investment objective and strategies. The Adviser may, at its discretion, reallocate the Fund's assets among itself and the Sub-Advisers, allocate assets away from Sub-Advisers, and select additional SubAdvisers subject to review and approval of the Board. The Adviser also provides certain administrative services to the Fund, including: providing office space, handling of shareholder inquiries regarding the Fund, providing shareholders with information concerning their investment in the Fund, coordinating and organizing meetings of the Board, and providing other support services.

In consideration for its investment management services, the Fund pays the Adviser an Investment Management Fee equal to 0.95% annually of the average daily NAV of the Fund. The Investment Management Fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears. The Investment Management Fee will be paid to the Adviser out of the Fund's assets. Because the Investment Management Fee is calculated based on the Fund's average daily NAV and is paid out of the Fund's assets, it reduces the NAV of the Shares.

Conflicts of interest exist as a result of the fact that the Adviser receives the Investment Management Fee irrespective of the allocation of the Fund's assets. This conflict of interest arises because the amount of overall time, expense, and other resources expended to select and monitor Sub-Advisers may be less than what is expended to select and monitor underlying Private Funds. If the overall time, expense, and other resources expended by the Adviser to select and monitor Sub-Advisers of the Fund is less than what the Adviser expends to select and monitor Private Funds, the Adviser will have an incentive to allocate more of the Fund's assets to Sub-Advisers. The Board monitors this potential conflict of interest and any effect it may have on the Fund and its shareholders. Under normal circumstances, the Adviser does not believe that its overall cost and expense will differ materially between selecting and monitoring Private Funds on the one hand, or in selecting and monitoring Sub-Advisers, on the other.

The Adviser is an asset management firm that specializes in real asset investing with approximately \$5.75 billion in assets under management as of March 31, 2023. The Adviser is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") as an investment adviser under the Advisers Act. The Adviser's offices are located at 5050 S. Syracuse Street, Suite 1100, Denver, Colorado 80237, and its telephone number is (877) 200-1878. Colliers International Group Inc., a publicly traded real estate services and investment management company whose principal offices are at 1140 Bay Street, Suite 4000 Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5S 2B4, owns, directly and indirectly, approximately 75% of the outstanding securities of the Adviser.

The Investment Management Agreement may be terminated at any time by vote of the Board or by a vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities on sixty days' written notice to the Adviser or by the Adviser on ninety days' written notice to the Fund. The Investment Management Agreement continues in effect from year to year if its continuance is approved annually by either the Board or the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, provided that, in either event, the continuance also is approved by a majority of the Independent Directors of the Board. The Investment Management Agreement also provides that it will terminate automatically in the event of its "assignment," as such term is defined in the Investment Company Act.

The Investment Management Agreement provides that in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence by the Adviser in the performance of its duties under the Investment Management Agreement or reckless disregard of its obligations under the Investment Management Agreement, the Adviser will not be liable to the Fund for any error of judgment or for any loss suffered by the Fund in connection with the subject matter of the Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Management also provides for indemnification, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by the Fund of the Adviser and its affiliates, and their respective partners, members, managers, directors, officers, shareholders, employees, and controlling persons (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties"), against any losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and amounts paid in settlement of any claims sustained by them in connection with the Fund, provided that such amounts were not the direct result of willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence on the part of such Indemnified Party in the performance of its duties (if any) under the Investment Management Agreement or resulted from such Indemnified Party's reckless disregard of its obligations and duties (if any) under the Investment Management Agreement.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the Investment Management Agreement between the Fund and the Adviser, along with a discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the continuation of the previous investment management agreement between the Fund and the Adviser is available in the Fund's semi-annual report to shareholders for the fiscal period ended September 30, 2022.

Key Personnel of the Adviser

The Adviser's Investment Committee reviews and approves each new investment that the Adviser makes for the Fund. The Adviser's Investment Committee includes the portfolio managers listed below as well as the Adviser's president, William Fuhs, and maintains primary responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Fund's investment portfolio. The members of the Adviser's Investment Committee have substantial experience with the establishment, underwriting, and management of investment products consisting primarily of real asset investment products and real estate-related securities. The members of the Adviser's Investment Committee are not employed by the Fund and do not receive direct compensation from the Fund in connection with their portfolio management activities. The SAI provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by the portfolio managers and the portfolio managers' ownership of securities of the Fund.

Name	Title	Since	Recent Experience
Casey Frazier, CFA	Chief Investment Officer	Inception	Chief Investment Officer of Versus Capital Advisors. Mr. Frazier is the Chairman of the Versus Investment Committee. He has served as the CIO since joining the Adviser in 2011.
Dave Truex, CFA	Deputy Chief Investment Officer	August 2017	Deputy Chief Investment Officer of Versus Capital Advisors. Mr. Truex is a member of the Versus Investment Committee. He has served as the Deputy CIO since joining the Adviser in 2017. Prior to joining the Adviser, Mr. Truex was a Portfolio Manager for Colorado's Public Employees Retirement Association from 2013 to 2017.

Sub-Advisers and Sub-Advisory Fees

The Adviser has responsibility, subject to oversight by the Board, for overseeing the SubAdvisers and for recommending their hiring, termination and replacement. The Adviser may only enter into new sub-advisory relationships for the Fund upon Board approval and upon the approval of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities pursuant to the Investment Company Act. If such approval is obtained, the Adviser (or the Fund) may enter into sub-advisory relationships with registered investment advisers that possess skills that the Adviser believes will aid it in achieving the Fund's investment objective. The Adviser has entered into such sub-advisory agreements with the following Sub-Advisers:

Principal Real Estate Securities

The Adviser has engaged Principal Real Estate Investors, LLC ("PrinREI") a registered adviser under the Advisers Act, to act as an independent sub-adviser to the Fund. PrinREI has been managing commercial real estate securities since 1998 and is a wholly-owned, indirect subsidiary of Principal Financial Group, Inc., a public company listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market (symbol: PFG). PrinREI focuses on investments in publicly traded real estate securities including both equity and debt investments in both U.S. and non-U.S. markets. PrinREI is located at 711 High Street, Des Moines, IA 50392. PrinREI typically seeks to provide exposure to publicly traded Real Estate Securities on behalf of the Fund. PrinREI is paid a management fee by the Fund's shareholders based on assets under management that decreases as assets increase. The fees are assessed on a sliding scale and range from 0.60% down to 0.49% based on assets under management.

The key decision makers for the portfolio are the REIT equities portfolio managers Kelly Rush, Anthony Kenkel, Simon Hedger and senior CMBS portfolio managers Marc Peterson and Scott Carson. The team averages over 20-years tenure with the firm and averages over 30 years of investment experience. The Statement of Additional Information provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by the portfolio managers and the portfolio managers ownership of securities in the Fund.

Name	Title	Since	Recent Experience
Kelly Rush	Chief Investment Officer	1987	Mr. Rush is the CIO and a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Rush has been with the firm since 1987.
Anthony Kenkel	Portfolio Manager	2001	Mr. Kenkel is a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Kenkel has been with the firm since 2001.
Simon Hedger	Portfolio Manager	2003	Mr. Hedger is a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Hedger has been with the firm since 2003.
Marc Peterson	Portfolio Manager	1992	Mr. Peterson is the CIO-CMBS for PrinREI. Mr. Peterson has been with the firm since 1992.
Scott Carson	Portfolio Manager	2003	Mr. Carson is a Global Portfolio Manager for PrinREI. Mr. Carson has been with the firm since 2003.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement between the Adviser and PrinREI, along with a discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the continuation of the previous investment sub-advisory agreement between the Adviser and PrinREI (the "PrinREI Sub-Advisory Agreement") is available in the Fund's semi-annual report to shareholders for the fiscal period ended September 30, 2022.

Security Capital Research & Management

The Adviser has engaged Security Capital Research & Management Incorporated ("Security Capital") a registered adviser under the Advisers Act, to act as an independent sub-adviser to the Fund. Founded in 1995, Security Capital operates with an exclusive focus on investments in U.S.-based real estate securities. Security Capital is located at 10 South Dearborn Street, 38th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60603. Security Capital typically seeks to provide exposure to publicly traded Real Estate Securities on behalf of the Fund using a detailed real estate research process that is focused on the cash flow generating potential of the real estate owned by the companies in whose securities the Fund invests. Security Capital is paid a management fee by the Fund's shareholders based on assets under management that decreases as assets increase. The fees are assessed on a sliding scale and ranging from 1.0% down to 0.45% based on assets under

management. Security Capital has a deep and experienced investment team contributing to the management of the assets managed on behalf of the Fund.

The Portfolio Management Team comprising Anthony R. Manno Jr., Kevin W. Bedell and Nathan J. Gear directs all investment decisions and average over 35 years of investment and real estate experience in all market cycles since the 1970s. The Statement of Additional Information provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by the portfolio managers and the portfolio managers' ownership of securities in the Fund.

Name	Title	Since	Recent Experience
Anthony Manno	CEO & CIO	1994	Mr. Manno is the CEO and CIO of Security Capital. Mr. Manno has been with the firm since 1994.
Kevin Bedell	Head of Investment Research	1996	Mr. Bedell is the Head of Investment Research of Security Capital. Mr. Bedell has been with the firm since 1996.
Nathan J. Gear	Executive Director	2006	Mr. Gear is senior member of the Investment Research Team, he leads the fundamental analysis and pricing of REIT fixed income senior securities.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement between the Adviser and Security Capital, along with a discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the continuation of the previous investment sub-advisory agreement between the Adviser and Security Capital (the "Security Capital Sub-Advisory Agreement") is available in the Fund's semi-annual report to shareholders for the fiscal period ended September 30, 2022.

Other Expenses of the Fund

The Fund bears all expenses incurred in connection with its operations, other than those specifically required to be borne by the Adviser and other service providers pursuant to their agreements with the Fund. Expenses borne by the Fund may include:

- all costs and expenses related to portfolio transactions and investments for the Fund's portfolio, including, but not limited to, brokerage commissions, research fees (including "soft dollars"), interest and commitment fees on loans and debt balances, custodial fees, shareholder servicing fees, margin fees, transfer taxes and premiums and taxes withheld on foreign dividends, and expenses from investments in the Private Funds;
- all costs and expenses associated with operation and registration of the Fund, offering costs and the costs of compliance with any applicable Federal or state laws;
- the costs and expenses of holding any meetings of the Board that are regularly scheduled, permitted or required to be held under the terms of the LLC Agreement, the Investment Company Act or other applicable law;
- fees and disbursements of any attorneys, accountants, auditors and other consultants and professionals engaged on behalf of the Fund;
- the costs of a fidelity bond and any liability or other insurance, including director and officer insurance, obtained on behalf of the Fund or the Board;
- all costs and expenses of preparing, setting in type, printing and distributing reports and other communications to shareholders;
- all expenses of computing the Fund's NAV, including any equipment or services obtained for the purpose of valuing the Fund's investment portfolio, including appraisal and valuation services provided by third parties;
- all charges for equipment or services used for communications between the Fund and any custodian, or other agent engaged by the Fund;
- the fees of BNY Mellon and of custodians, transfer agents, and other persons providing administrative services to the Fund:

- personnel costs and expenses for the Fund's Chief Compliance Officer; and
- such other types of expenses as may be approved from time to time by the Board.

The Fund will reimburse the Adviser for any of the above expenses that it pays on behalf of the Fund.

Additional Service Providers

BNY Mellon performs certain administrative and accounting services and shareholder services for the Fund and the Adviser. In consideration for these services, the Fund pays BNY Mellon an annual fee, which will accrue daily on the basis of the average daily NAV of the Fund, subject to a minimum monthly service fee.

In addition, BNY Mellon serves as the Fund's Transfer Agent and maintains the Fund's accounts, books and other documents as required to be maintained under the Investment Company Act at 118 Flanders Road, Westborough, MA 01581, or at such other place as designated by the Adviser.

The Bank of New York Mellon (the "Custodian") serves as the Fund's custodian. The Custodian's principal business address is 240 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10286.

SUITABILITY OF THE INVESTMENT

An investment in the Fund involves a considerable amount of risk. You may some or all of your entire investment in the Fund. An investment in the Fund is suitable only for investors who can bear the risks associated with the limited liquidity of the Shares and should be viewed as a long-term investment. An investment in the Fund may be appropriate for long-term investors seeking to diversify their total investment portfolios by pursuing income and potential growth by adding a real estate exposure to their total portfolio. Before making your investment decision, you and/or your personal financial adviser should consider (i) the suitability of this investment with respect to your investment objectives and personal situation and (ii) factors such as your personal net worth, income, age, risk tolerance and liquidity needs. The Fund should be considered an illiquid investment. You will not be able to redeem your Shares on a daily basis because the Fund is a closed-end fund; however, limited liquidity will be available through quarterly Repurchase Offers described in this Prospectus. In addition, the Shares are not traded on an exchange and there is currently no secondary market for the Shares. See "Risk Factors – Interval Fund Risk" and "– Liquidity Risk."

HOW TO PURCHASE SHARES

The Fund offers Shares continuously at the prevailing NAV per Share. Shares are not subject to any upfront sales load, distribution fee or early withdrawal charge. Shares are only available for purchase by: (i) institutional investors, including registered investment advisers ("RIAs"), banks, trust companies or similar financial institutions investing for their own account or for accounts for which they act as a fiduciary and have authority to make investment decisions (subject to certain limitations) and clients of such institutional investors that have accounts for which such institutional investors are bound by an applicable fiduciary standard, and (ii) the executive officers, directors, general partners, or employees of the Fund or the Adviser. The minimum initial investment per institutional investor of the Fund (including, with respect to clause (i) above, cumulative investments of the clients of any institutional investor of the Fund) is \$10 million and the minimum for those investors referred to in clause (ii) above is \$10,000. There is no minimum amount for subsequent purchases of Shares. The Adviser has the authority to waive the minimum investment requirements or allow investors in the Fund who do not fit the above descriptions under certain circumstances.

Shares generally will only be available through certain financial intermediaries that provide custodial and/or clearing services for the Fund's institutional investors (e.g., banks, broker/dealers, investment advisers, trusts, financial industry professionals, etc., collectively referred to as "Intermediaries" and individually as "Intermediary"). You may purchase Shares from any Intermediary by submitting an order to purchase Shares on any day that the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") is open for business (each, a "Business Day"). An Intermediary can help you establish and maintain an account with such Intermediary and purchase Shares of the Fund for such account. The Fund has authorized one or more Intermediaries to receive orders to purchase Shares and repurchase orders in response to a Repurchase Offer, on its behalf. Further, Intermediaries are authorized to designate other Intermediaries to receive orders to purchase Shares and repurchase orders in response to a Repurchase Offer. Once an Intermediary has determined that your investment in the Fund is suitable for your investment profile, such Intermediary shall submit a purchase order for Shares to the Fund's Transfer Agent. The Fund will be deemed to have received a purchase or repurchase order when

an Intermediary or its authorized designee submits the order to the Fund's Transfer Agent. The Shares are offered at the prevailing NAV per Share as of the Business Day that the request to purchase Shares is received and accepted by or on behalf of the Fund. The Fund expects to distribute Shares principally through Intermediaries. Because an investment in Shares involves many considerations, your financial advisor or other Intermediary may help you with your investment decision. You also should discuss with your financial advisor or Intermediary any payments received as a result of your investment in our Shares.

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Obstruct Terrorism Act (commonly referred to as the USA PATRIOT Act) may require an Intermediary or its authorized designee to obtain certain personal information from you, which will be used to verify your identity. If you do not provide information, it may not be possible to open your account. If the Intermediary or authorized designee is unable to verify your customer information, the Fund reserves the right to close your account or take other steps it deems reasonable.

REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Fund issues periodic reports to all investors, including annual audited financial statements, which are available on the Fund's website at www.versuscapital.com. Paper copies of the Fund's periodic reports will no longer be sent by mail, as permitted by regulations adopted by the SEC. You will instead be notified by mail and provided with a link each time a report is posted to the website. If you already elected to receive reports electronically, you will not be affected by this change. Copies of the Prospectus and shareholder reports may be obtained by calling (877) 200-1878.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Fund may become involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. The Fund is not currently involved in any material legal proceedings and, to the Fund's knowledge, no material legal proceedings are threatened against the Fund.

DISTRIBUTION POLICY AND DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT POLICY

The Fund intends to make regular quarterly distributions to the shareholders of all or a portion of any dividends or investment income it earns on investments. In addition, the Fund will make regular distributions to the shareholders of all or a portion of capital gains distributed to the Fund by Private Funds and capital gains earned by the Fund from the disposition of Private Funds or other investments, together with any dividends or interest income earned from such investments, in accordance with the requirements of the Investment Company Act and the Code. Distributions by the Fund may include returns of capital for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The Fund will establish reasonable cash reserves to meet Fund cash payment obligations prior to making distributions.

All distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder "opts out" (elects not to reinvest in additional Shares), pursuant to the Fund's Dividend Reinvestment Policy. A shareholder may elect initially not to reinvest by indicating that choice on a shareholder certification. Thereafter, a shareholder is free to change his, her or its election on a quarterly basis. Shareholders may change their election or receive additional information regarding the Fund's Dividend Reinvestment Policy by contacting BNY Mellon, the Fund's Dividend Reinvestment Policy agent (the "Plan Agent"), at (855) 653-7173 or 118 Flanders Road, Westborough, MA 01581 (or, alternatively, by contacting the Intermediary through which the shareholder acquired his, her or its Shares, who will inform the Fund). Whenever the Board declares an income dividend or capital gains distribution payable in Shares or cash, shareholders (unless they have "opted out") will take such dividend or distribution entirely in Shares to be issued by the Fund, and the Plan Agent shall automatically receive such Shares, including fractions, for the shareholder's account. The number of Shares, including fractions, received by each participant in respect of the dividend or distribution will be based on the current NAV of the Fund on the ex-dividend date (generally, the twentieth calendar day of a calendar quarter), as determined by or on behalf of the Fund. There is no sales load or other charge for Shares received pursuant to the Dividend Reinvestment Policy. The Fund reserves the right to suspend or limit at any time the ability of shareholders to reinvest distributions. Distributions are taxable as described herein whether shareholders receive them in cash or reinvest them in additional shares. See "Taxes."

QUARTERLY REPURCHASES OF SHARES

The Fund has adopted a fundamental policy that it will make quarterly Repurchase Offers for not less than 5% nor more than 25% of the Shares outstanding on the Repurchase Request Deadline. The Repurchase Offer amount will be determined by the Board before each Repurchase Offer. Each quarterly Repurchase Offer will be at the NAV per Share determined as of the Repurchase Pricing Date. Because this policy is "fundamental," it may not be changed without the vote of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. Shares will be repurchased at the NAV per Share determined as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE on the Repurchase Pricing Date.

Shareholders will be notified in writing about each quarterly Repurchase Offer, how they may request that the Fund repurchase their Shares and the Repurchase Request Deadline, which is the date the Repurchase Offer ends. The Repurchase Request Deadline will be determined by the Board and will be based on factors such as market conditions, liquidity of the Fund's assets and shareholder servicing conditions. The time between the notification to shareholders and the Repurchase Request Deadline may vary from no more than 42 days to no less than 21 days and is expected to be approximately 30 days. Certain authorized institutions, including custodians and clearing platforms, may set times prior to the Repurchase Request Deadline by which they must receive all shareholder repurchase requests and may require certain additional information. In addition, certain clearing houses may require shareholders to submit repurchase requests only on the Repurchase Request Deadline. The repurchase price of the Shares will be the NAV as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE on the Repurchase Pricing Date. Payment pursuant to the repurchase will be made by checks to the shareholder's address of record, or credited directly to a predetermined bank account on the Repurchase Payment Date, which is within seven days of the Repurchase Pricing Date. The Board may establish other policies for repurchases of Shares that are consistent with the Investment Company Act and other applicable laws. Shares tendered for repurchase by shareholders prior to any Repurchase Request Deadline will be repurchased subject to the aggregate repurchase amounts established for that Repurchase Request Deadline. Repurchase proceeds will be paid to shareholders prior to the Repurchase Payment Date.

Repurchase Amounts

The Board, or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion, will determine the number of Shares that the Fund will offer to repurchase (the "Repurchase Offer Amount") for a given Repurchase Request Deadline. The Repurchase Offer Amount, however, will be not less than 5% nor more than 25% of the Shares outstanding on the Repurchase Request Deadline. The Repurchase Offer Amount will be determined by the Board before each Repurchase Offer.

If Share repurchase requests exceed the number of Shares in the Fund's Repurchase Offer, the Fund may, in its sole discretion, (i) repurchase the number of Shares in the Fund's Repurchase Offer, allocating such repurchase among the shareholders on a pro rata basis based on the number of Shares tendered by each of the shareholders; or (ii) increase the number of Shares to be repurchased by up to 2.0% of the Fund's outstanding Shares. If the Fund determines to repurchase additional Shares beyond the Repurchase Offer Amount and if shareholders tender an amount of Shares greater than that which the Fund is entitled to repurchase, the Fund will repurchase the tendered Shares on a pro rata basis based on the number of Shares tendered by each of the Fund's shareholders. However, the Fund may accept all shares tendered for repurchase by Shareholders who own less than one hundred shares and who tender all of their Shares, before prorating other amounts tendered. Because of the potential for proration, tendering shareholders may not have all of their tendered Shares repurchased by the Fund in any Repurchase Offer. Shares repurchased by the Fund are not subject to an early withdrawal charge.

Notice to Shareholders

Notice of each Repurchase Offer will be given to each beneficial owner of Shares between 21 and 42 days before each Repurchase Request Deadline. The notice will describe (i) instructions for shareholders to tender their Shares for repurchase, (ii) the procedures for the Fund to repurchase Shares on a pro rata basis, (iii) the circumstances in which the Fund may suspend or postpone a Repurchase Offer, and (iv) the procedures that will enable shareholders to withdraw or modify their tenders of Shares for repurchase until the Repurchase Request Deadline. The notice will also state the Repurchase Offer Amount, the dates of the Repurchase Request Deadline, the scheduled Repurchase Pricing Date, and the scheduled Repurchase Payment Date. The notice will contain information shareholders should consider in deciding whether or not to tender their Shares for repurchase, including the risk of fluctuation in the NAV between the Repurchase Request Deadline and the Repurchase Pricing Date, if such dates do not coincide, and the possibility that the Fund may use an earlier Repurchase Pricing Date than the scheduled Repurchase Pricing Date (if the scheduled Repurchase Pricing Date is not the Repurchase Request Deadline).

Repurchase Price

The repurchase price of the Shares will be the NAV as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE on the Repurchase Pricing Date. The notice of the Repurchase Offer will set forth the NAV that has been computed no more than seven days before the date of notification, and how shareholders may ascertain the NAV after the notification date. The notice will also provide a toll-free number for information regarding the Repurchase Offer.

Suspension or Postponement of Repurchase Offer

The Fund may suspend or postpone a Repurchase Offer only: (i) if making or effecting the Repurchase Offer would cause the Fund to lose its status as a RIC under the Code; (ii) for any period during which the NYSE or any market on which the securities owned by the Fund are principally traded is closed, other than customary weekend and holiday closings, or during which trading in such market is restricted; (iii) for any period during which an emergency exists as a result of which disposal by the Fund of securities owned by it is not reasonably practicable, or during which it is not reasonably practicable for the Fund fairly to determine the value of its net assets; or (iv) for such other periods as the SEC may by order permit for the protection of shareholders of the Fund. The Fund shall not suspend or postpone a Repurchase Offer under the foregoing circumstances except pursuant to a vote of a majority of the Directors, including a majority of the Independent Directors.

Liquidity Requirements

The Fund must maintain liquid assets equal to the Repurchase Offer Amount from the time that the notice is sent to shareholders until the Repurchase Pricing Date. The Fund will ensure that a percentage of its net assets equal to at least 100% of the Repurchase Offer Amount consists of assets that can be sold or disposed of in the ordinary course of business at approximately the price at which the Fund has valued the investment within the time period between the Repurchase Request Deadline and the Repurchase Payment Date.

The Fund has adopted procedures that are reasonably designed to ensure that the Fund's assets are sufficiently liquid so that the Fund can comply with the Repurchase Offer and the liquidity requirements described in the previous paragraph. If, at any time, the Fund falls out of compliance with these liquidity requirements, the Board will take any action it deems appropriate to ensure compliance.

Consequences of Repurchase Offers

Repurchase Offers typically will be funded from available cash or sales of portfolio securities. Payment for repurchased Shares, however, may require the Fund to liquidate portfolio holdings earlier than the Adviser otherwise would, thus increasing the Fund's portfolio turnover and potentially causing the Fund to realize losses. The Adviser intends to take measures to attempt to avoid or minimize such potential losses and turnover, and instead of liquidating portfolio holdings, may borrow money to finance repurchases of Shares. If the Fund borrows to finance repurchases, interest on that borrowing will negatively affect shareholders who do not tender their Shares in a Repurchase Offer by increasing the Fund's expenses and reducing any net investment income. To the extent the Fund finances repurchase amounts by selling Fund investments, the Fund may hold a larger proportion of its assets in less liquid securities. In addition, the sale of portfolio securities to finance repurchases could reduce the market price of those underlying securities, which in turn would reduce the Fund's NAV.

Repurchase of the Shares will tend to reduce the amount of outstanding Shares and, depending upon the Fund's investment performance, its net assets. A reduction in the Fund's net assets would increase the Fund's expense ratio, to the extent that additional Shares are not sold and expenses otherwise remain the same (or increase). In addition, the repurchase of Shares by the Fund will be a taxable event to shareholders.

The Fund is intended as a long-term investment. The Fund's quarterly Repurchase Offers are a shareholder's only means of liquidity with respect to his, her or its Shares. Shareholders have no rights to redeem or transfer their Shares, other than limited rights pursuant to certain conditions and restrictions in the LLC Agreement. The Shares are not traded on a national securities exchange and no secondary market exists for the Shares, nor does the Fund expect a secondary market for the Shares to exist in the future.

CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The Fund calculates its NAV once each Business Day typically as of the regularly scheduled close of normal trading on the NYSE (normally, 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time). If the regular schedule of the NYSE is for a close prior to 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time, such as on days in advance of holidays observed by the NYSE, the Fund typically will calculate its NAV as of such earlier closing time. In unusual circumstances, such as an unscheduled close or halt of trading on the NYSE, the Fund may calculate its NAV as of an alternative time. The NAV of the Fund will be equivalent to its assets less its liabilities valued on the basis of market quotations where available and otherwise in accordance with the policies and procedures as discussed below and specifically in the Fund's Valuation Policy. The NAV of the Fund and the NAV per Share will be calculated daily by BNY Mellon, in accordance with the valuation methodologies approved by the Board, by the Adviser in its role as the Fund's valuation designee ("Valuation Designee"), or as may otherwise be determined from time to time pursuant to policies established by the Board or the Valuation Designee.

Valuation Methodology - Securities with Readily Available Market Quotations

Publicly Traded U.S. Listed Equity Securities, including certain Preferred Stock Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs) and Listed Closed End Funds. Investments in publicly traded, domestic equity securities that are listed on the NYSE are valued, except as indicated below, at the official closing price reflected at the close of the NYSE on the Business Day as of which such value is being determined. If there has been no published closing price on such day, the securities are fair valued in accordance with the procedures outlined below. Securities not listed on the NYSE but listed on other domestic or foreign securities exchanges are valued in a similar manner. Securities traded on more than one securities exchange are valued at the closing price of the exchange representing the principal market for such securities on the Business Day as of which such value is being determined. If, after the close of a domestic or foreign market, but prior to the close of business on the day the securities are being valued, market conditions change significantly, the domestic or foreign securities may be valued pursuant to procedures established by the Board or the Valuation Designee.

Open-End Mutual Funds. Investments in open-end mutual funds are valued at their closing NAV.

Fair Valuation Methodology – Securities without Readily Available Market Quotations, Priced by an Approved Pricing Source

Securities traded in the over-the-counter market, such as fixed-income securities and certain equities, including listed securities whose primary market is believed by the Valuation Designee to be over-the-counter, are valued at the official closing prices as reported by one or more pricing service providers as approved by the Board or the Valuation Designee ("Approved Pricing Sources"). If there has been no official closing price on such day, the securities are valued at the mean of the closing bid and ask prices for the day or, if no ask price is available, at the bid price.

Fixed income securities, typically will be valued on the basis of prices provided by an Approved Pricing Source, generally an evaluated price or at the mean of closing bid and ask prices obtained by the Approved Pricing Source when such prices are believed by the Valuation Designee to reflect the fair market value of such securities.

Syndicated loans are valued by Approved Pricing Sources at the average of broker quotes obtained from market makers deemed reliable by their internal evaluation staff or by internally developed models that incorporate both indicative quotes and actual trade data for similar loans.

Short-term debt securities, which have a maturity date of 60 days or less, are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Securities for which market prices are unavailable, or securities for which the Adviser determines that the market quotation is unreliable, will be valued at fair value pursuant to procedures approved by the Board. In these circumstances, the Adviser determines fair value in a manner that fairly reflects the market value of the security on the valuation date based on consideration of any information or factors it deems appropriate. These may include recent transactions in comparable securities, information relating to the specific security and developments in the markets.

The Fund's use of fair value pricing may cause the NAV of the Shares to differ from the NAV that would be calculated using market quotations. Fair value pricing involves subjective judgments and it is possible that the fair value determined for a security may be materially different from the value that could be realized upon the sale of such security.

Fair Valuation Methodology - Private Funds

The Board has adopted procedures pursuant to which the Valuation Designee typically will value the Fund's investments in the Private Funds according to the value reported by each Private Fund's quarterly NAV statement. The Valuation Designee will also review this information for reasonableness based on its knowledge of current market conditions and the individual characteristics of each Private Fund and may clarify or validate the reported information with the applicable manager of the Private Fund.

In certain circumstances, a Private Fund or its manager may provide information on a Private Fund's NAV on a basis more frequent than quarterly (daily or periodically). The Valuation Designee will also review this information for reasonableness based on its knowledge of current market conditions and the individual characteristics of each Private Fund and may clarify or validate the reported information with the applicable manager of the Private Fund. If determined reasonable, the Valuation Designee may value the Fund's investment in such Private Fund according to this information without further adjustments.

The Valuation Designee may conclude, in certain circumstances, that the information provided by any Private Fund or its manager does not represent the fair value of the Fund's investment in a Private Fund and is not indicative of what actual fair value would be under current market conditions. In those circumstances, the Valuation Designee may determine to value the Fund's investment in the Private Fund at a discount or a premium to the reported value received from the Private Fund. Any such decision will be made in good faith by the Valuation Designee, and will be reported to the Board's Valuation Committee at its next regularly scheduled quarterly meeting.

Additionally, between the quarterly valuation periods (and between other periodic valuation periods if determined appropriate by the Valuation Designee), the NAVs of such Private Funds are typically adjusted daily based on the total return that each Private Fund is estimated by the Valuation Designee to generate during the current quarter. The Valuation Designee monitors these estimates regularly and updates them as necessary if macro or individual fund changes warrant any adjustments.

The Valuation Designee shall use its best efforts to ensure that each Private Fund has in place policies and procedures that provide underlying principles behind the disclosure of reliable information with adequate supporting operational practices.

If the Valuation Designee determines that the Fund does not have the ability to sell shares of a Private Fund in its primary market through redemptions back to the Private Fund, the Valuation Designee may determine to fair value the Private Fund at a price other than its NAV. In such an instance, the Valuation Designee may consider any information it deems appropriate, including information received from broker-dealers and/or pricing services or comparable sales in the secondary market. Any such fair valuation determinations will be made in good faith by the Valuation Designee, may be based upon an internally developed pricing model, and will be reported to the Board's Valuation Committee at its next regularly scheduled quarterly meeting.

NAV and NAV Per Share Calculation

The price at which an investor buys Shares or has Shares repurchased is the NAV per Share. BNY Mellon calculates the Fund's NAV once each Business Day as follows:

- Current value of the Fund's total assets, including the value of all investments held; and
- Less any liabilities including accrued fees and expenses of the Fund or distributions to be paid.

NAV per Share is calculated by taking the Fund's NAV divided by the total number of Shares outstanding at the time the determination is made. The NAV per Share is calculated before taking into consideration any additional investments to be made as of such date and prior to including any dividend reinvestment or any repurchase obligations to be paid in respect of a Repurchase Date that is as of such date.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARES

The Fund is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Shares of beneficial interest. The Board is authorized to increase or decrease the number of Shares the Fund is authorized to issue. Each Share has one vote at all meetings of shareholders and, when issued and paid for in accordance with the terms of this offering, will be fully paid and non-assessable.

All Shares have equal rights as to dividends, assets and voting privileges and have no conversion, preemptive or other subscription rights. Shareholders are not liable for further calls or assessments. The Fund will send periodic reports (including financial statements) to all shareholders. The Fund does not intend to hold annual meetings of shareholders. Shares are not available in certificated form. Any transfer of Shares will be void if made to an account held through a broker, dealer or other Intermediary that has not entered into an agreement for the provision of shareholder services to the Fund. In addition, in the event of any transfer that violates the foregoing transfer restrictions, such as pursuant to testate or intestate succession, the Fund will have the right (but not the obligation) to repurchase any such improperly transferred Shares at their then current NAV. This repurchase right is in addition to any other remedy that the Fund may have, including, when consistent with applicable law, refusing to recognize any such transfer. With very limited exceptions, including the ability of a shareholder to transfer or resell Shares pursuant to the terms of the LLC Agreement, Shares are not transferable and liquidity will be provided principally through limited Repurchase Offers. See "Risk Factors – Interval Fund Risk" and "– Liquidity Risk."

In general, any action requiring a vote of the holders of the Shares of the Fund shall be effective if taken or authorized by the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding Shares. Any change in the Fund's fundamental policies may also be authorized by the vote of the holders of two-thirds of the Shares present at a shareholders' meeting if the holders of a majority of the outstanding Shares are present or represented by proxy.

Dividends and capital gain distributions paid by the Fund will be reinvested in additional Shares of the Fund unless a shareholder "opts out" (elects not to reinvest in Shares). Shareholders may elect initially not to reinvest by indicating that choice on a shareholder certification. Thereafter, shareholders are free to change their election on a quarterly basis by contacting BNY Mellon (or, alternatively, by contacting its Intermediary, who will inform the Fund). Shares purchased by reinvestment will be issued at their NAV on the ex-dividend date. There is no sales load or other charge for reinvestment. The Fund reserves the right to suspend or limit at any time the ability of shareholders to reinvest distributions. The automatic reinvestment of dividends and capital gain distributions does not relieve participants of any U.S. federal income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions.

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Fund, after payment of all of the liabilities of the Fund, shareholders are entitled to share ratably in all the remaining assets of the Fund.

The following table shows Shares of the Fund that were authorized and outstanding as of June 30, 2023:

	-	(3)	(4)
(1) Title of Class	(2) Amount Authorized	Amount Held by the Fund for its Account	Amount Outstanding Exclusive of Amount Shown Under (3)
Shares of beneficial interest	Unlimited	0	93,668,370

As a continuously offered closed-end fund, it is anticipated that the Fund will offer additional Shares subject to future registration statements. In deciding whether to make these sales, the Fund will take into account all factors it considers relevant, including market conditions and the cash available to it for investment.

TAXES

This section summarizes some of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. persons of investing in the Fund; the consequences under other tax laws and to non-U.S. shareholders may differ. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors as to the possible application of federal, state, local or non-U.S. income tax laws. Please see the SAI for additional information regarding the tax aspects of investing in the Fund.

Treatment as a Regulated Investment Company

The Fund has elected to be treated, and intends each year to qualify and be eligible to be treated, as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. A RIC is not subject to U.S. federal income tax at the corporate level on income and gains from investments that are distributed to shareholders. The Fund's failure to qualify as a RIC would result in corporate-level taxation, thereby reducing the return on your investment.

Taxes on Fund Distributions

A shareholder subject to U.S. federal income tax will generally be subject to tax on Fund distributions. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, Fund distributions will generally be taxable to a shareholder as either ordinary income or capital gains. Fund dividends consisting of distributions of investment income generally are taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. Federal taxes on Fund distributions of capital gains are determined by how long the Fund owned or is deemed to have owned the investments that generated the capital gains, rather than how long a shareholder has owned the shares. Distributions of net capital gains (that is, the excess of net long-term capital gains over net short-term capital losses, in each case determined with reference to any loss carryforwards) that are properly reported by the Fund as capital gain dividends generally will be treated as long-term capital gains includible in a shareholder's net capital gains and taxed to individuals at reduced rates. Distributions of net short-term capital gains in excess of net long-term capital losses generally will be taxable to you as ordinary income.

The Code generally imposes a 3.8% Medicare contribution tax on the "net investment income" of certain individuals, trusts and estates to the extent their income exceeds certain threshold amounts. Net investment income generally includes for this purpose dividends paid by the Fund, including any capital gain dividends, and net capital gains recognized on the sale, redemption or exchange of shares of the Fund. Shareholders are advised to consult their tax advisors regarding the possible implications of this additional tax on their investment in the Fund.

The ultimate tax characterization of the Fund's distributions made in a taxable year cannot be determined finally until after the end of that taxable year. As a result, there is a possibility that the Fund may make total distributions during a taxable year in an amount that exceeds the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits. In that case, the excess generally would be treated as a return of capital and would reduce a shareholder's tax basis in the applicable shares, with any amounts exceeding such basis treated as gain from the sale of such shares. A return of capital is not taxable, but it reduces a shareholder's tax basis in the shares, thus reducing any loss or increasing any gain on a subsequent taxable disposition by the shareholder of its shares.

Distributions by the Fund to its shareholders that the Fund properly reports as "section 199A dividends," as defined and subject to certain conditions described in the SAI, are treated as qualified REIT dividends in the hands of non-corporate shareholders. Very generally, a "section 199A dividend" is any dividend or portion thereof that is attributable to certain dividends received by a RIC from REITs, to the extent such dividends are properly reported as such by the RIC in a written notice to its shareholders.

An investment in the Fund may result in liability for the federal alternative minimum tax to shareholders subject to such tax. Shareholders subject to the alternative minimum tax should consult their tax advisors regarding the potential alternative minimum tax implications of holding shares of the Fund.

Fund distributions are taxable to shareholders as described above even if they are paid from income or gains earned by the Fund before a shareholder's investment (and thus were included in the price the shareholder paid).

Certain Fund Investments

The Fund's transactions in derivatives could affect the amount, timing and character of distributions from the Fund, and could increase the amount and accelerate the timing for payment of taxes payable by shareholders. The Fund's investments in certain debt instruments could cause the Fund to recognize taxable income in excess of the cash generated by such investments (which may require the Fund to liquidate other investments in order to make required distributions). The Fund does not expect to qualify to pass through tax-exempt dividends to shareholders.

Private Funds

The Fund may invest in Private Funds that are classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As such, the Fund may be required to recognize items of taxable income and gain prior to the time that the Fund receives corresponding cash distributions from the Private Fund. In such case, the Fund might have to borrow money or dispose of investments, including interests in other Private Funds, including when it is disadvantageous to do so, in order to make the distributions required to maintain its status as a RIC and to avoid the imposition of a federal income or excise tax.

Private Funds classified as partnerships for federal income tax purposes may generate income allocable to the Fund that is not qualifying income for purposes of the 90% gross income test described above. In order to meet the 90% gross income test, the Fund may structure its investments in a way potentially increasing the taxes imposed thereon or in respect thereof.

Furthermore, it may not always be clear how the asset diversification rules for RIC qualification will apply to the Fund's investments in Private Funds that are classified as partnerships for federal income tax purposes.

As a result of the considerations described in the preceding paragraphs, the Fund's intention to qualify and be eligible for treatment as a RIC can limit its ability to acquire or continue to hold positions in Private Funds that would otherwise be consistent with its investment strategy or can require it to engage in transactions in which it would otherwise not engage, resulting in additional transaction costs and reducing the Fund's return to shareholders. The Fund's investment in Private Funds may also adversely bear on the Fund's ability to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code.

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this discussion to the Fund's investments, activities, income, gain, and loss include, as applicable, the investments, activities, income, gain, and loss attributable to the Fund as result of the Fund's investment in any Private Fund or other entity that is properly classified as a partnership or disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes (and not an association or publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation).

Foreign (Non-U.S.) Taxes

Income received by the Fund from sources within foreign countries may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed by such countries, which will reduce the return on those investments. The Fund does not expect that shareholders will be entitled to claim a credit or deduction for U.S. federal income tax purposes with respect to foreign taxes paid by the Fund; in that case the foreign tax will nonetheless reduce the Fund's taxable income. Even if the Fund were eligible to and did elect to pass through to its shareholders foreign tax credits or deductions, tax-exempt shareholders and those who invest in the Fund through tax-advantaged accounts such as IRAs would not benefit from any such tax credit or deduction.

Taxes When You Dispose of Your Common Shares

Any gain resulting from the disposition of Shares that is treated as a sale or exchange for U.S. federal income tax purposes generally will be taxable to shareholders as capital gains for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Shareholders who offer, and are able to sell all of the Shares they hold or are deemed to hold in response to a Repurchase Offer (as described above) generally will be treated as having sold their shares and generally will recognize a capital gain or loss. In the case of shareholders who tender or are able to sell fewer than all of their shares, it is possible that any amounts that the shareholder receives in such repurchase will be taxable as a dividend to such shareholder. In addition, there is a risk that shareholders who do not tender any of their shares for repurchase, or whose percentage interest in the Fund otherwise increases as a result of the Repurchase Offer, will be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as having received a taxable dividend distribution as a result of their proportionate increase in the ownership of the Fund. The Fund's use of cash to repurchase shares could adversely affect its ability to satisfy the distribution requirements for treatment as a RIC. The Fund could also recognize income in connection with its liquidation of portfolio securities to fund share repurchases. Any such income would be taken into account in determining whether such distribution requirements are satisfied.

Backup Withholding

The Fund is generally required to withhold and remit to the U.S. Treasury a percentage of the taxable distributions and redemption proceeds paid to any shareholder who fails to properly furnish the Fund with a correct taxpayer identification number, who has under-reported dividend or interest income, or who fails to certify to the Fund that he, she or it is not subject to such withholding.

DISTRIBUTION ARRANGEMENTS

General

Foreside Funds Distributors LLC, the Fund's Distributor, serves as the Fund's "statutory underwriter," within the meaning of the Securities Act, and "principal underwriter," within the meaning of the Investment Company Act, and facilitates the distribution of the Shares. The Distributor's principal business address is Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, ME 04101.

The Distributor will offer the Shares on a best efforts basis, but is not obligated to sell any certain number of Shares. Under the Distribution Agreement between the Fund and the Distributor, the Fund has agreed to indemnify the Distributor or its designee, their respective affiliates, the Adviser, and certain other persons against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. However, the Fund will not be required to provide indemnification where it is determined that the liability resulted from the willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence of the person seeking indemnification in the performance of such person's duties under the Distribution Agreement, or from the reckless disregard of such person's obligations under the Distribution Agreement.

Other Payments Made by the Fund, the Adviser, the Distributor and/or its Designee

The Fund, the Adviser and/or the Distributor may authorize one or more Intermediaries to receive orders and provide certain related services on behalf of the Fund. Additionally, the Adviser may enter into distribution and/or servicing agreements to compensate Intermediaries for distribution-related activities and/or for providing ongoing services in respect of clients to whom they have distributed Shares of the Fund. Distribution-related services may include, among other things, the provision of education and support for the Fund's sales team, the placement of the Fund on preferred lists and in advisory allocation models, and promotion of the Fund through conferences, roadshows, and newsletters. Shareholder servicing arrangements may include, among other things, electronic processing of client orders, electronic fund transfers between clients and the Fund, account reconciliations with the Fund's transfer agent, facilitation of electronic delivery to clients of Fund documentation, monitoring client accounts for back-up withholding and any other special tax reporting obligations, maintenance of books and records with respect to the foregoing, and such other information and liaison services as the Fund or the Adviser may reasonably request.

Compensation received by the Intermediaries is paid by the Adviser out of the Adviser's own resources and is not an expense of the Fund or Fund shareholders. These payments may create a conflict of interest for the Intermediaries by providing an incentive to recommend the Shares over other potential investments that may also be appropriate for the clients of such Intermediaries. These payments may also have the effect of increasing the Fund's assets under management, which would increase the amount of the Investment Management Fee payable to the Adviser. There is no limit on the amount of such compensation paid by the Adviser to the Intermediaries, subject to the limitations imposed by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority. Such professionals and Intermediaries may provide varying investment products, programs, platforms and accounts through which investors may purchase or participate in a repurchase of Shares of the Fund. Platform fees, administration fees, shareholder services fees and sub-transfer agent fees are not paid by the Fund as compensation for any sales or distribution activities.

The aggregate amount of these payments may be substantial and may include amounts that are sometimes referred to as "revenue sharing" payments. Because these revenue sharing payments are paid by the Adviser and not from the Fund's assets, the amount of any revenue sharing payments is determined by the Adviser. The existence or level of such payments may be based on factors that include, without limitation, differing levels or types of services provided by the Intermediaries, the expected level of assets or sales of Shares, the placing of the Fund on a recommended or preferred list and/or access to an Intermediary's personnel and other factors. Payments may be based on current or past sales, current or historical assets or a flat fee for specific services provided. Shareholders should inquire of an Intermediary how the Intermediary will be compensated for investments made in the Fund.

The Adviser may manage and offer additional investment products other than the Fund. The compensation for services paid to Intermediaries may differ from one fund to another, even if the two funds are charged the same management fee or incentive-based fee (i.e., even if, overall, an investor would pay the same amount in fees). The differences in compensation may create an incentive for Intermediaries to recommend funds for which they receive higher compensation. Shareholders should discuss this with their Intermediaries to learn more about the compensation they receive.

PRIVACY NOTICE

This notice describes the Fund's privacy policy. The Fund is committed to protecting the personal information that it collects about individuals who are prospective, former or current investors. The Fund collects personal information ("Personal Information") for business purposes, such as to process requests and transactions, to maintain accounts, and to provide customer service. Personal Information is obtained from the following sources.

- Investor applications and other forms, which may include your name(s), address, social security number or tax identification number;
- · Written and electronic correspondence, including telephone contacts; and
- Transaction history, including information about the Fund's transactions and balances in your accounts with the Fund or its affiliates or other holdings of the Fund and any affiliation with the Adviser and its subsidiaries.

The Fund limits access to Personal Information to those employees and service providers who need to know that information for business purposes. Employees are required to maintain and protect the confidentiality of Personal Information. The Adviser, on behalf of the Fund, maintains written policies and procedures that address physical, electronic and administrative safeguards designed to protect Personal Information.

The Fund may share Personal Information described above with the Adviser and its various other affiliates or service providers for business purposes, such as to facilitate the servicing of accounts. The Fund may share the Personal Information described above for business purposes with a non-affiliated third party only as authorized by exceptions to Regulation S-P's opt-out requirements, for example, if it is necessary to effect, administer, or enforce a transaction that an investor requests or authorizes; (ii) in connection with processing or servicing a financial product or service an investor requests or authorizes; and (iii) in connection with maintaining or servicing the investor's account with the Fund. The Fund also may disclose Personal Information to regulatory authorities or otherwise as permitted by law. The Fund endeavors to keep its customer files complete and accurate. The Fund should be notified if any information needs to be corrected or updated.